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CITY OF BENSON 
CITY COUNCIL 


APRIL 13, 2015 – 7:00 P.M.  
REGULAR MEETING              


 
A REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA  


WILL BE HELD ON APRIL 13, 2015 AT 7:00 P.M.,  
AT BENSON CITY HALL,  


120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA       
 
                                                                               _________________________________ 
                                                                                      Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
 


A G E N D A 
 
The Council may discuss, direct, consider and take possible action as indicated below pertaining to the following: 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The Call to Order will consist of the Mayor calling the Council to order.  The Mayor or his 
designee shall then lead those present in the Pledge of Allegiance before introducing the invocation speaker, who will 
offer the invocation. 
 
ROLL CALL:  The City Clerk shall call the roll of the members, and the names of those present shall be entered in 
the minutes. 


 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  The Mayor shall use this time to present employment awards to those City 
employees or to present recognition awards for specific acts regarding public service, if any.   
 
PROCLAMATION:  A proclamation of the Mayor and Council declaring the month of April as “Fair Housing 
Month.”  
 
PUBLIC HEARING:   The Mayor and Council will be available to receive comments from the public regarding El 
Dorado Holdings’ proposed Preliminary Community Master Plan for Vigneto, the area formerly known as Whetstone 
Ranch.  A public hearing is an opportunity for citizens to address questions, concerns or support for the proposed 
Preliminary Community Master Plan directly to the Benson City Council.   
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Communications and comments from the citizens regarding the City of Benson or other 
matters properly addressed to the City Council shall be heard by the Council.  Such remarks shall be addressed to the 
Council as a whole and shall be limited to five (5) minutes unless additional time is granted by the Council.  ** 


 
CITY MANAGER REPORT:  The City Manager will announce meetings and events taking place regarding matters 
involving or related to the City of Benson. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 


1. Discussion and possible action on the Consent Agenda:  ***      
1a. Minutes of the March 9, 2015 Worksession  * 
1b. Minutes of the March 9, 2015 Regular Meeting  * 
1c. Appointment of Barbara Thompson to the Benson Planning & Zoning Commission  * 
1c. Invoices processed for the period from March 13, 2015 through March 31, 2015  * 


 
2. Presentation of a Certificate of Appreciation to Travis Barney – Laura Parkin, Recreation Coordinator  * 


 
3. Presentation of the Certified Audit Report for the City of Benson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 – 


Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director  * 
 


4. Discussion and possible action regarding a contract for Prosecutorial Services between Ann P. Roberts and the 
City of Benson – William D. Stephens, City Manager  * 
 


5. Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 12-2015 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 
Arizona, authorizing the City Manager to apply for Arizona Department of Transportation Section 5311 Funds 
to operate a Rural Public Transit System – Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director  *   
       


6. Discussion and possible action regarding the Occupancy and Services Agreement between Catholic Community 
Services and the City of Benson to assist with meal services to eligible persons residing in and around Benson 
by providing space at the Benson Community Center, 705 W. Union Street, Benson, Arizona – Laura Parkin, 
Recreation Coordinator  *  
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7. Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 13-2015 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 
Arizona, approving the Preliminary Community Master Plan entitled “The Villages at Vigneto”, dated March, 
2015 – Brad Hamilton, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer  *  
 


8. Presentation/Report by Director of Golf Operations Joe DelVecchio about the Benson San Pedro Valley Golf 
Course – Councilmember Boyle and Councilmember Konrad 
 


9. Discussion and possible direction to Staff about creating a budget advisory committee – Councilmember 
Boyle and Councilmember Konrad 
 


10. Discussion and possible direction to Staff about its state of preparedness for and/or management of emergency 
situations – William Stephens, City Manager 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  Written Department Reports will be provided to Councilmembers as part of the 
Council packet monthly, discussion and direction to Staff, if any, may ensue. 


 
ADJOURNMENT 
  
POSTED this 8th of April, 2015 
 
Material related to the City Council meeting is available for public review the day before and the day of the meeting, 
during office hours, at the City Clerk’s Office located at 120 W. 6th Street, Benson, Arizona, 520-586-2245 x 2011. 
 
All facilities are handicapped accessible.  If you have a special accessibility need, please contact Vicki L. Vivian, City 
Clerk, at (520) 586-2245 or TDD: (520) 586-3624, no later than eight (8) hours before the scheduled meeting time.   
 
Any invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business shall be the voluntary offering of a 
private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the citizens present.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation 
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not endorse the religious 
beliefs or views of this, or any other speaker. 
 
Executive Sessions - Upon a vote of the majority of the City Council, the council may enter into Executive Sessions 
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statues §38-431.03 (A)(3) to obtain legal advice on matters listed on the Agenda. 
 


* Denotes an Exhibit in addition to the Council Communication 
 


** Call to the Public 
 
Arizona Revised Statutes §38-431.01(H) provides that “A public body may make an open call to the public during a 
public meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions to allow individuals to address the public 
body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the public body.  At the conclusion of an open call to the public, individual 
members of the public body may respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the public body, may ask 
staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the public body 
shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly 
noticed for discussion and legal action.”  As such, a Call to the Public, if on the agenda, is provided as a courtesy. 
 
In order to speak during the Call to the Public, please complete the Call to the Public form requesting to do so. 
 


*** Consent Agenda 
 


The Consent Agenda will be the first item under New Business and shall list separately distinct items requiring action 
by the City Council that are generally routine items not requiring Council discussion.  A single motion will approve all 
items on the Consent Agenda, including any resolutions or ordinances, or claims/invoices that are of a routine nature.  
A Councilmember may remove any issue from the Consent Agenda, and that issue will be discussed and voted upon 
separately, immediately following the Consent Agenda under its proper regular category of New Business. 
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		A G E N D A






City of Benson 


APR I L  20 1 5  
S u n M o n  T u e W e d  T hu  F r i  S a t  


   1 2 3 4 


5 6 7 8 9 10 11 


12 13 14 15 16 17 18 


19 20 21 22 23 24 25 


26 27 28 29 30   


FOR MORE INFORMATION VISIT WWW.CITYOFBENSON.COM 


Benson Economic 
Development  
Committee 6:00 p.m. 
 


Planning & Zoning  
Public Hearing &  
Meeting 7:00 p.m. 


TPT Increase Forum 
6.00 p.m. 
 


Library Advisory 
Board 4:00 p.m. 


Community Watershed 
Alliance 6:30 p.m. 


City Council Meeting 
7:00 p.m. 


City Council Meeting 
7:00 p.m. 


City Council  
Worksession 6.00 p.m. 
 


FURLOUGHS 
CITY OFFICES 
CLOSED 


TPT Increase Forum 
6.00 p.m. 
 


TPT Increase Forum  
6.00 p.m. 
 


FURLOUGHS 
CITY OFFICES 
CLOSED 


FURLOUGHS 
CITY OFFICES 
CLOSED 


FURLOUGHS 
CITY OFFICES 
CLOSED 



http://WWW.cityofbenson.com





Meetings 


 


Events 


 
 


Tuesday, April 14, 2015 – Library Advisory Board, 4:00 p.m., City Library 


Thursday, April 16, 2015 – TPT Increase Forum, 6:00 p.m. City Hall 


Monday, April 20, 2015 – City Council Worksession, 6:00 p.m., City Hall 


Thursday, April 23, 2015 – TPT Increase Forum, 6:00 p.m. City Hall 


Monday, April 27, 2015 – City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 


Tuesday, April 28, 2015 – Community Watershed Alliance, 6:30 p.m., City Hall 


Thursday, April 30, 2015 – TPT Increase Forum, 6:00 p.m. City Hall 


 
For Events happening in Benson go to www.cityofbenson.com “What to do Today” 



http://www.cityofbenson.com/
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Discussion:  
 
Attached are the minutes of the March 9, 2015 Worksession.     
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1a 
                                               
From: Vicki Vivian, CMC, City Clerk                   
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Minutes of the March 9, 2015 Worksession         
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                           April 13, 2015 
 







THE WORKSESSION  
OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
AND THE BENSON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 


HELD MARCH 9, 2015 AT 6:00 P.M. 
AT CITY HALL, 120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA         


 
CALL TO ORDER:    
    


Mayor King called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
ROLL CALL:   
 


Present were: Mayor Toney D. King, Sr., Vice Mayor Lori McGoffin, Councilmembers Pat Boyle, Jeff Cook, 
Joe Konrad, David Lambert and Peter Wangsness (via phone). 
 
Also present were:  Benson Economic Development Committee Chairperson Mike Berryhill and Benson 
Economic Development Committee Members Councilmember Pat Boyle, Annette Buechel, Mindi Flores, 
Barbara Nunn and Jennifer Swindle.  Absent were:  Benson Economic Development Committee members Ron 
Brooks, John Comaduran and Stephen Insalaco.   
 


NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. Discussion and possible direction to Staff about  the Benson Economic Development Committee 


including the Resignation of Ron Brooks, the Resignation of Stephen Insalaco, the Appointment of 
Debra Crafts and the possible retention, reformation, or dissolution of the committee as in proposed 
Ordinance 576 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, Arizona, amending the Benson City 
Code, Chapter 18 “Boards, Commissions and Committees,” Article 18-6, “Benson Economic 
Development Committee” to disband and delete any reference to the Benson Economic Development 
Committee in the Benson City Code     
 
Mayor King stated he would like to thank the committee for being at the meeting and he hoped the meeting 
would be fruitful.  Mayor King then stated he would let the Councilmembers speak first.     
 
Vice Mayor McGoffin also thanked the committee for coming, adding she appreciates them volunteering.  
Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated some people are disgruntled with the committee, but she doesn’t think that 
is fair since the committee has never been directed or told what to do, adding it seems like it would be like 
trying to fire an employee without giving them any directions.  Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated she was 
hoping the Council could set some goals for the committee so they would know what they are working toward.  
Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated when she took over the Economic Development Sub Committee (EDSC) 
after former Councilmember John Lodzinski passed away, the primary focuses were business retention and the 
shovel ready program.  Vice Mayor McGoffin then explained that for business retention, the committee tried 
to talk to local businesses to see if there was anything the City could do, such as putting on employment job 
fairs and helping with permitting to let them know the City appreciates them being here.  Vice Mayor 
McGoffin then stated the shovel ready program was to help new businesses see what was here, adding she 
thinks Mr. Lodzinski did a really good job with that and this is what she would like the BEDC to do.  Vice 
Mayor McGoffin then stated the Southeastern Arizona Economic Development Group (SAEDG) does a lot of 
great things to bring businesses here and host events and the Chamber of Commerce is good at putting on 
events and she believes that is their focus, but again, she would like the City’s committee to be geared toward 
supporting the businesses already in town so they don’t leave.   
 
Councilmember Boyle stated because of the situation the City finds itself in financially, anything the 
committee can do to help to stimulate business in town and bring in new events is a good thing, adding the 
more irons they have in the fire; the more opportunities they have to make something actually work and be a 
benefit to the City financially.  Councilmember Boyle then stated SAEDG, the Chamber of Commerce and this 
committee should be able to complement each other and work together if one of them has a good idea, adding 
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one of the three groups might be able to do it which means there is that much more opportunity to help the 
City financially.  Councilmember Boyle then stated he doesn’t see any detriment in the City having the 
committee and in the committee actively looking for things to do and for ways to have these different 
organizations work together to help the City financially. 
 
Councilmember Konrad stated the last meeting regarding the committee seemed contentious and he didn’t like 
to see that, adding he wanted to see some kind of cohesion.  Councilmember Konrad then stated if the Council 
is going forward with the committee as is, he would like to hear from the BEDC what Council can do to make 
this better, what roadblocks need to be removed and what the BEDC perceives as roadblocks.  Councilmember 
Konrad then stated the Council is here to help, adding everyone is certainly trying to go the same direction and 
make the City a better place.  Councilmember Konrad then stated the committee members donate their time 
and that has got to be worth something to the Council, then stated he would like to hear the committee’s 
perception of things as they are and what the Council can do to make a course correction and make it easier.   
 
Councilmember Wangsness stated he was in favor of keeping the BEDC, adding the cost is minimal to the 
City.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated the BEDC is an extension of the City and carries some weight to 
it, adding there is no reason the committee can’t work with other committees formed by the public.  
Councilmember Wangsness then stated the committee was already torn apart and rebuilt only about a year ago 
and he thinks it needs more time.   
 
Councilmember Lambert stated everyone touched on a lot of the points he was going to touch on, then stated 
after the Council’s last meeting with everything that happened there and a lot of the friction going on, he called 
BEDC Chairman Mike Berryhill and met with Mr. Berryhill and BEDC Members Annette Buechel and Jack 
Comaduran.  Councilmember Lambert stated they sat down and discussed problems in the committee and the 
lack of guidance, which is why the worksession is being held.  Councilmember Lambert then stated the 
Council needs to give the committee direction, adding everyone has the same goal in mind, but the committee 
is going in one direction and the Council is going in the other direction and trying to meet in the middle.  
Councilmember Lambert then stated one of the things he asked Mr. Berryhill about is giving the Council 
updates like the Department reports Council receives, adding this will provide some communication to the 
Council about what the BEDC is doing and the Council won’t be blindsided.  Councilmember Lambert then 
stated his meeting with them lasted almost 5 hours that night and after writing down a few notes of problems 
the committee was having, he addressed a few of those with Staff, adding the committee is going in the right 
direction.  Councilmember Lambert then stated the reason he brought the subject of the committee forward for 
Council to discuss was that he knew the previous committee was disbanded and this new committee was 
formed and he didn’t know why, adding he couldn’t see a difference in the committees.  Councilmember 
Lambert then stated if the Council has updates from the BEDC, it would be easier for the Council to support 
them.   
 
Councilmember Cook stated he hasn’t changed much since this whole thing started back in May and he 
doesn’t see how giving the committee direction is going to be helpful at all.  Councilmember Cook then stated 
he also doesn’t agree that anything and everything the committee can do would be helpful to the City, adding 
there are a lot of things they could do that would not be helpful to the City.  Councilmember Cook then spoke 
about the roadblocks and stated he had no idea what roadblocks the committee may have other than them 
misunderstanding what an economic development committee is and possibly Mr. Berryhill’s hostility at the 
podium.  Councilmember Cook then stated he didn’t feel that guidance or more time would be helpful because 
economic development is such a nebulous thing, adding it is much more similar to a black art than it is to a 
science.  Councilmember Cook then stated there have been a couple new businesses come into town such as 
O’Reilly’s Auto Parts and the Tractor Supply Company and they went out of their way to avoid the BEDC, 
adding they came in and looked at whether the City was getting along or not, what sort of traffic patterns there 
are, what sort of businesses or people or customers they will have coming in from outside of Benson and they 
do all of this research on their own.  Councilmember Cook then stated when a company does go to an 
economic development committee, it’s because they want something or want the City to do something such as 
exempt them from the City’s building codes or give them a tax incentive like the one in place with Wal-Mart 
that the City is still struggling with, adding it impacts the City’s budget and is one of the things that would be 
harmful to the City.  Councilmember Cook then stated another thing they may want is to be given a tax free 
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zone or trade free zone designation, which would also hurt the City.  Councilmember Cook then stated the real 
businesses that can benefit Benson avoid an economic development committee and pretty much avoid Staff 
and Council, adding they come here for their own reasons.  Councilmember Cook then stated again, the 
businesses that approach any economic development committee want something in return and he doesn’t see 
how direction, guidance, removing roadblocks, more time or anything else the Council can do is helpful or is 
going to change anything.   
 
Councilmember Wangsness stated he thought Councilmember Cook was speaking more about the reputation 
of the committee rather than the existence.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated he thought reputations can 
be turned around, adding the committee may have had a bad reputation in the past, but that doesn’t mean they 
have to maintain that reputation in the future.  Councilmember Cook then stated he was speaking about what 
happens in every City and how businesses deal with economic development committees has nothing to do with 
the committee’s reputation.   
 
Mayor King stated what he wants the committee to take away from this meeting is the understanding, 
knowledge and direction the Council would like to see the committee go.  Mayor King then stated he would 
also like the committee to know what the City can and can’t do for the committee, adding for example, the 
City doesn’t have any funding for grant matches.  Mayor King then stated again, he would like the committee 
to have more knowledge and direction when they leave the worksession.   
 
Councilmember Boyle stated he thought there was a misunderstanding, adding the BEDC doesn’t have any 
authority to enter into any kind of negotiations with businesses of any kind, adding the committee couldn’t 
ever go to a business that is interested in being part of Benson and say a sales tax incentive could be offered.  
Councilmember Boyle stated the committee doesn’t have that authority, adding they don’t even have a budget 
and all they do is basically be a think tank for the benefit of the City in coming up with ideas and ways to sell 
the City.  Councilmember Boyle then stated the committee could never go out on their own and approach an 
individual company or anything like that, adding anything like that would require the committee to come 
before the City Council and present the opportunity to them.  Councilmember Boyle then stated at that point 
the committee could work with the Council or the Council could do something on their own, but never would 
the committee act on its own to go out and enter into some kind of negotiation or anything like that.  
Councilmember Boyle then stated he wasn’t sure he understood Councilmember Cook’s argument with that 
particular issue, because the committee simply doesn’t have the authority to do so and it’s not part of the 
committee’s purview with Councilmember Cook responding that was his point.  
 
Mr. Berryhill stated communication would solve a whole lot of problems, adding he agrees with 
Councilmember Boyle that the committee doesn’t have the right to represent the City in any way, shape or 
form in negotiating any type of contract or anything else like that.  Mr. Berryhill stated the committee is to 
research and advise the Council, adding if there’s a company that the City is interested in and it fits what the 
City wants to have brought here, part of the research they can provide is to go and see what the business needs 
and what it would take to bring them to the City.  Mr. Berryhill then stated that would not be making any type 
of a deal, it would just be gathering information to bring to the Council and then it could go from there.  Mr. 
Berryhill then stated communication is the biggest issue he sees, adding the committee members understand 
what they are allowed to do and that they cannot represent the City in any negotiations, deals or anything else.  
Mr. Berryhill then stated when the committee first started, the previous Chairman had them a little bit 
confused, but they are hearing what the Council wants and if the Council would like to get into the details of 
what they want done, they could do that also.  Mr. Berryhill then stated he would like to suggest that the 
Council let the committee try some new things too, adding if something stays the same, it gets stagnant and 
doesn’t go anywhere and he believed the committee needed to try some new things. 
 
Mayor King asked if any other committee members wished to speak with Committee Member Mindi Flores 
stating her understanding was that the committee was an advisory committee only, adding their function is 
research and communication.   
 
Mr. Berryhill then stated if the committee had something they’re interested in, such as the wind generator 
station that was supposed to be set up just outside of Willcox that fell through, they could go talk to them and 
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see what they needed to get the project off the ground and then present information to the Council on what 
would be needed to attract that company to Benson, then asked if anyone thought about using a tank of gas to 
go talk to that company.  Mr. Berryhill then stated he understood there had been about three solar plants that 
have been trying to come to Benson and asked if he was correct with Mayor King stating there had been some 
discussions on projects but nothing had moved forward.  Councilmember Lambert stated there had been talk of 
two manufacturing plants that were going to come here and one was supposed to be a solar farm generating 
electricity.  Mr. Berryhill asked if one was supposed to be down on the road leading to the airport with Vice 
Mayor McGoffin stating a landowner created a solar park trying to get solar businesses onto their property.  
Councilmember Wangsness then stated one project was discussed by a company called Matinee Energy, but it 
was a con job and there was never any intention to move forward with the project, adding all they were doing 
was trying to get money out of investors.  Mr. Berryhill then stated he thought there were two or three coming 
that had to do with solar clean technology and that he believed this was an industry that Benson was looking 
for.  Mr. Berryhill then stated there’s always someone trying to do this somewhere and he believes in 
investigating and communicating with them to find out what they need to put one in Benson, adding with all of 
Benson’s low shrubbery and everything else, it’s a clear shot to the sun and we have the room, literally.   
 
Councilmember Konrad stated one of the considerations with the electricity generating station was the cost of 
transmission, adding were they to build a solar facility somewhere it would need to be in proximity of where it 
would be economically feasible to tie into existing transmission lines because to install transmission lines 
would be a huge expense.  Councilmember Konrad then stated it is one thing to build a plant somewhere but 
it’s another thing to transmit the power from that plant to the grid, adding those are obstacles to be aware of 
when looking at that type of a project.   
 
Mr. Berryhill then stated one of the things he was looking at was a small plant on less than 20 acres, providing 
total electric supply to 400-600 homes, adding the total investment on the plant was supposed to be $1.5 to $2 
million.  Mr. Berryhill then stated they were going to do the project in small increments instead of it being a 
multi-billion dollar project.  Mr. Berryhill then stated that is one of the things he was investigating to see what 
it would take, but the two places they were looking at were the major transformer station where the old 
Stuckey’s is and where they built the Arizona Electric Power building. 
 
Mayor King stated the worksession needed to get back on track to discuss the Council’s direction for the 
BEDC with Councilmember Konrad stating the City Code, Article 18-6, “Benson Economic Development 
Committee” laid out pretty clearly what the powers and the responsibilities or expectations of the committee 
are, adding it’s not a lot of reading material there, so he’s not sure where the disconnect is as far as what the 
mission is and what the mission is interpreted to be.  Councilmember Konrad then stated he thinks it does a 
really good job of laying it out, adding it mentions the committee reaching out to business owners, to SAEDG 
and to the Sierra Vista group, adding he thinks there is already something in place that essentially should work.   
 
Mayor King stated a mission statement is very important as it provides guidance, adding the committee also 
needs to provide reports to the Council, whether it be at City Council meetings or something they put in the 
Councilmembers’ mailboxes at City Hall.  Mayor King then stated the reports will open communication and 
let the Council would know what the BEDC is doing, adding the Council could decide to meet with the BEDC 
again, if needed.  Mayor King then stated this may help stop the naysayers and will also give the Council 
information about what the BEDC is working on so the Council could discuss it, if they felt it was needed.   
 
Councilmember Konrad stated in the City Code, Chapter 18, Section 18-6-2, paragraph D states the committee 
will provide recommendations to the Mayor and City Council and City Manager on the annual budget, adding 
the Council is looking for all the help they can get in that area.  Councilmember Konrad then stated since it’s 
one of the specified duties of the committee, they might give that some thought into where economic 
development plays into the Council developing a good budget for the coming year. 
 
City Attorney Gary Cohen stated from the legal perspective, he appreciates Councilmember Konrad 
mentioning the ordinance, because he wrote it with the idea of giving some guidance to the committee as to 
what their powers are and what they are not.  Mr. Cohen then stated he also appreciates Mr. Berryhill 
mentioning that he clearly understands that the committee only has advisory power, adding he didn’t think it 
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was any secret that under the prior leadership of this committee, there was some confusion about that and he is 
glad to hear that Mr. Berryhill understands the role of the committee.  Mr. Cohen then stated open meeting 
laws are very important, adding a committee of the Mayor and Council has to follow open meeting laws, 
noting he gets a little antsy about it, because if those get violated by a committee, it’s still the City’s problem, 
which is his problem.  Mr. Cohen then stated he knows Mr. Berryhill has been good about talking to the City 
Clerk about things the committee has to comply with on the agenda to follow those rules.  Mr. Cohen stated 
Mr. Berryhill brought up his clear understanding of the committee’s mission and stated through discussions 
Mr. Cohen has had with City Clerk Vicki Vivian, he knows that Mr. Berryhill has been conscientious about it.  
Mr. Cohen then stated there may have been some natural growing pains in the committee, but the fact is that 
now there is a clear understanding and he appreciates those things being brought up. 
 
Mayor King asked Mr. Berryhill if he had any questions about the ordinance or any other questions, adding if 
the committee thought they might have any misunderstandings, those issues could be clarified now.  Mr. 
Berryhill stated it would require another 4½ hour meeting to answer all the questions the committee has 
because the committee wants to understand the avenues the Council wants them to pursue and they want to 
give the Council ideas also.  Mayor King then asked if the committee understood the ordinance with Mr. 
Berryhill stating they did.  Mr. Berryhill then stated he was the new Chairman of the committee and he was 
trying to run it correctly, noting he has spoken with Ms. Vivian several times and she has been very helpful in 
explaining things and helping with the language on the agendas, adding she is efficient and is helping the 
committee get past their growing pains and move forward.   
 
Mr. Cohen stated if Ms. Vivian was not available or if the committee had follow up questions on legal issues, 
they could also contact him, adding the committee is an extension of the Council and it’s his job to make sure 
everything was legal. 
 
Mayor King stated he thought Mr. Berryhill could see that the City Council is reaching out to the committee 
and they are asking the committee to continue reaching out to the Council, adding this is a good start and 
communication needs to be maintained moving forward. 
 
Councilmember Lambert stated he wanted to commend Mr. Berryhill, adding he can see a difference in the 
committee’s meeting discussions since Mr. Berryhill became the Chairman in December and can see that the 
committee is going in the right direction.  Councilmember Lambert then stated communication is key, adding 
the more information the committee can get to Council, the easier it is for Council to help the committee 
should they get off track.  Councilmember Lambert then stated he wanted to point out that Committee Member 
Annette Buechel, at her own expense, took a class on grant writing to become certified.  Councilmember 
Lambert then stated he felt that a lot of information the committee was discussing went too far, but after 
talking to Mr. Berryhill, he could see where the committee’s mindset is in trying to bring businesses and 
people into Benson.  Councilmember Lambert then stated Debra Crafts isn’t on the committee, adding she has 
an application pending; then stated she is one of the people spearheading the BMW Iron Horse event in April, 
which he hopes is a big success.   
 
Mayor King stated if the committee gets stuck on something and needs to communicate with the Council, they 
should feel free to contact him or other Councilmembers any time.   
 
Committee Member Jennifer Swindle stated she was new to the committee, then stated she keeps hearing that 
the reputation of the prior committee was being placed on the new committee, adding the new committee is 
trying to turn things around.  Ms. Swindle then stated she has been commuting to Benson every morning and 
evening for the past year and she listens to the local radio station each morning after a Council meeting, adding 
the Council hasn’t had the best reputation either.  Ms. Swindle then stated the new committee has done a great 
job and asked Council to give the committee time to get over the reputation the prior committee had. 
 
Councilmember Boyle stated he thought the Council should give the committee direction and that he would 
like a monthly report from the committee that includes the top 5 projects they are working on that they feel is 
the most important.  Councilmember Boyle then stated the committee meets on the first Monday of every 
month, so possibly the report could be given to Council by the middle of the month. 
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Councilmember Wangsness stated he was on the Benson Clean & Beautiful committee, adding the members 
get an email with the last meeting minutes and the agenda for the next meeting and he thinks that would be a 
good way to keep everyone informed.  Mr. Berryhill then stated monthly reports would be very monotonous 
until the committee gets something going and asked if the reports could be bi-monthly.  Mayor King stated the 
Council seemed to be good with bi-monthly reports with Councilmember Boyle stating occasionally, the 
committee may want to provide reports a couple times a month, adding it would depend on the activity of the 
committee. 
 
Councilmember Konrad stated the City Code, Chapter 18, Section 18-6-2, paragraph B, specifically mentions 
SAEDG, as someone the committee might interface with and asked if Mr. George Scott of the SAEDG had 
any input regarding any of this with Mr. Scott stating he didn’t have anything for the Council at this time. 
 
Councilmember Cook then stated Mayor King suggested the committee call the Mayor or any Councilmember 
if they wanted to, adding there may be a problem with that suggestion due to open meeting laws, citing recent 
problems with the airport committee not even being able to go to breakfast without posting a quorum notice.  
Councilmember Cook then stated violating the open meeting laws is a concern with Mr. Cohen stating it was a 
concern of his also.   
 
Mayor King asked if Mr. Cohen could explain the open meeting laws to the committee with Mr. Cohen stating 
he would go over the open meeting laws with the committee separately, adding he prefers not to give legal 
advice publicly.  Mayor King then stated the committee needs to be careful contacting all the Councilmembers 
as it may violate the open meeting laws.  Mr. Cohen then stated he would contact Mr. Berryhill and probably 
prepare a memorandum to distribute to committee members, adding he would be happy to attend a meeting or 
be available by phone.   
 
Councilmember Cook then stated direction and guidance has been brought up earlier and asked Mr. Berryhill 
what he thought the Council wanted as far as economic development with Mr. Berryhill stating the committee 
is to research and advise on things that would benefit the City in bringing and retaining businesses and other 
things such as events or other things that would actually increase or improve the economic picture.  
Councilmember Cook then stated it was mentioned earlier that the prior economic development committee that 
was disbanded had a bad reputation; then stated that economic development committee had a good reputation 
with a lot of capable, experienced people who were skilled and trained, adding one member was the economic 
development planner for the County.  Councilmember Cook then stated the current committee is the 
committee with the bad reputation. 
 
No further discussion was had.   
   


ADJOURNMENT:  
 
Vice Mayor McGoffin moved to adjourn at 6:45 p.m.  Seconded by Councilmember Konrad.  Motion passed 
7-0.   
 
 


                  
____________________________ 


                 Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 
  ATTEST: 
   


____________________________   
  Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
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Discussion:  
 
Attached are the minutes of the March 9, 2015 Regular Meeting.     
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1b 
                                               
From: Vicki Vivian, CMC, City Clerk                   
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Minutes of the March 9, 2015 Regular Meeting         
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                           April 13, 2015 
 







THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA 


HELD MARCH 9, 2015 AT 7:00 P.M. 
AT CITY HALL, 120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA         


 
CALL TO ORDER:    
    


Mayor King called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor King then 
introduced Pastor John Mitchell from the Church of our Savior who offered the invocation.  


 
ROLL CALL:   
 


Present were: Mayor Toney D. King, Sr., Vice Mayor Lori McGoffin, Councilmembers Pat Boyle, Jeff 
Cook, Joe Konrad, David Lambert and Peter Wangsness (via phone). 
 


EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  None 
 


PROCLAMATION:  None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  None  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   


 
Jim Gray stated he had passed out a copy of a letter to the editor in the Sierra Vista Herald to the Council 
and the City Manager telling what taxpayers want.  Mr. Gray then stated the Sierra Vista Council also 
selected members from the business community to come up with solutions to help solve their financial 
problems, adding he thinks it’s a good idea.  Mr. Gray then stated he has attended many Council meetings 
during the recession and the financial picture always seemed rosy, then 6 months after the Financial 
Director retired; the City is broke.  Mr. Gray then stated in 2010, the Council not only voted to refinance 
the wastewater treatment plant, which would have been paid off in 2018, but they also borrowed an 
additional $3 million, which raised the monthly payment and extended payments until 2028.  Mr. Gray then 
stated the Council is now suggesting a 1% sales tax increase that will hurt everyone in and around the town, 
including poor people, people on fixed incomes, businesses and future business possibilities.  Mr. Gray 
stated Benson already has a high sales tax, has food tax, renter’s tax, bed tax and property tax.  Mr. Gray 
then stated there are a lot of vacant buildings in Benson, adding if anyone drives to Willcox, they can see 
Willcox’s high sales tax had made it a ghost town.  Mr. Gray then stated the City of Benson has plenty of 
income coming in; it’s just being mismanaged, adding you can’t keep spending more than you make.  Mr. 
Gray then stated during the worst recession in 85 years, the City of Bisbee eliminated 26 positions in 
Bisbee and Sierra Vista eliminated 70 positions, while Benson added City positions.  Mr. Gray then stated 
this Council needs to direct the City Manager to balance the budget without raising taxes and without any 
negative effect on the City Manager.  Mr. Gray then stated the City Manager should know the City’s 
strengths and weaknesses by now and the Council does not.  Mr. Gray then stated there are solutions to all 
the problems, adding people need to get together as a City and find out how to solve those problems but 
one solution is no new taxes. 
 
Art Bale gave a brief background of himself, stating he doesn’t like being here complaining because he is a 
go-getter and a fixer, adding he retired from the Air Force in 1982 with 25 years of service and he has been 
trained as an efficiency expert in manpower.  Mr. Bale then stated he could go into any place with a few 
people, sit for a couple weeks and tell what the manpower level should be, what the pay level should be and 
how many widgets they should produce.  Mr. Bale stated to raise taxes without cleaning house is 
unbelievable.  Mr. Bale then stated he recently heard a commentary on the radio from Paul Lotsof, who he 
respects, that the City Manager makes less than someone making $90,000 in the City organization, adding 
that is unreal and he can’t believe anyone in the City makes $90,000.  Mr. Bale then stated he came here in 
1995 because his wife wanted to be by their grandkids, adding he has been in real estate for 30 years and he 
decided to build an RV park here because Kartchner Caverns was opening, adding he has several million 
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invested in Cochise Terrace.  Mr. Bale then stated his park was completed 2 years ahead of the caverns, so 
he needed to be mobile, like the City should be and he started selling off lots to make his payments.  Mr. 
Bale then stated the crash started in 2007 and 2008 with RVers’ lifestyle changing due to the price of gas, 
so he changed again, selling manufactured lots, resulting in his park having deeded RV sites, deeded 
manufactured home sites and 145 RV sites.  Mr. Bale then stated he supports no tax because his clients are 
all senior citizens on fixed incomes, adding he has been here long enough to see Pima County try to charge 
a $.50 bed tax several years ago and the RVers just scattered.  Mr. Bale then stated he thinks a lot of work 
needs to be done in the City and thinks it is just super cowardice for the bean counters to say to raise the tax 
rate.  Mr. Bale stated the tax increase would mean a little more money for a little while, but it won’t solve 
the problem that’s been created over the years.  Mr. Bale then stated he started his dream RV park in 1995 
and has been through thick and thin with the City, adding he wants to see the City grow because it’s a neat 
place, but added, working with the City was not so neat.  Mr. Bale then stated there are some employees 
who do a good job, but the people in authority who really don’t have any authority and should be called 
executors, have a no help attitude instead of a can do attitude.  Mr. Bale then stated the City has now 
outsourced engineering to Brown & Associates in Tucson, who knows little to nothing about Benson 
instead of hiring someone within the Building Department who can look at a plan.  Mr. Bale then stated 
when he puts a manufactured home in the ground, he has to get everything approved by the City and pay 
the fee, adding in Cochise Terrace, it costs $8,500 for a building permit, but if the same plan was down in 
town, it would cost $500.  Mr. Bales then stated that was discrimination.  Mr. Bales then stated when he 
sells a house in Cochise Terrace, he pays $4,000-$8,000 in sales tax, adding he would think the City would 
be helping him put manufactured homes in just because of the tax.  Mr. Bale then stated another concept 
the Council should look at is to lease the golf course to a civilian entity and get a $2,000 or $3,000 monthly 
payment to have a positive cash flow instead of a draining cash flow.  Mr. Bale then stated someone has to 
stand up in a group, adding he has been watching the Council for 15 years and was shocked that 
Councilmembers only make $200 a month, adding they take their own personal time to go out, explore and 
do their due diligence on issues that come before the Council.  Mayor King then informed Mr. Bale that his 
time to address the Council had expired.      
 
David DiPeso stated he was against the tax increase, adding he is associated with Cochise College and they 
have had to cut their budget for 6 years in a row now and this year is going to be even worse because the 
State reduced their budget too.  Mr. DiPeso then stated he doesn’t think it’s a bad thing; he thinks it’s a 
cycle they have to go through and it’s good for government to have to become lean and mean and cut the 
fat.  Mr. DiPeso then stated Cochise College is making budget cuts, adding they have had to raise tuition a 
little bit, but they tried to hold it to a minimum.  Mr. DiPeso then stated he thinks the City needs to look at 
that too; places where cuts can and should be made and places where more money can be made, which is 
where he was spending most of his time looking, adding El Dorado is going to come to Benson and he 
would bend over backwards to get those people here.  Mr. DiPeso then stated he would look at Mr. Lotsof’s 
Planning & Zoning problems, adding whether you agree with people or not, the codes the City has are very 
difficult and costly for small businesses.  Mr. DiPeso then stated a review committee or something can 
alleviate that to help small businesses get started would help generate income.  Mr. DiPeso then stated the 
Council also needs to be looking at economic development to bring more people in to create sales tax.  Mr. 
DiPeso then stated Wal-Mart brings in a ton of money that the City never had when he was on the Council, 
adding the City hasn’t really grown that much since then, so the Council should be able to live within their 
budget without raising taxes.  Mr. DiPeso then stated it’s very negative when someone sees the City with a 
huge tax burden, adding small businesses don’t want to come in, people don’t want to buy here and it’s not 
good for growth or economic growth, stating he would focus on economic growth if he was sitting with the 
Council and taxes are not economic growth.   
 
Nancy Iverson stated she owned the Sahara Motel on Highway 80 for 35 years and she was here also 
protesting the sales tax increase in addition to other things.  Ms. Iverson stated business owners are already 
struggling and if the Council thinks taxes are the answer, they should think again.  Ms. Iverson stated City 
problems began several years ago when the Council decided to hire within the City, rather than attempt to 
hire a real City Manager, adding the Council allowed Staff to tell the Council how to run the City when the 
Council was and is the governing body of Benson, Arizona.  Ms. Iverson then stated now the City is in 
financial trouble and after hearing Megan Moreno’s financial reports and learning how dollars were spent 
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and squandered, it’s no wonder, adding she is thankful Ms. Moreno was hired so the public could at last get 
an accurate financial accounting.  Ms. Iverson then stated golf courses are needed in retirement settings 
such as Benson and she understands that, but the management of the golf course the City was given was a 
fiasco and the Council needs to take that responsibility, adding when a restaurant isn’t making money, you 
find out why.  Ms. Iverson then stated the City could close the restaurant at the golf course and put in 
vending machines, adding there are enough restaurants in town and the City shouldn’t be in competition 
with local restaurant owners.  Ms. Iverson then asked how many tax dollars have gone into this business 
since it was given back to the City and she was using the word “given” loosely.  Ms. Iverson then stated she 
knows Ms. Moreno has an accurate accounting of the City when she was there, but no one knows before 
that.  Ms. Iverson then asked how many cities the size of Benson own a golf course and asked why the City 
doesn’t sell or lease it to a corporation that knows how to make money, because obviously Benson doesn’t.  
Ms. Iverson then stated all the businesses on Highway 80 are struggling since Turquoise Hills went under, 
adding that golf course was perfect for senior citizens and created a lot of business.  Ms. Iverson then stated 
if a tax increase goes through, there will be more people leaving and tax dollars will be lost.  Ms. Iverson 
then stated the City now has prisoners trimming trees and removing weeds and asked what the Street 
Department employees are doing, adding she never sees City work crews out doing any of that, however, 
she sees them driving pickups in and out of the City limits.  Ms. Iverson then asked about retiring a few 
City employees instead of hiring more.  Ms. Iverson then stated the Councilmembers are the bosses of the 
City and asked them to be responsible and act like the bosses by talking to some business owners and 
cutting the budget.       
 
Theresa Bennett stated she and her daughter have owned Junction Express for 18 years and she is here 
tonight because she believes the City has not done enough research on the importance of the impact of 
raising taxes.  Ms. Bennett then asked if the Council knew where people go to buy fuel, adding there is no 
doubt if someone is in Tucson, they will buy their fuel before leaving Tucson because it costs less and they 
can save as much as $.20 a gallon.  Ms. Bennett stated Tucson doesn’t tax food, unlike Benson, adding 
most people go to Tucson for entertainment, doctor appointments, shopping, and for needs Benson does not 
have or offer and when they are in Tucson, they will start to buy food because Safeway prices are higher 
than most food stores.  Ms. Bennett then stated if a person shops at Wal-Mart, they can save a little, but 
now there’s a new Wal-Mart on Houghton Road and people can just stop on their way back to Benson and 
buy what they need without having to pay high taxes.  Ms. Bennett stated this tax increase doesn’t sound 
like a lot until you put it all together and it will add up to enough savings that people will go to Tucson just 
like they do now and fill up their gas tanks for $.20 a gallon less.  Ms. Bennett then stated if 
Councilmembers aren’t in retail business, they don’t hear what customers are aware of, adding customers 
question tax on food and how expensive it is to live in Benson with the cost of food and fuel being higher.  
Ms. Bennett stated the City wants more housing, but the people the Council thinks are going to support 
Benson by living in Benson and working in Tucson will do their shopping in Tucson before they come 
home because Benson’s taxes are way too high.  Ms. Bennett then stated businesses are moving closer and 
closer to Benson, making it easier to shop where prices are lower and savings are greater, adding she would 
strongly urge the City to rethink what they’re doing by raising taxes.  Ms. Bennett then told the Council to 
do their jobs to protect the City and the businesses that are struggling to stay in Benson, adding if they 
haven’t taken a stroll down 4th Street lately, she strongly suggests they do so before making any decisions, 
noting there are vacant stores and abandoned buildings.  Ms. Bennett stated she has lived in Benson for 25 
years and it’s basically no different now than it was 25 years ago, adding there are more vacant stores and 
abandoned store fronts than ever with store owners getting older and wanting to sell or retire and get out of 
the business.  Ms. Bennett then stated raising taxes is not the way in; it will be the way out.   
 
Bob Benson stated he has been in town since 2006 and has been the manager at Barnett’s Propane on 4th 
Street for 4 years.  Mr. Benson then stated this town is dependent on winter visitors and the Council doesn’t 
know how many winter visitors he has heard in the last 2 years say they are being taxed to death with taxes 
on food and fuel.  Mr. Benson then stated this town had 4,900 people when he moved in and has 5,300 
now, which is not much growth in 5 or 6 years, adding people are moving out faster than they are moving 
in.  Mr. Benson then stated the Council needs to think about that, adding raising taxes is not the way to go.  
Mr. Benson then stated he has laid off 2 employees because business is down and there are no winter 
visitors.  Mr. Benson stated he lives in the San Pedro Mobile Home Park, which has maybe 45 or 50% 
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occupancy, adding when he first moved there; it was 100% full all the time.  Mr. Benson then stated taxing 
people coming into town and raising taxes is not going to cut the budget.        
 
Lupe Diaz stated he was the President of the Chamber of Commerce and the Pastor of Grace Chapel.  Mr. 
Diaz then stated the Council has a tough job, adding one of the things the City is facing is being able to eat 
a $1.1 million shortfall, which is a big task.  Mr. Diaz then stated he would like to not see the taxes 
increased, especially if there are some creative solutions to the problem.  Mr. Diaz then stated people may 
think 1% is just 1%, but Oro Valley is in battle right now over a ½% tax raise, adding a lot of people say 
it’s because of what they are spending it on, and while that could be part of the equation, he doesn’t think 
so.  Mr. Diaz then stated it’s such a serious thing that Oro Valley has a recall going right now with the 
Mayor and 3 City Councilmembers.  Mr. Diaz then stated the State of Arizona has just balanced their 
budget and they cut back on a lot of things, adding a lot of people are squawking right now because the 
State budget affects schools and government agencies as well as the City of Benson, but the State did what 
they had to do, which included selling some of their assets and State buildings, in order to balance their 
budget.  Mr. Diaz then stated the State didn’t turn to the citizens of the State, but instead, they tightened up 
things, sold things and reduced their workforce, adding he thinks those are important things to look at.  Mr. 
Diaz then stated he has heard a lot of people say that Benson is a family and part of the problem of being a 
family is that you will tolerate a lot of things and you don’t want to fire a relative.  Mr. Diaz then spoke 
about organizational models stating one is a team, adding a team has a goal, wants to win, has certain roles 
and to belong, you have to be productive.  Mr. Diaz then stated the next organizational model that he is 
aware of is like special forces, such as the seals and is very specialized with skilled people, so the higher 
you go up in this organizational model, the higher skilled people you need.  Mr. Diaz then stated one of his 
thoughts about the furloughs is that they are counterproductive because the City is going to start losing the 
best employees, adding it has already started losing some of its best employees.  Mr. Diaz then stated the 
reason for the furloughs is that it’s easier for people to make up their own minds and leave the City rather 
than taking charge and determining who gets fired, adding the Council should forget about hiring for a 
survey because they know who needs to be fired and what needs to be reduced.  Mr. Diaz then stated if 
furloughs stay in place, the City is going to lose its most skilled people and won’t have the people needed 
to continue running the City in a good manner.  Mr. Diaz then stated when the Council takes charge; they 
determine who will be kept.  Mr. Diaz then stated the employees signed up for a full-time job and he thinks 
that is important, adding he knows that morale is down right now.  Mr. Diaz then stated the City could offer 
the golf course to El Dorado Holdings, adding that was an idea from a Chamber of Commerce member.  
Mr. Diaz then stated the Building Department was brought up earlier, so he didn’t think he needed to 
mention it, then stated the Engineering Department doesn’t have to contract everything out, especially 
when there is an in-house engineer, adding he is looking at the position, not the person.  Mr. Diaz then 
stated he knows a recommendation was made to use a utility management company to manage the water 
and the gas company, adding if that happens, the utility management company will hire the City employees 
that the Council is afraid to let go, so it’s a win/win situation and he thinks that should be considered.  Mr. 
Diaz then stated the Council should keep their $200 a month, adding he thinks that is a drop in the bucket 
of the $1.1 million.  Mayor King then informed Mr. Diaz that his time to address the Council had expired.      
 
Paul Lotsof, the Manager of CAVE FM, stated he wouldn’t be surprised if he had the dubious distinction of 
having attended more meetings of the Benson City Council than any other person alive, adding he would 
guess he had attended over 700 meetings.  Mr. Lotsof then stated anyone who has attended that many 
meetings is bound to reach some conclusions, adding the top two things he has learned from attending is 
that grant monies are a national scandal and are largely spent on projects with questionable value and 
incredible inefficiency and that a large percentage of what goes on in these chambers falls under the 
heading of avoiding blame.  Mr. Lotsof then stated everyone wants to take the credit if things are going 
well, but no one wants to be blamed when things are going afoul, adding the Council escapes blame by 
being a rubber-stamping operation that hires a City Manager and Staff and then does as they’re told.  Mr. 
Lotsof then then stated when things go well, the Council pats themselves on the back for hiring such a 
wonderful Staff and if things go sour, they fire the Staff and then commend themselves for fixing the 
problem, so no matter what happens, the Council comes out smelling like a rose.  Mr. Lotsof stated this 
also explains why 2/3 of all Benson City Managers have been fired.  Mr. Lotsof then stated the problem 
with having a City Council that does little beside rubberstamp Staff, is the obvious drawback that the Staff 
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might not know any more than the Council does and in some cases, the Staff might not even care what is in 
the best interest of the Benson community.  Mr. Lotsof then stated the recent dealings between the Benson 
City government and CAVE FM are a nice example of how rubberstamping the Staff works to the 
detriment of all concerned.  Mr. Lotsof then stated the Council is aware that the City is experiencing 
serious financial problems with revenues not equaling expenditures, needing more sales tax and that the tax 
base isn’t large enough, adding there aren’t enough retail sales to generate the required revenue.  Mr. 
Lotsof then stated unfortunately, no one on the City Staff is skilled in business development and no one 
seems to understand the importance of maintaining a good public image, including the City Attorney and 
the Building and Zoning Staff.  Mr. Lotsof then stated no one seems to understand the damage that has 
been done to Benson’s public image with such affairs as the Stagecoach Trails lawsuit, which revolved 
around an attempt by a local property owner to replace an old trailer with a newer one.  Mr. Lotsof stated 
the Stagecoach Trails suit was extensively covered in the media and the only winners were the lawyers, 
which includes (former City Attorney) Michael Massee, adding the City Council rubberstamped him and he 
walked off with tens of thousands of dollars in City funds for delaying the settlement.  Mr. Lotsof then 
stated there is now a similar situation with his local radio station wanting to replace an old trailer and 
running into nothing but flack from the City government, including the City Attorney.  Mr. Lotsof then 
stated not only have his problems been broadcast on a powerful radio station but they’ve also been 
extensively covered in both the News-Sun and the Sierra Vista Herald.  Mr. Lotsof then asked the Council 
to put themselves in the position of a potential investor and asked if they would want to set up shop in a 
community that has contempt for property rights, if they would want to invest in a community that is 
running the local radio station out of town over a parking lot and if it was good public relations to throw out 
a media company.  Mr. Lotsof then stated it’s not just Stagecoach Trails and CAVE FM that have 
problems, adding two weeks ago, the chairman of the City’s Economic Development Committee informed 
the Council of two other business owners who were having issues with the City.  Mr. Lotsof then stated a 
good chunk of CAVE FM’s business is promoting sales of Benson businesses, which generates sales tax 
revenue for the City.  Mr. Lotsof then asked the Council if they were aware of the City’s advertising tax, 
adding when the radio station sells advertising to businesses in other communities, such as Sierra Vista, the 
advertising tax goes entirely to Benson.  Mr. Lotsof then stated running the radio station out of town will 
mean losing some revenue and most importantly, the bad publicity will damage Benson’s regional image so 
maybe now is the time for a little common sense to rear its ugly head.  Mr. Lotsof then stated the City 
Attorney and the City Zoning people will tell the Council to do nothing, but maybe this will be a good time 
for two Councilmembers to take the initiative and place something on the next Council agenda to 
reconsider Ordinance 574.  Mr. Lotsof then stated maybe a time has come to recognize that Benson needs 
to improve its image from hostile to business friendly.  Mr. Lotsof then asked the Council to put away their 
stamp pads and work with others to make Benson grow and prosper, adding no one will blame Council for 
keeping the local radio service.             
 
Mark Fenn stated he had been living out of the country for some time and that it was good to be home and 
see everyone.  Mr. Fenn then stated he didn’t envy the position the Council is in right now, adding he 
understands maybe more than most what they are facing and experiencing as they hear these comments.  
Mr. Fenn then stated he didn’t have any prepared remarks so he would be speaking from the heart and first 
wanted to express his appreciation for the service the Council is giving.  Mr. Fenn then stated if the Council 
counted all the time they put in as a Councilmember, the monthly salary of $200 and $400, would equate to 
less than minimum wage.  Mr. Fenn then stated he would also like to say hello to the new City Manager, 
who he has not yet formally met and to say hello to the rest of the City Staff here tonight.  Mr. Fenn then 
stated regarding the sales tax, he would implore the Council to pretend an increase isn’t an option and see 
what other things could be done to make up the shortfall, adding the Council has been dealt a blow with the 
State budget that was just passed and the repercussions are probably still yet to be felt.  Mr. Fenn then 
stated he recalls from his time served on the Council that the Council relied on information that was given 
to them from City Staff and from their own research, adding sometimes Councilmembers just have to go 
with their gut feeling and instinct and hope that it turns out good.  Mr. Fenn then stated as he looks back on 
past decisions he and the Council made, he could see that some decisions were good and some weren’t so 
good, adding he takes full blame for anything that didn’t work out as the Council hoped it would.  Mr. Fenn 
then stated much has been said and many ideas have been given tonight, adding he would ask Council to 
consider those ideas and involve the business community, who are those who have to make a payroll, 
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provide a service and make a profit in this City to stay viable and he would hope that the Council would 
consider their ideas and call them in.  Mr. Fenn then spoke about the issue the radio station is experiencing, 
adding with his experience as a builder in this community, he feels it is sometimes difficult to do business.  
Mr. Fenn then spoke about business and home construction being down and people choosing to build in the 
City vs. the County, noting construction sales tax, which is another discussion for another day, is revenue 
for the City when construction is within the City limits and the City should be helpful with the building 
process.  Mr. Fenn then stated again, he appreciates the work the Council is doing and the services provided 
here, adding in Argentina, where he lived for 3.5 years, they have much worse problems with 30% 
inflation, very high taxes, the people are oppressed and it’s just short of anarchy with a lot of unrest and 
insecurity.  Mr. Fenn then stated he has lived and experienced it, where the people don’t know where to 
turn and just have to survive and provide for themselves.      
 
Jeff Cook stated he was going to start by saying he wasn’t taking a side, but he thought about it and he is 
taking a side on the issue.  Councilmember Cook stated he shares all the concerns everyone in this town has 
and that the speakers have expressed here tonight, adding he also shares the concerns of the Council and the 
hard place they’ve been put in to deal with the budget, the Staff and all the difficult things the Staff has had 
to go through so far, noting the budget still isn’t settled.  Councilmember Cook then stated he is on both 
sides of the issue and thinks that everyone in the public and everyone on the Council need to work together, 
adding they need to be realistic with suggestions, noting some of the suggestions are good, but some of 
them are just wishful thinking.  Councilmember Cook then stated he understood from the Finance Director 
that by the time the City pays the bond fund payment and the Wal-Mart payment, there will still be a $1 
million loss this year, adding that is after cutting $2 million from the current budget during the last budget 
season.  Councilmember Cook then stated employees have been reduced by about 15%, which is around 15 
employees.  Councilmember Cook then stated he was curious, and while he didn’t want to pit any side 
against another side, he would really like to know where else the Council should cut because the $1 million 
still needs to be taken care of.  Councilmember Cook asked if the Council should cut the pool and Lion’s 
Park, then spoke about what could be expected from those cuts, such as graffiti, vandalism, drug problems, 
inactivity of the young people and asked what effect that will have on crime.  Councilmember Cook then 
asked if the Council should make cuts in the Planning & Zoning Department even though El Dorado is 
coming in on Highway 90.  Councilmember Cook then asked if the Council should cut the Gas Department, 
the Water Department and the Wastewater Department, adding all of those are actually losing money.  
Councilmember Cook then asked if the Council should cut the golf course, adding 2 people who spoke 
earlier, Art Bale and Jim Gray, rely on RVers for 6 months out of the year and both know and will tell the 
Council and everyone else in the City that RVers look for a golf course.  Councilmember Cook then stated 
RVers also contribute a lot to the City’s tax base.  Councilmember Cook then asked if the Council should 
cut the library, the Police Department and the Fire Department, adding he understands that when the Police 
and Fire Departments are cut, it will likely be that no service will be provided between the hours of 
midnight and 6 a.m., which will force insurance rates up for every house and every business in Benson and 
would probably be more expensive than a $.01 tax increase.  Councilmember Cook then stated Council has 
already shut down City offices at City Hall and the Recreation Department 1 day a week; every Friday.  
Councilmember Cook then stated furloughs will have to continue if something isn’t done, either by cutting 
somewhere or raising taxes.  Councilmember Cook then stated, again, everyone is in this together and 
everyone needs to be realistic about suggestions, adding part of that realism is that whatever is done is 
going to hurt someone; probably everyone.   
 


CITY MANAGER REPORT: 
 
City Manager William Stephens addressed Council, stating he would like to introduce the new Finance 
Director, Dustin DeSpain.  Mr. Stephens then gave the dates of upcoming meetings and events. 
 
Tuesday, March 10, 2015   – CANCELLED – Library Advisory Board, 4:00 p.m., City Library 
Saturday, March 21, 2015   – Historic Preservation Commission, 9:00 a.m., City Hall 
Monday, March 23, 2015   – City Council Worksession, 6:00 p.m., City Hall 
    City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 
Tuesday, March 24, 2015   – Community Watershed Alliance, 6:30 p.m., City Hall 
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NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. Discussion and possible action on the Consent Agenda    


 
1a. Minutes of the February 9, 2015 Regular Meeting 
1b. Invoices processed for the period from February 12, 2015 through February 28, 2015 
 
Councilmember Lambert moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Seconded by Councilmember Boyle.  
Motion passed 7-0. 
 


2. Discussion and possible action on Resolution 9-2015 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 
Arizona, approving Pierce Wines Arizona, LLC’s application for a March 21, 2015 Wine Festival 
License/Wine Fair License at the San Pedro Golf Course, 926 N. Madison, Benson, Arizona  
 
Deputy City Clerk Andrew Parkin stated Mark and Rona McMillan of Pierce Wines and Director of Golf 
Joe DelVecchio were present should Council have any questions.  Councilmember Boyle asked Mr. and 
Mrs. McMillan to tell the Council about the event.  Ms. McMillan stated the Chamber of Commerce was 
inviting winter visitors to the Golf Club and two wineries were going to be bringing over wine for sampling 
and purchase, adding the event is a chance to thank the winter visitors for coming to Benson.  
Councilmember Konrad stated this is for the winter visitors and hopefully there will be a lot of them 
attending and enjoying the event.  Councilmember Lambert stated the layout of the event shown on the 
application includes an id checkpoint with certain sections being separated so people can come in and have 
their id checked before sampling the wines, adding he thinks it’s a great event.  Councilmember Cook 
stated events and tournaments produce revenue for the Golf Course and asked if Mr. DelVecchio could let 
the Council know on a regular basis, how much these help the Golf Course.  Mayor King stated that was 
not on the agenda and couldn’t be discussed.         
 
Vice Mayor McGoffin moved to approve Resolution 9-2015.  Seconded by Councilmember Lambert.  
Motion passed 7-0.  
   


3. Discussion and possible action on Resolution 10-2015 of the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Benson, Arizona, approving Zarpara Vineyard’s application for a March 21, 2015 Wine Festival 
License/Wine Fair License at the San Pedro Golf Course, 926 N. Madison, Benson, Arizona  
 
Mayor King stated this item is basically the same as the previous item.  Councilmember Konrad moved to 
approve Resolution 10-2015.  Seconded by Vice Mayor McGoffin.  Councilmember Wangsness stated he 
would like to see this become an annual event, adding this would be good for the City.  Motion passed 7-0.   
 


4. Discussion and possible action on the Benson Economic Development Committee including the 
Resignation of Ron Brooks, the Resignation of Stephen Insalaco, the Appointment of Debra Crafts 
and the possible retention, reformation, or dissolution of the committee as in proposed Ordinance 
576 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, Arizona, amending the Benson City Code, 
Chapter 18 “Boards, Commissions and Committees,” Article 18-6, “Benson Economic Development 
Committee” to disband and delete any reference to the Benson Economic Development Committee in 
the Benson City Code    
 
City Manager William Stephens stated this is the continuation of an item discussed in a previous Council 
meeting and the worksession earlier this evening, adding it is now on the agenda for Council to discuss, 
direct or take action.  City Attorney Gary Cohen stated as a reminder, there needs to be an odd number of 
committee members, assuming the Benson Economic Development Committee (BEDC) continues.  Mr. 
Cohen then stated accepting the two submitted resignations would reduce the committee to 7 members, 
adding one application for an appointment has been submitted, noting if the Council approved the 
application; the membership would then increase to 8 members, which can’t be done.  Councilmember 
Wangsness asked if the current application could be held until another application for an appointment was 
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submitted with Mr. Cohen stating the Council could choose to have that done.  Councilmember Wangsness 
then stated whether there were 8 or 9 members; a vote of the majority would still require 5 votes with Mr. 
Cohen stating while that may be the case, the ordinance requires the committee to consist of an odd number 
of members.  Vice Mayor McGoffin confirmed that the applicant to be considered for an appointment could 
still attend meetings and participate until the Council received another application to consider with Mr. 
Cohen stating that was correct.  Councilmember Wangsness asked what would have happened had only one 
resignation had been submitted; noting the membership would have dropped to 8 members with Mr. Cohen 
stating the application for the appointment could then have been considered and if approved, would have 
resulted in 9 members.  Mr. Cohen then stated the Council just needs to act in good faith to have an odd 
number of members when they consider resignations and applications.  Councilmember Wangsness stated 
there could be an even number of members temporarily if there were other resignations, adding the Council 
would then immediately put out a request for more volunteers with Mr. Cohen stating from a legal 
perspective, he discerns a difference between temporarily having an even number due to a resignation 
being submitted and the current situation where the Council has the option to either comply with the 
ordinance or not, but it was up to the Council how to proceed.   
 
Councilmember Lambert stated he put this item on the agenda for the exact reason that the Council had two 
resignations and 1 application.  Councilmember Lambert then stated since then he had a lengthy meeting 
with the BEDC Chairman, adding he also met with the applicant.  Councilmember Lambert then stated he 
feels that it would be in the best interest of the committee if the Council approved the 2 resignations which 
would leave 7 members on the committee and suspend the application until another application is 
submitted.  Councilmember Lambert stated he also spoke to Committee Member Jack Comaduran, who 
thinks he has someone who is going to be submitting an application and if that is so, the Council can 
consider appointing those two applicants, bringing the number of members back up to 9.  Councilmember 
Lambert then moved to approve the resignations of Ron Brooks and Stephen Insalaco, taking the 
committee to 7 members and suspending the appointment of Debra Crafts until another application is 
submitted.  Seconded by Vice Mayor McGoffin.  Councilmember Wangsness asked if the motion needed to 
include leaving the City Code as it stands with Councilmember Lambert stating his motion didn’t need to 
include anything regarding the Code since nothing in the Code was changing.  Motion then passed 7-0.    
   


5. Discussion and possible action on suspending Mayor and Council salaries until employee furloughs 
are curtailed and City offices/functions are restored to normal working days and hours   
 
Councilmember Wangsness stated he agrees with the spirit of the idea, but he thinks this should be a 
personal choice for Councilmembers instead of the Council trying to impose it on every Councilmember.  
Councilmember Konrad stated he put this on the agenda, adding it basically goes back to the campaign and 
some of the things that were brought to his attention at that time, adding one of the concerns was that the 
Council had furloughed people, but had not considered making any kind of a cut at the Council level.  
Councilmember Konrad then stated he put this item on the agenda to stimulate the discussion and as soon 
as it was publicized, he started getting public comments asking him to withdraw it due to the hours 
Councilmembers spend on City business, researching and interacting, adding the pay they receive is 
comparable to minimum wage.  Councilmember Konrad then stated the Council needs to do something, 
adding they can’t continue to run the City with employees furloughed because it’s bad business to have the 
City offices closed on Fridays.  Councilmember Konrad then stated his old bosses once said, when business 
is down, the worst thing you can do is let the store front deteriorate, adding he thinks that is what is being 
done by closing City offices on Friday and he would like to see the Council agree to work diligently to get 
these furloughs behind them and get the hours restored to where they need to be.  Councilmember Konrad 
stated he understands the budget concerns and that is not on this agenda item, but it is something to keep in 
mind as the Council moves forward with the budget, adding he is willing to drop it if the Councilmembers 
are all willing to step up and take responsibility and move in a direction to get the situation reversed and get 
employees back to work.     
 
Mayor King then stated he doesn’t like City offices being closed on Fridays, adding he had a couple 
students from NAU come down and interview him at the park because the offices were closed.  Mayor 
King then stated he understands the situation but he can’t plan anything on Fridays, adding it’s a heavy 
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burden to have City offices closed on Fridays.  Mayor King then stated the Council has some tough 
decisions to make and the Council needs to be bold in making those decisions.   
 
Vice Mayor McGoffin stated the Council has a lot of work coming up.   
 
Councilmember Konrad then stated that was one of the concerns expressed to him and whether 
Councilmembers would have the level of interest they need if they aren’t compensated for what they are 
doing, adding he has to agree with that, but again, the Council needs to get off that center and do something 
to get this corrected.  Councilmember Konrad then stated this is all going to work into the budget sessions, 
but the Council needs to come forward with some creative ideas and see what they can do.  Councilmember 
Konrad then stated the other thing that plays into this is damage repair, stating there are morale problems 
and people have left who thought they would be lifetime employees.  Councilmember Konrad then stated 
of course, no one fully owes an employee a job and it’s a 2-way street, but the problem is that some loyal 
employees left because of these furloughs, adding the City is feeling the effects from it and he has a strong 
feeling that it’s time to get it over with and put it behind them.     
 
Councilmember Wangsness stated it may be possible for employees to take turns furloughing on Mondays 
and Fridays so the offices can stay open with half the employees.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated 
as far as the Council’s compensation, he wasn’t sure if the Council could take any action, adding the only 
thing he found in the City Code regarding compensation was in Chapter 2, Section 2-1-5, and says a 
Councilmember would not be paid if they missed 2 or more consecutive meetings.  Councilmember 
Wangsness then stated he thinks Council compensation is like a contract between each individual 
Councilmember and the voters who put them in office.   
 
Mayor King stated in the past, he gave up half his pay, receiving only $100.00 per month, and then stated 
he spent time and money on fuel, internet for communication purposes and things like that.  Mayor King 
then stated not being paid is something he is willing to do if he has to, but stated the question to ask was if 
it would affect the Council continuing to work and push as hard as they do when they do not get paid.  
Mayor King then stated he knew he stayed on top of things, but there were some days that you scratch your 
head and wonder about the cost on Councilmembers too.  Mayor King then stated he appreciated this being 
brought up and if it’s something the Council has to do, they have to do it, but he’d like to see it as 
something the Council can prevent rather than something they choose.   
 
Councilmember Boyle stated Councilmember Konrad had the right idea but felt the Councilmembers 
should do this on an individual basis, adding if they can afford it, fine and if not, that was fine too and it 
should be a private thing between each Councilmember and the City.   
 
Councilmember Cook stated he received an email from Councilmember Wangsness that requests 
Councilmember Wangsness not be paid starting in April, adding Councilmember Wangsness asked to be 
placed on furloughs as long as the employee furloughs last.  Councilmember Cook then stated his own 
situation is that his income is under $875.00 per month, adding the $46.00 per week the Council 
compensation amounts to, helps him.  Councilmember Cook then stated what Councilmember Wangsness 
is doing regarding the compensation is fabulous and if this is something he or any other Councilmember 
wants to do voluntarily, it would be great, but to make it mandatory would not.   
 
Councilmember Wangsness thanked Councilmember Cook, but stated his intention was for his request not 
to be made public.   
 
Councilmember Lambert stated everyone had touched on everything he was going to say.   
 
Mayor King asked if there was any further discussion with Councilmember Cook stating the item would 
die if no one makes a motion.  City Attorney Gary Cohen stated the Council could also table the item.  
Councilmember Konrad then moved to table this item.  Seconded by Councilmember Boyle.  Motion 
passed 7-0. 
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EXECUTIVE SESSION:   Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(1),(3) and/or (4),  discussion or consultation for 
legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public body, and possible instruction to the attorney or attorneys 
of the public body, about enforcing law(s) involving residency and/or principle place of abode requirements for 
councilmembers, and/or creating rules requiring Councilmembers’ physical presence at Council meetings.    


 
Vice Mayor McGoffin moved to enter into an executive session with Mayor and Council, the City 
Manager, the City Attorney and the Deputy City Clerk at 8:10 p.m.  Seconded by Councilmember Boyle.  
Motion passed 7-0. 
 
Council reconvened at 9:17 p.m.  
 


6. Discussion and possible direction to Staff about enforcing law(s) involving residency and/or principle 
place of abode requirements for Councilmembers’ and/or drafting rules, and/or Code revision 
defining Councilmembers’ requirements involving residency, principle place of abode and/or 
physical presence at Council meetings  
 
Mayor King stated before he allowed any discussion, he wanted to ask City Attorney Gary Cohen to jump 
in anytime he may see the Council start to violate any laws.   
 
Councilmember Wangsness stated the Council was making a big mistake.   
 
Vice Mayor McGoffin stated she thinks the Council needs to put this item on the next Council agenda, to 
discuss City and State laws regarding a Councilmember’s presence at meetings.  Vice Mayor McGoffin 
then stated she thinks the City Code and State Statutes are pretty clear in deciding whether the seat should 
be vacant, adding if the Code needs to be fine-tuned a bit, she would leave that up to the Council, again 
stating, she thinks it should be on the next agenda.   
 
Councilmember Cook stated he agreed with that completely and thinks other good suggestions have been to 
quantify how many absences or telephonic attendances could be allowed sequentially and also, how many 
could be allowed accumulatively and asked City Attorney Gary Cohen to draft language regarding that, but 
leaving the numbers blank to be determined by the Council.   
 
Councilmember Lambert stated he thought the issue was pretty clear in the City Code and in A.R.S. §9-232 
and also §38-291(6), that the position should be vacated, adding he thinks the Council should put it on the 
next agenda with the option to possibly vacate the seat.   
 
Councilmember Konrad stated he would like to consider the laws, adding he doesn’t have the specific 
section with him, but in the City Code, it says the Council can grant a 50-day extension to Councilmember 
Wangsness.  Councilmember Konrad then stated he believed it would be in the best interest of the Council 
to proceed with that as an option as well, adding that would allow there to be no upheaval on the Council 
right now, adding he would like for that language to be included somehow. 
 
Councilmember Wangsness stated he would like to say that he does not consider himself to be vacant from 
the office, adding he has a very high attendance rating, noting he may not be here physically all the time, 
but he is definitely here in spirit.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated he disagrees with the definition or 
the interpretation.  Mr. Cohen stated the Council couldn’t discuss any interpretation because it was the 
subject of the executive session, then stated at this point, there has been no action taken to vacate anything, 
adding direction to Staff is the only thing on the agenda.  Councilmember Wangsness asked if he could 
read part of the City Code for people to decide for themselves with Mr. Cohen stating he could.  
Councilmember Wangsness then read from the City Code, Chapter 2, Section 2-1-4(B), stating it clearly 
says, “City residence for the purposes of qualification to serve on the City Council consists of maintaining 
by the Councilmember, a principle place of abode for the Councilmember and the Councilmember’s 
family, within the City” which he maintains is what he is doing.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated 
the IRS definition of a principle place of abode in their tax code, is where “the individual lives unless 
temporarily absent due to special circumstances.  Temporary absence from the household due to special 
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circumstances, such as illness, education, business, vacation or military service will not change an 
individual’s principle place of abode.”  Councilmember Wangsness then stated he maintains that if he had 
been in the National Guard and was called up for a year, the same thing would still apply, adding he has 
been attending Council meetings the whole time, unlike certain other Councilmembers.   
 
Mayor King then asked if there was any further discussion.  Councilmember Lambert stated when 
Councilmember Wangsness was reading from the City Code, he left off at a very important part, then read 
from the Code stating “in the event that a Councilmember removes their principle place of abode to a 
location outside the City limits for a period of more than 50 consecutive days, the Council seat to which 
such Councilmember was elected, shall be deemed vacated by operation of law.”  Councilmember 
Wangsness then stated he was maintaining that he had not removed his principle place of abode based on 
the definition by the IRS.  Councilmember Cook added or HUD or Food Stamps.  Councilmember 
Wangsness stated the Council discussion was not about HUD or Food Stamps, but was about removing an 
elected official.  Councilmember Cook stated that was why the Council was looking at the City Code, 
adding the City Code applies to elected officials of the City.  Councilmember Konrad stated for reference, 
the section of the Code he was referring to earlier was the section that contained the provision for the 50-
day extension.  Mayor King thanked Councilmember Konrad for bringing that up.   
 
Mayor King then stated Staff had been directed with City Attorney Gary Cohen stating he believed he 
heard the direction to Staff to be to place on the agenda the issue of possible action to declare 
Councilmember Wangsness’ seat vacant and also to prepare a draft document with provisions regarding the 
physical presence of Councilmembers and having some limitations both on a accumulative basis and on a 
consecutive basis as to the number of meetings where one cannot be physically present.  Mr. Cohen then 
stated if someone could make that a motion and it was seconded and passed, Staff would have that 
direction.  Vice Mayor McGoffin stated she would make such motion.  Councilmember Konrad asked what 
exactly the motion was with Vice Mayor McGoffin stating the motion was to put on the agenda the 
possibility of vacating the Council seat and all those things that were going to be worked into the City 
Code.  Councilmember Konrad confirmed that the timeframes would be determined by the Council with 
Vice Mayor McGoffin confirming the Council would decide those at the Council meeting.  Councilmember 
Konrad then seconded the motion.  Motion then passed 6-1 with Councilmember Wangsness voting nay.     
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  None 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  


 
Vice Mayor McGoffin moved to adjourn at 9:25 p.m.  Seconded by Councilmember Boyle.  Motion passed 
7-0.   
 
 


                  
____________________________ 


                 Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 
  ATTEST: 
   


____________________________   
  Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
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Discussion:  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z) is a recommendation body, focusing on planning and development 
proposals and regulations prior to their formal adoption by Council.  P&Z holds public hearings on development 
proposals to gather public input, and reviews and makes recommendations on proposed code changes.     
 
P&Z has seven (7) positions, of which six (6) are filled.  The position became vacant due to a resignation in 
early-2015.  This vacant term expires on July 31, 2015 so the applicant would serve less than 6 months before 
the term would renew.  Staff has received one new application to fill this vacant position.  There are no 
qualifications applicants must meet to apply for, or be appointed to, the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
With residency requirements, applicants must be residents of the City of Benson. 
 
 


Member 1 Term  2012-2015 filled 
Member 2 Term  2012-2015 filled 
Member 3 Term  2012-2015 to be filled - have interested applicant 
Member 4 Term  2013-2016 filled 
Member 5 Term  2013-2016 filled 
Member 6 Term  2014-2017 filled 
Member 7 Term  2014-2017 filled 


 
Attachments: Application for Barbara Thompson 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1c 
                                               
From: Bradley J. Hamilton, P.E. Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
          
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Appointment of Barbara Thompson to the Benson Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                           April 13, 2015 







Please state why you 
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APPLICATION FOR BOARD, COMMITTEE OR COMMISSION 
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Address: 
Phone: 
Email: 


Which Board, Committee or Commission are you interested in? 
-17  


What do you believe to be the key responsibility o) this position? 	 / 
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Please state why you believe that a Board Member, Committee Member di Commissioner can 
make a community better. - 
/4 	 tte CI1 Ai /.4) -ti2e, 	 u 


A19-W..5 


.— 
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What personal and/or professional experience or background will be advantages to this Board, 
. 	. 	. 	. 


Each Board, Committee or Commission has scheduled meetings. The meetings could last 2 or 
3 hours. Will this be a hardship? 


Board Members, Committee Members or Commissioners may be asked to participate in sub-
committees that meet other than the regularly scheduled meeting time. Will you be able to 
participate? 


revised 6-1-2012 
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List any Professional, trade, business, or civic activities and offices held. You may exclude 
memberships which would reveal sex, race, religion, national origin, age, ancestry, or 
handicap or other protected status. 


/ -  


Have you been convicted of a felony within the last seven (7) years? 	Yes 	No 
If yes please explain. A positive answer will not necessarily disqualify you from 
consideration. 


ofFir)? 


APPLICANT' S STATEMENT 
I certify that answers given herein are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I 
authorize investigation of all statements contained in this application for appointment to the 
Board, Committee or Commission as may be necessary in arriving at an appointment decision 
by the City Council. 


In the event of appointment, 


• I understand that false or misleading information given in my application may 
result in my being excused from the Board, Committee or Commission. 


• I understand that attendance is important and I will strive to attend all meetings 
and that continual absences will result in my being excused from the Board, 
Committee or Commission. 


• I understand that I am required to abide by all Arizona and City of Benson 
Statutes and Regulations adopted by these governing organizations. 


• I understand that this application is subject to the Arizona Open Records law 
—.and should not be considered cafidential. 


of Applicant 	 Date 


Office Use Only: 


Appointment Date 


Term of Position 


Date of Resignation/Term End 


Notification by: 


revised 6-1-2012 







                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion: 
  
Attached is a list of large and/or unusual invoices processed by the Finance Department during the period from 
March 13, 2015 through March 31, 2015.  The total of the invoices is $174,818.41. 
 
  
 
 
 


Arizona Public Safety Retirement Bi-weekly retirement contribution 9,871.10     
Arizona State Retirement Bi-weekly retirement contribution 19,790.28   
AZ Municipal Risk Retention Pool Quarterly Insurance Premium 44,204.00   
Cochise County Transfer Station Expenses 15,513.05   
Cochise County Treasurer Consolidated Court Charges FY14/15-Q3 9,000.00     
Mesch, Clark & Rothschild Attorney Fees 4,096.63     
SSVEC Monthly City Electric Bill 30,273.62   


132,748.68  
76%


TOTAL LARGE INVOICES
Invoices listed above as a percentage of all invoices processed  


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval of invoices processed for the period from March 13, 2015 through March 31, 2015 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1d 
                                               
From: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Invoices processed for the period from March 13, 2015 through March 31, 2015 
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                   April 13, 2015 
 







CITY OF BENSON Check Register - Council Packets Page:     1


Check Issue Dates: 3/13/2015 - 3/31/2015 Apr 01, 2015  12:11PM


Report Criteria:


Report type:  Summary


Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


03/15 03/19/2015 459 6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIBUTING 956.95 M


03/15 03/26/2015 1163 1490 AZ STATE RETIREMENT    ACC REC 19,790.28 M


03/15 03/19/2015 4045 3651 ETS CORPORATION 1,243.44 M


03/15 03/19/2015 7017 4118 GREYHOUND 93.08 M


03/15 03/19/2015 44098 1027 A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES LTD 285.91


03/15 03/19/2015 44099 1095 AIRGAS USA, LLC 174.53


03/15 03/19/2015 44100 1117 ALL CREATURES VETERINARY SVC 628.50


03/15 03/19/2015 44101 1170 AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSN. 175.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44102 1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 92.07


03/15 03/19/2015 44103 1063 ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 281.25


03/15 03/19/2015 44104 1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 589.50


03/15 03/19/2015 44105 11628 ARLENE RUSH 75.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44106 11629 BENSON FIREMATES 10.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44107 2075 BENSON NAPA 1,403.38


03/15 03/19/2015 44108 2304 BROWN & ASSOCIATES 2,360.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44109 2592 CENTRAL ALARM INC 139.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44110 2599 CENTURYLINK 1,860.44


03/15 03/19/2015 44111 2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 1,620.20


03/15 03/19/2015 44112 2839 COCA COLA REFRESHMENTS 491.06


03/15 03/19/2015 44113 2870 COCHISE COUNTY TREASURER 15,513.05


03/15 03/19/2015 44114 3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 1,050.73


03/15 03/19/2015 44115 3704 FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 201.40


03/15 03/19/2015 44116 11627 GENE G LUTCAVICH 114.14


03/15 03/19/2015 44117 4644 JOSEPH ELLIOTT USA 930.03


03/15 03/19/2015 44118 4772 KENDALL AND SON 438.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44119 5618 L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 1,270.53


03/15 03/19/2015 44120 5989 LEGALSHIELD 77.70


03/15 03/19/2015 44121 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 60.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44122 5164 MARY LEE TIERNAN 75.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44123 5212 MCI COMM SERVICE 32.05


03/15 03/19/2015 44124 5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 989.67


03/15 03/19/2015 44125 5268 MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD PC 4,096.63


03/15 03/19/2015 44126 5544 NIKE USA, INC 632.25


03/15 03/19/2015 44127 5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 57.58


03/15 03/19/2015 44128 5847 PET DOCTOR 83.33


03/15 03/19/2015 44129 5923 PING 53.65


03/15 03/19/2015 44130 6066 PUBLIC SURPLUS 7.20


03/15 03/19/2015 44131 7731 PURCELL WESTERN STATES TIRE 575.53


03/15 03/19/2015 44132 6119 R&R PRODUCTS INC 37.64


03/15 03/19/2015 44133 6480 SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 598.84


03/15 03/19/2015 44134 6564 SENERGY PETROLEUM 2,295.50


03/15 03/19/2015 44135 6570 SHANNON'S CARQUEST AUTO PARTS 168.47


03/15 03/19/2015 44136 6708 SIMS MURRAY, LTD 50.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44137 1415 STOTZ EQUIPMENT 421.02


03/15 03/19/2015 44138 7936 THE LOCAL PAGES 373.67


03/15 03/19/2015 44139 7291 TREJO REFRIGERATION AND 183.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44140 7315 TUCSON CALIBRATION SERVICES 810.00


03/15 03/19/2015 44141 7493 UNIFIRST CORPORATION 1,022.98


03/15 03/19/2015 44142 7402 US FOODS 1,791.90


03/15 03/19/2015 44143 7690 WASTEWATER MAINTENANCE INC 525.00


03/15 03/26/2015 44144 1027 A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES LTD 295.55


03/15 03/26/2015 44145 11630 ANDREA M GARCIA 124.27


03/15 03/26/2015 44146 1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 483.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check
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GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


03/15 03/26/2015 44147 1728 AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POOL 44,204.00


03/15 03/26/2015 44148 1430 AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT 9,871.10


03/15 03/26/2015 44149 2632 CES 28.07


03/15 03/26/2015 44150 2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 453.29


03/15 03/26/2015 44151 2784 CNG 1,701.25


03/15 03/26/2015 44152 2890 COCHISE CO HIGHWAY & FLOODPLAIN DEPT 892.31


03/15 03/26/2015 44153 2842 COCHISE COUNTY TREASURER 9,000.00


03/15 03/26/2015 44154 3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 228.57


03/15 03/26/2015 44155 11632 GREGORY HAMMONDS 20.29


03/15 03/26/2015 44156 4293 HORIZON IRRIGATION 334.04


03/15 03/26/2015 44157 4419 INTERACTIVE CONTROLS, INC 419.80


03/15 03/26/2015 44158 4440 J & D STEAM CLEANING 275.00


03/15 03/26/2015 44159 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 246.00


03/15 03/26/2015 44160 11631 MAISEY WAGNER 16.68


03/15 03/26/2015 44161 5157 MARYLAND CHILD SUPPORT ACCOUNT 69.81


03/15 03/26/2015 44162 5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 764.10


03/15 03/26/2015 44163 5495 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 945.00


03/15 03/26/2015 44164 5663 OFFICE SMART INC 36.99


03/15 03/26/2015 44165 5950 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL 377.93


03/15 03/26/2015 44166 6180 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 178.96


03/15 03/26/2015 44167 6750 SOUTHEASTERN  ARIZONA 4,319.00


03/15 03/26/2015 44168 6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY ELEC 30,273.62


03/15 03/26/2015 44169 2791 SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARINGHOUSE 373.85


03/15 03/26/2015 44170 7712 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 423.67


03/15 03/26/2015 44171 7219 TIAA-CREF AS AGENT FOR JPM 175.00


03/15 03/26/2015 44172 7510 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COMPANY 601.35


03/15 03/26/2015 44173 7402 US FOODS 764.45


03/15 03/26/2015 44174 7685 WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGISTRY 115.38


          Grand Totals:  174,818.41


Report Criteria:


Report type:  Summary


Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check
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Report Criteria:


Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.


Only paid invoices included.


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


GENERAL FUND


10-22250  RETIREMENT PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND AZ STATE RETIREMENT    ACC  032015 03/26/2015 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION 19,790.28


GENERAL FUND NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SO 032015 03/26/2015 DEFERRED COMPENSATION 945.00


GENERAL FUND TIAA-CREF AS AGENT FOR JP 032015 03/26/2015 #403743 - VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT 175.00


          Total 10-22250  RETIREMENT PAYABLE: 20,910.28


10-22255  POLICE DEPARTMENT RET PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREME 032015 03/26/2015 P.D. RETIREMENT 9,555.77


GENERAL FUND AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREME 032015A 03/26/2015 F.D. RETIREMENT 315.33


          Total 10-22255  POLICE DEPARTMENT RET PAYABLE: 9,871.10


10-22265  GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND MARYLAND CHILD SUPPORT A L-032015 03/26/2015 #340002729 69.81


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN A-032015 03/26/2015 #0002160133-00 52.93


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN D-032015 03/26/2015 #000379351700 139.90


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN L-032015 03/26/2015 #000508942900 181.02


GENERAL FUND WASHINGTON STATE SUPPOR D-032015 03/26/2015 IN 3609574 115.38


          Total 10-22265  GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE: 559.04


10-22293  PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND LEGALSHIELD 030515 03/05/2015 PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICE 77.70


          Total 10-22293  PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES: 77.70


10-301-71  PROPERTY RENTALS


GENERAL FUND ARLENE RUSH 031215 03/12/2015 CENTER RENTAL REFUND 75.00


GENERAL FUND BENSON FIREMATES 031615 03/16/2015 REFUND CENTER RENTAL 10.00


          Total 10-301-71  PROPERTY RENTALS: 85.00


10-305-95  OTHER INCOME


GENERAL FUND PUBLIC SURPLUS 022815 02/28/2015 AUCTION FEES 7.20


          Total 10-305-95  OTHER INCOME: 7.20


10-41-315  LEGAL FEES


GENERAL FUND SIMS MURRAY, LTD 12556 02/28/2015 FEBRUARY 2015 BILLING 50.00


          Total 10-41-315  LEGAL FEES: 50.00


10-41-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030615 03/06/2015 UTILITIES 322.38


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 030115A 03/01/2015 TV 25.95


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 516.84


          Total 10-41-410  UTILITIES: 865.17


10-41-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030115 03/01/2015 MONTHLY SERVICE 55.47
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 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 030115A 03/01/2015 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICES 199.00


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 030115A 03/01/2015 TELEPHONE 646.78


          Total 10-41-415  TELEPHONE: 901.25


10-41-440  RENTALS


GENERAL FUND PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINAN 6924393-MR15 03/13/2015 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE 12/30/14-03/30/1 377.93


          Total 10-41-440  RENTALS: 377.93


10-41-470  UNIFORMS


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 UNIFORMS 29.28


          Total 10-41-470  UNIFORMS: 29.28


10-41-520  INSURANCE


GENERAL FUND AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9275/9276 03/08/2015 INSURANCE 13,629.46


          Total 10-41-520  INSURANCE: 13,629.46


10-41-540  PUBLIC NOTICES, ADVERTISING


GENERAL FUND SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 022815 02/28/2015 RECLASSIFY ACCOUNT 34.60-


          Total 10-41-540  PUBLIC NOTICES, ADVERTISING: 34.60-


10-41-542  ADVERTISING - HR


GENERAL FUND SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 022815 02/28/2015 #6- HELP WANTED ADS 242.14


GENERAL FUND SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 022815 02/28/2015 RECLASSIFY ACCOUNT 34.60


          Total 10-41-542  ADVERTISING - HR: 276.74


10-41-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 MATS 65.36


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 20.58


          Total 10-41-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 85.94


10-41-670  VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT


GENERAL FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 47.30


GENERAL FUND SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 022815 02/28/2015 SHOP LABOR, VALVE STEM - #2600 86.69


          Total 10-41-670  VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT: 133.99


10-43-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND BROWN & ASSOCIATES 27525 02/27/2015 PLAN REVIEW, BUILDING OFFICIAL, INSPEC 2,360.00


          Total 10-43-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 2,360.00


10-43-470  UNIFORMS


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 UNIFORMS 29.28


          Total 10-43-470  UNIFORMS: 29.28


10-43-670  VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT


GENERAL FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 47.30
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 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


          Total 10-43-670  VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT: 47.30


10-45-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030615 03/06/2015 UTILITIES 203.67


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 256.81


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 634.51


          Total 10-45-410  UTILITIES: 1,094.99


10-45-415  TELECOMMUNICATIONS


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030115 03/01/2015 MONTHLY SERVICE 68.01


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030115 03/01/2015 MONTHLY SERVICE 363.66


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030115A 03/01/2015 MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 164.30


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 030115 03/01/2015 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICES 179.00


          Total 10-45-415  TELECOMMUNICATIONS: 774.97


10-45-593  ANIMAL CONTROL MEDICAL


GENERAL FUND COCHISE COUNTY TREASURE 21079 03/04/2015 DOMESTIC ANIMALS 8.00


          Total 10-45-593  ANIMAL CONTROL MEDICAL: 8.00


10-45-594  ANIMAL MEDICAL FROM DONATIONS


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  135704A 02/04/2015 MEDICAL CARE 243.00


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  135723 02/06/2015 SPAY CANINE 243.00


GENERAL FUND PET DOCTOR 12074 03/02/2015 CANINE SPAY 83.33


          Total 10-45-594  ANIMAL MEDICAL FROM DONATIONS: 569.33


10-45-595  SPAY & NEUTER FROM GRANTS


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  135704 02/04/2015 SPAY CANINE 142.50


GENERAL FUND ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 020415 02/04/2015 CANINE NEUTER, RABIES 60.00


GENERAL FUND ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 020515 02/05/2015 CANINE SPAY 97.50


GENERAL FUND ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 020515A 02/05/2015 FELINE SPAY 63.75


GENERAL FUND ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 021815 02/18/2015 FELINE SPAY 60.00


          Total 10-45-595  SPAY & NEUTER FROM GRANTS: 423.75


10-45-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 MATS 20.92


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 20.59


          Total 10-45-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 41.51


10-46-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030615 03/06/2015 UTILITIES 203.67


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 652.48


          Total 10-46-410  UTILITIES: 856.15


10-46-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030115 03/01/2015 MONTHLY SERVICE 154.00


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 030615 03/06/2015 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICES 59.00


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 030615 03/06/2015 TELEPHONE 30.51
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Invoice Amount


          Total 10-46-415  TELEPHONE: 243.51


10-46-432  STATION REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 MATS, TOWELS 31.80


          Total 10-46-432  STATION REPAIRS & MAINT: 31.80


10-46-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 20.58


          Total 10-46-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 20.58


10-46-660  FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND SENERGY PETROLEUM 146468 03/09/2015 DIESEL 382.58


          Total 10-46-660  FUEL & OIL: 382.58


10-47-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND COCHISE COUNTY TREASURE 2014/15-Q1 10/01/2014 CONSOLIDATED COURT FY 14/15 7/1-9/30/1 9,000.00


          Total 10-47-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 9,000.00


10-49-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030615 03/06/2015 UTILITIES 337.93


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 546.14


          Total 10-49-410  UTILITIES: 884.07


10-49-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COM 508445 03/16/2015 INSPECT FIRE ALARM ANNUAL 350.00


          Total 10-49-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 350.00


10-49-590  DUES


GENERAL FUND AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSN. 031015 03/10/2015 MEMBERSHIP DUES 2015 175.00


          Total 10-49-590  DUES: 175.00


10-49-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND OFFICE DEPOT, INC 757976616001 02/27/2015 OFFICE SUPPIES 57.58


          Total 10-49-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 57.58


10-49-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 MATS 53.56


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 4.92


          Total 10-49-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 58.48


10-49-696  BOOKS


GENERAL FUND RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 75090799 03/02/2015 BOOKS ON CD 143.97


GENERAL FUND RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 75096306 03/06/2015 BOOK ON CD 34.99


          Total 10-49-696  BOOKS: 178.96
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 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


10-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC


GENERAL FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COB PPE 0213 02/23/2015 DOC LABOR - 1/31/15 - 2/13/15 157.50


GENERAL FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COB PPE 0227 03/10/2015 DOC LABOR - 2/14 - 2/27/15 99.00


          Total 10-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC: 256.50


10-50-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 1,106.86


          Total 10-50-410  UTILITIES: 1,106.86


10-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND HORIZON IRRIGATION 2W117880 03/05/2015 IRRIGATION PARTS FOR VISITORS CENTER 334.04


GENERAL FUND L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 46.64


          Total 10-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 380.68


10-50-470  UNIFORMS


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 UNIFORMS 85.72


          Total 10-50-470  UNIFORMS: 85.72


10-50-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND COCHISE COUNTY TREASURE 21079 03/04/2015 CONSTRUCTION DEMO WASTE 6.60


          Total 10-50-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES: 6.60


10-50-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND SENERGY PETROLEUM 146468 03/09/2015 DIESEL 382.58


          Total 10-50-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 382.58


10-50-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 47.30


          Total 10-50-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 47.30


10-57-410  UTILITIES - POOL


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 575.58


          Total 10-57-410  UTILITIES - POOL: 575.58


10-57-412  UTILITIES - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 031315 03/13/2015 UTILITIES 305.46


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 586.57


          Total 10-57-412  UTILITIES - COMM CENTER: 892.03


10-57-417  TELEPHONE - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 031015 03/10/2015 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICES 59.00


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 031015 03/10/2015 TELEPHONE 80.06


          Total 10-57-417  TELEPHONE - COMM CENTER: 139.06


10-57-432  REPAIRS & MAINT - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND CES SAF/026899 03/02/2015 BULBS 28.07


GENERAL FUND UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COM 508448 03/16/2015 INSPECT WATER BASED ANNUAL 106.35
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          Total 10-57-432  REPAIRS & MAINT - COMM CENTER: 134.42


10-57-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 4.92


          Total 10-57-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 4.92


10-57-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 15.62


          Total 10-57-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 15.62


10-58-546  FOOD BANK


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030615 03/06/2015 UTILITIES 101.07


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 316.00


          Total 10-58-546  FOOD BANK: 417.07


10-60-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030615 03/06/2015 UTILITIES 60.32


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 105.90


          Total 10-60-410  UTILITIES: 166.22


10-60-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030115 03/01/2015 MONTHLY SERVICE 230.49


          Total 10-60-415  TELEPHONE: 230.49


10-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COM 508446 03/16/2015 INSPECT WET CHEMICAL SYSTEM 145.00


          Total 10-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 145.00


10-60-635  Souvenier Inventory


GENERAL FUND MARY LEE TIERNAN 108 03/12/2015 BOOKS 75.00


          Total 10-60-635  Souvenier Inventory: 75.00


10-60-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 MATS 23.50


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 20.56


          Total 10-60-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES: 44.06


10-61-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD  208535 03/03/2015 FEBRUARY 2015 BILLING 4,096.63


GENERAL FUND THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 831456804 03/04/2015 CD ROM 3/3/15 -4/2/15 AZ REVISED STAT AN 423.67


          Total 10-61-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 4,520.30


10-64-540  PUBLIC NOTICES, ADVERTISING


GENERAL FUND SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 022815 02/28/2015 GENERAL DEVELOPMENT, ORDINANCE 574 100.45


          Total 10-64-540  PUBLIC NOTICES, ADVERTISING: 100.45
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10-64-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND OFFICE SMART INC 1319569 03/23/2015 PAPER 36.99


          Total 10-64-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES: 36.99


10-65-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 170.48


          Total 10-65-410  UTILITIES: 170.48


10-65-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030115 03/01/2015 MONTHLY SERVICE 152.35


          Total 10-65-415  TELEPHONE: 152.35


10-65-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 MATS, SHOP TOWELS 77.78


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 4.90


          Total 10-65-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES: 82.68


10-65-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 43.30


          Total 10-65-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 43.30


          Total GENERAL FUND: 75,625.58


TRANSIT FUND


14-20300  GREYHOUND PAYABLE


TRANSIT FUND GREYHOUND 031215 03/12/2015 TICKETS SOLD 45.00


TRANSIT FUND GREYHOUND 031915 03/19/2015 TICKET SALES 48.08


          Total 14-20300  GREYHOUND PAYABLE: 93.08


14-40-520  INSURANCE- VEHICLES


TRANSIT FUND AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9275/9276 03/08/2015 INSURANCE 2,637.96


          Total 14-40-520  INSURANCE- VEHICLES: 2,637.96


14-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS


TRANSIT FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 19.96


TRANSIT FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 128.12


TRANSIT FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 366.62


TRANSIT FUND CNG 030615 03/06/2015 #7003 - TIRE REPAIR 70.00


TRANSIT FUND CNG 1401 03/14/2015 #7001 - COMPLETE SERVICE LUBE, OIL CHA 140.00


TRANSIT FUND CNG 1402 03/01/2015 #7003 - AIR BAG, U JOINTS, BEARING OK 280.00


TRANSIT FUND CNG 1406 03/15/2015 #7003 - INSTALLED NEW TIRES 70.00


TRANSIT FUND CNG 1408 03/14/2015 #7005 - REPAIR AIR LINE, INSTALLED USED  140.00


TRANSIT FUND CNG 1409 03/07/2015 #7005 - BRAKE MASTER CYLINDER, REPLA 315.00


TRANSIT FUND CNG 1411 03/05/2015 #7004 - HELP LOAD BUS FOR TRANSPORT 210.00


TRANSIT FUND CNG 1502 03/21/2015 #7005 - COMPLETE SERVICE, LUBE, GAUGE  175.00


TRANSIT FUND COCHISE CO HIGHWAY & FLO 031315 03/13/2015 TRANSPORT BUS TO PHOENIX 892.31


          Total 14-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS: 2,807.01
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          Total TRANSIT FUND: 5,538.05


STREET FUND


20-40-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC


STREET FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COB PPE 0213 02/23/2015 DOC LABOR - 1/31/15 - 2/13/15 126.00


STREET FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COB PPE 0227 03/10/2015 DOC LABOR - 2/14 - 2/27/15 133.25


          Total 20-40-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC: 259.25


20-40-410  UTILITIES


STREET FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 7,119.67


          Total 20-40-410  UTILITIES: 7,119.67


20-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE-EQUIP


STREET FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 11.66


          Total 20-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE-EQUIP: 11.66


20-40-470  UNIFORMS


STREET FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 UNIFORMS 122.26


          Total 20-40-470  UNIFORMS: 122.26


20-40-520  INSURANCE


STREET FUND AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9275/9276 03/08/2015 INSURANCE 2,637.96


STREET FUND AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9304 03/12/2015 #2700 & 2701 DUMP TRUCKS 59.50


          Total 20-40-520  INSURANCE: 2,697.46


20-40-640  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES


STREET FUND SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 022815 02/28/2015 PART 4.46


          Total 20-40-640  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES: 4.46


20-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


STREET FUND SENERGY PETROLEUM 146468 03/09/2015 DIESEL 382.59


          Total 20-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 382.59


20-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS


STREET FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 123.83


STREET FUND CNG 022215 02/22/2015 GREASE MACHINE -426 CATERPILLER BAC 8.75


STREET FUND CNG 1410 03/07/2015 GREASE GANNON TRACTOR 35.00


STREET FUND SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 022815 02/28/2015 PART 12.32


          Total 20-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS: 179.90


          Total STREET FUND: 10,777.25


GRANTS FUND


46-80-100  CDBG PARKS


GRANTS FUND SOUTHEASTERN  ARIZONA 030615 03/06/2015 RA 14- ADA RESTROOMS #2 4,319.00


          Total 46-80-100  CDBG PARKS: 4,319.00
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          Total GRANTS FUND: 4,319.00


GAS FUND


50-22900  METER DEPOSITS - GAS


GAS FUND ANDREA M GARCIA 032315 03/23/2015 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 74.27


GAS FUND GENE G LUTCAVICH 0301615 03/16/2015 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 114.14


          Total 50-22900  METER DEPOSITS - GAS: 188.41


50-40-410  UTILITIES


GAS FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030615 03/06/2015 UTILITIES 163.54


          Total 50-40-410  UTILITIES: 163.54


50-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GAS FUND TUCSON CALIBRATION SERVIC 20707 02/24/2015 REPAIR EAGLE 810.00


          Total 50-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 810.00


50-40-440  RENTALS


GAS FUND AIRGAS USA, LLC 9925499542 02/28/2015 CYLINDER RENTAL 174.53


          Total 50-40-440  RENTALS: 174.53


50-40-470  UNIFORMS


GAS FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 UNIFORMS 122.07


          Total 50-40-470  UNIFORMS: 122.07


50-40-520  INSURANCE


GAS FUND AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9275/9276 03/08/2015 INSURANCE 10,991.50


GAS FUND AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9304 03/12/2015 #2700 & 2701 DUMP TRUCKS 59.50


          Total 50-40-520  INSURANCE: 11,051.00


50-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GAS FUND SENERGY PETROLEUM 146468 03/09/2015 DIESEL 382.58


          Total 50-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 382.58


50-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GAS FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 172.90


GAS FUND CNG 022215 02/22/2015 GREASE MACHINE -426 CATERPILLER BAC 8.75


GAS FUND CNG 1420 03/18/2015 #171 - REPLACE STARTER 46.67


GAS FUND L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 11.34


GAS FUND SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 022815 02/28/2015 SHOP LABOR- #2500 25.00


GAS FUND SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 022815 02/28/2015 SHOP LABOR - #71 15.00


          Total 50-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 279.66


          Total GAS FUND: 13,171.79


WATER FUND


51-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE


WATER FUND GREGORY HAMMONDS 032315 03/23/2015 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 20.29
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Invoice Amount


          Total 51-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE: 20.29


51-22900  METER DEPOSITS - WATER


WATER FUND ANDREA M GARCIA 032315 03/23/2015 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT 50.00


WATER FUND MAISEY WAGNER 032315 03/23/2015 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT 16.68


          Total 51-22900  METER DEPOSITS - WATER: 66.68


51-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSIS


WATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1503183 03/04/2015 TESTING 41.00


WATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1503228 03/05/2015 TESTING 128.00


WATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1503229 03/05/2015 TESTING 32.00


          Total 51-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSIS: 201.00


51-40-410  UTILITIES


WATER FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030615 03/06/2015 UTILITIES 113.81


WATER FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 7,766.21


          Total 51-40-410  UTILITIES: 7,880.02


51-40-470  UNIFORMS


WATER FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 UNIFORMS 87.80


          Total 51-40-470  UNIFORMS: 87.80


51-40-520  INSURANCE


WATER FUND AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9275/9276 03/08/2015 INSURANCE 2,198.30


WATER FUND AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9304 03/12/2015 #2700 & 2701 DUMP TRUCKS 59.50


          Total 51-40-520  INSURANCE: 2,257.80


51-40-640  OTHER OPERATING COSTS


WATER FUND L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 23.24


          Total 51-40-640  OTHER OPERATING COSTS: 23.24


51-40-660  FUEL & OIL


WATER FUND SENERGY PETROLEUM 146468 03/09/2015 DIESEL 382.58


          Total 51-40-660  FUEL & OIL: 382.58


51-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


WATER FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 55.72


WATER FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 176.89


WATER FUND CNG 022215 02/22/2015 GREASE MACHINE -426 CATERPILLER BAC 8.75


WATER FUND CNG 1420 03/18/2015 #171 - REPLACE STARTER 46.67


WATER FUND SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 022815 02/28/2015 SHOP LABOR- #2500 25.00


          Total 51-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 313.03


          Total WATER FUND: 11,232.44


WASTEWATER FUND


52-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


WASTEWATER FUND WASTEWATER MAINTENANCE  0304201505 03/04/2015 INSPECT SEWER LINES - 4TH ST ACROSS B 525.00
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          Total 52-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 525.00


52-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSES


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502796 02/25/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502871 02/26/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1503013 02/28/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1503014 02/28/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1503179 03/04/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1503401 03/09/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1503421 03/09/2015 TESTING 15.00


          Total 52-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSES: 105.00


52-40-410  UTILITIES


WASTEWATER FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030615 03/06/2015 UTILITIES 113.81


WASTEWATER FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 6,155.80


          Total 52-40-410  UTILITIES: 6,269.61


52-40-415  TELEPHONE


WASTEWATER FUND CENTURYLINK 030115 03/01/2015 MONTHLY SERVICE 92.78


WASTEWATER FUND MCI COMM SERVICE 031115 03/11/2015 LONG DISTANCE 32.05


          Total 52-40-415  TELEPHONE: 124.83


52-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


WASTEWATER FUND CNG 1419 03/16/2015 THROTTLE CABLE AND REPLACEMENT 91.25


WASTEWATER FUND INTERACTIVE CONTROLS, INC 15107-1 03/06/2015 REPAIRS TO INFLUENT PUMP @ WWTP 419.80


          Total 52-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 511.05


52-40-470  UNIFORMS


WASTEWATER FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 UNIFORMS 106.44


          Total 52-40-470  UNIFORMS: 106.44


52-40-520  INSURANCE


WASTEWATER FUND AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9275/9276 03/08/2015 INSURANCE 6,594.90


WASTEWATER FUND AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9304 03/12/2015 #2700 & 2701 DUMP TRUCKS 59.50


          Total 52-40-520  INSURANCE: 6,654.40


52-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


WASTEWATER FUND KENDALL AND SON 6672 02/25/2015 COPPER SULFATE 438.00


          Total 52-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 438.00


52-40-660  FUEL & OIL


WASTEWATER FUND SENERGY PETROLEUM 146468 03/09/2015 DIESEL 382.59


          Total 52-40-660  FUEL & OIL: 382.59


52-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


WASTEWATER FUND BENSON NAPA 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 146.86


WASTEWATER FUND CNG 022215 02/22/2015 GREASE MACHINE -426 CATERPILLER BAC 8.75


WASTEWATER FUND CNG 1420 03/18/2015 #171 - REPLACE STARTER 46.66
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WASTEWATER FUND PURCELL WESTERN STATES TI 6162866 02/27/2015 TIRES - JET ROUTER 575.53


          Total 52-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 777.80


          Total WASTEWATER FUND: 15,894.72


SANITATION FUND


53-40-665  COUNTY SOLID WASTE


SANITATION FUND COCHISE COUNTY TREASURE 21079 03/04/2015 TRANSFER STATION EXPENSES 15,498.45


          Total 53-40-665  COUNTY SOLID WASTE: 15,498.45


          Total SANITATION FUND: 15,498.45


SAN PEDRO GOLF COURSE


55-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CENTRAL ALARM INC 771055 03/01/2015 ALARM SERVICE - 3/15 139.00


          Total 55-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 139.00


55-40-310  INVENTORY- PRO SHOP


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR JOSEPH ELLIOTT USA 1248 02/26/2015 INVENTORY 930.03


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NIKE USA, INC 969078979 02/25/2015 INVENTORY 632.25


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR PING 12634461 01/29/2015 PRO SHOP INVENTORY 53.65


          Total 55-40-310  INVENTORY- PRO SHOP: 1,615.93


55-40-350  BANK CHARGES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ETS CORPORATION 2/15 02/28/2015 CREDIT CARD FEE 885.91


          Total 55-40-350  BANK CHARGES: 885.91


55-40-410  UTILITIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 1,461.36


          Total 55-40-410  UTILITIES: 1,461.36


55-40-415  TELEPHONE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CENTURYLINK 030115 03/01/2015 MONTHLY SERVICE 516.12


          Total 55-40-415  TELEPHONE: 516.12


55-40-440  RENTALS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700438319 03/04/2015 MATS 31.14


          Total 55-40-440  RENTALS: 31.14


55-40-520  INSURANCE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9275/9276 03/08/2015 INSURANCE 1,758.64


          Total 55-40-520  INSURANCE: 1,758.64


55-40-540  ADVERTISING


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR THE LOCAL PAGES 031115 03/11/2015 ADVERTISING 373.67


          Total 55-40-540  ADVERTISING: 373.67
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55-40-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- GOLF CARTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 284.78


          Total 55-40-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- GOLF CARTS: 284.78


55-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR- DOC


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COB PPE 0213 02/23/2015 DOC LABOR - 1/31/15 - 2/13/15 306.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COB PPE 0227 03/10/2015 DOC LABOR - 2/14 - 2/27/15 250.75


          Total 55-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR- DOC: 556.75


55-50-410  UTILITIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 1,324.07


          Total 55-50-410  UTILITIES: 1,324.07


55-50-470  UNIFORMS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR UNIFIRST CORPORATION 022815 02/28/2015 UNIFORMS 70.16


          Total 55-50-470  UNIFORMS: 70.16


55-50-600  GOLF COURSE SUPPLIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 18.02


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR R&R PRODUCTS INC CD1874319 02/25/2015 CUP DISPENSER 37.64


          Total 55-50-600  GOLF COURSE SUPPLIES: 55.66


55-50-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- EQUIPMENT


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 022815 02/28/2015 PARTS 886.51


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR STOTZ EQUIPMENT P15733 03/02/2015 PARTS 313.08


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR STOTZ EQUIPMENT P15757 03/03/2015 PARTS 61.89


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR STOTZ EQUIPMENT P15803 03/05/2015 PARTS 46.05


          Total 55-50-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- EQUIPMENT: 1,307.53


55-60-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES L 11253 03/08/2015 TEMP SERVICE WORKER 3/6-3/8/15 285.91


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES L 11281 03/20/2015 TEMP WORKER 3/13-3/15/15 295.55


          Total 55-60-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 581.46


55-60-310  FOOD COST


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR COCA COLA REFRESHMENTS 0215058809 03/05/2015 DRINKS 491.06


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 61726791SO 02/25/2015 FOOD 201.40


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 142790C 03/11/2015 FOOD 508.26


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 143380A 03/14/2015 FOOD 481.41


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 143926B 03/18/2015 FOOD 399.25


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 144562A 03/21/2015 FOOD 337.71


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 238220 03/13/2015 BEER 956.95


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 4903023 03/09/2015 FOOD 852.97


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 4974688 03/12/2015 FOOD 689.72


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 5033181 03/16/2015 FOOD 728.17


          Total 55-60-310  FOOD COST: 5,646.90


55-60-350  BANK CHARGES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ETS CORPORATION 2/15A 02/28/2015 CREDIT CARD FEE 357.53
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          Total 55-60-350  BANK CHARGES: 357.53


55-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR J & D STEAM CLEANING 165086 03/22/2015 STEAM CLEANING FANS, HOODS, FILTERS,  275.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR TREJO REFRIGERATION AND 8810 02/26/2015 COIL CLEANER 183.00


          Total 55-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 458.00


55-60-440  RENTALS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700438320 03/04/2015 LINENS 60.93


          Total 55-60-440  RENTALS: 60.93


55-60-540  ADVERTISING


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 022815A 02/28/2015 #2102 - VALENTINES DAY DINNER AD 256.25


          Total 55-60-540  ADVERTISING: 256.25


55-60-605  RESTAURANT SUPPLIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 144563 03/21/2015 SUPPLIES 27.14


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 4903024 03/09/2015 SUPPLIES 249.21


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 5033182 03/16/2015 SUPPLIES 36.28


          Total 55-60-605  RESTAURANT SUPPLIES: 312.63


          Total SAN PEDRO GOLF COURSE: 18,054.42


AIRPORT


56-40-410  UTILITIES


AIRPORT CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 031315 03/13/2015 UTILITIES 147.83


AIRPORT SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 031115 03/11/2015 POWER 978.34


          Total 56-40-410  UTILITIES: 1,126.17


56-40-415  TELEPHONE


AIRPORT CENTURYLINK 030115 03/01/2015 MONTHLY SERVICE 63.26


          Total 56-40-415  TELEPHONE: 63.26


56-40-520  INSURANCE


AIRPORT AZ MUN RISK RETENTION POO 9275/9276 03/08/2015 INSURANCE 3,517.28


          Total 56-40-520  INSURANCE: 3,517.28


          Total AIRPORT: 4,706.71


          Grand Totals:  174,818.41
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Report Criteria:


Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.


Only paid invoices included.





		Consent 1a - Exhibit - 3-9-15 Worksession.pdf

		CALL TO ORDER:

		NEW BUSINESS:

		ADJOURNMENT:

		Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor

		ATTEST:

		Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk



		Consent 1b - Exhibit - 3-9-15 Regular Meeting.pdf

		CALL TO ORDER:

		EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  None

		CALL TO THE PUBLIC:

		Jim Gray stated he had passed out a copy of a letter to the editor in the Sierra Vista Herald to the Council and the City Manager telling what taxpayers want.  Mr. Gray then stated the Sierra Vista Council also selected members from the business commu...

		Art Bale gave a brief background of himself, stating he doesn’t like being here complaining because he is a go-getter and a fixer, adding he retired from the Air Force in 1982 with 25 years of service and he has been trained as an efficiency expert in...

		David DiPeso stated he was against the tax increase, adding he is associated with Cochise College and they have had to cut their budget for 6 years in a row now and this year is going to be even worse because the State reduced their budget too.  Mr. D...

		Nancy Iverson stated she owned the Sahara Motel on Highway 80 for 35 years and she was here also protesting the sales tax increase in addition to other things.  Ms. Iverson stated business owners are already struggling and if the Council thinks taxes ...

		Theresa Bennett stated she and her daughter have owned Junction Express for 18 years and she is here tonight because she believes the City has not done enough research on the importance of the impact of raising taxes.  Ms. Bennett then asked if the Co...

		Bob Benson stated he has been in town since 2006 and has been the manager at Barnett’s Propane on 4th Street for 4 years.  Mr. Benson then stated this town is dependent on winter visitors and the Council doesn’t know how many winter visitors he has he...

		Lupe Diaz stated he was the President of the Chamber of Commerce and the Pastor of Grace Chapel.  Mr. Diaz then stated the Council has a tough job, adding one of the things the City is facing is being able to eat a $1.1 million shortfall, which is a b...

		Paul Lotsof, the Manager of CAVE FM, stated he wouldn’t be surprised if he had the dubious distinction of having attended more meetings of the Benson City Council than any other person alive, adding he would guess he had attended over 700 meetings.  M...

		Mark Fenn stated he had been living out of the country for some time and that it was good to be home and see everyone.  Mr. Fenn then stated he didn’t envy the position the Council is in right now, adding he understands maybe more than most what they ...

		Jeff Cook stated he was going to start by saying he wasn’t taking a side, but he thought about it and he is taking a side on the issue.  Councilmember Cook stated he shares all the concerns everyone in this town has and that the speakers have expresse...

		CITY MANAGER REPORT:

		NEW BUSINESS:

		DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  None

		ADJOURNMENT:

		Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor

		ATTEST:

		Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
This item is on the agenda at the request of Councilmember Boyle.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                       Agenda Item # 10  
                                               
From: William D. Stephens, City Manager  
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Discussion and possible direction to Staff about its state of preparedness for and/or management of emergency 
situations 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting              April 13, 2015 
 








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
On January 31, 2015, Travis Barney painted sections of the Community Center and the picnic tables for his 
Eagle Scout Project.  Due to the wood on the building starting to deteriorate from the weather and the rusting 
picnic tables this project was necessary.   With the help of his volunteers:  Mason Palmer, Nick Judd, Bevin 
Judd, Jace Barney, Brett Barney, Lisa Barney, Kyle Tappan, and Josh Sparkman; Travis was able to complete 
this project very quickly.  The building and the picnic tables look great.  
      
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Award the Certificate of Appreciation to Travis Barney 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 2 
                                               
From: Laura Parkin, Recreation Coordinator 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Presentation of a Certificate of Appreciation to Travis Barney 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting               April 13, 2015 
 












                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Mr. Jim Usevitch from Colby and Powell, PLC, Certified Public Accountants, will present the City’s audited 
financial statements to Council for review and will be available to answer Council’s questions. 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Presentation only 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                        Agenda Item # 3 
                                               
From: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Presentation of the Certified Audit Report for the City of Benson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                 April 13, 2015 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 


 
To the City Council  
City of Benson, Arizona 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Benson, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Benson, Arizona, as of 
June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 to 11 
and 42 to 45 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
February 13, 2015, on our consideration of the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.  
 


 
February 13, 2015 
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The management of the City of Benson is pleased to offer to the readers of the City’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 The City’s total net position decreased $1.5 million to $30.7 million.  Net position from 


governmental activities decreased $.8 million to $4.8 million due principally to a 
decrease in unrestricted cash, resulting from our operating expenditures exceeding our 
revenues.  Net position from business-type activities decreased $0.6 million to $25.9 
million, due principally to the aging of our water, natural gas and waste water utility 
infrastructure  systems. 
 


 The City’s revenues from governmental activities decreased $0.2 million to $5.5 million 
principally due to decreased intergovernmental and sales tax revenues.  Revenues from 
business-type activities decreased $0.3 million to $3.9 million, principally due to a 
decrease in capital grants and contributions for street maintenance, golf course, and 
capital improvements to the City’s municipal airport.  
 


 Expenses from governmental activities increased $0.1 million to $6.3 million.  Expenses 
from business-type activities decreased $0.2 million to $4.6 million. 
 


 The City’s unrestricted net position decreased by $1.4 million to $(2.6) million, 
principally due to a decrease in cash and cash equivalents, the City has used unrestricted 
cash to meet the revenue shortfall to fund debt service 


 
 At June 30, 2014, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $2.2 million, or 


42% of the fund’s expenditures for the year. 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to serve as an introduction to 
the City’s basic financial statements.  The City of Benson’s basic financial statements have three 
components:  1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes 
to the financial statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in 
addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to 
a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all the City’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving 
or deteriorating. 
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses 
are reported in this statement for some items that will result in actual cash flow in future fiscal periods 
(e.g. uncollected taxes earned, accrued but unused vacation time). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities).  Governmental activities include public safety, streets, parks, library and administration.  
Business-type activities include the natural gas, water and wastewater utilities. 
 
Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the 
funds of the City can be segregated into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and a 
fiduciary fund. 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, the governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources and the balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  This information can be useful in evaluating 
a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental 
fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General, Highway Users 
(HURF) and Capital Projects Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other 
non-major governmental funds are combined into a single listing. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds.  Budgetary comparison 
statements and schedules have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with the 
budget.  The budgetary information can be found on pages 47-50 of this report. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 12-18 of this report. 
 
Proprietary (enterprise) funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail.  Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as 
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The City maintains six proprietary 
funds: Natural Gas, Water, Liquid Waste, Solid Waste, Golf Course and Airport.  The basic proprietary 
fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-26 of this report. 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources the City holds for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s own operations. The accounting used for 
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.  The fiduciary fund financial statements can 
be found on pages 27 and 28 of this report. 
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Notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and the fund financial statements.  
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 29-45 of this report. 
 
Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s budgetary 
statements for the General, Highway Users (HURF) and Capital Projects Funds, and the progress 
in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.  Required supplementary 
information can be found on pages 47-51 of this report.  
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  The 
City’s assets exceeded liabilities by $30.6 million at June 30, 2014.  The largest portion of the 
City’s assets (91%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, utility 
infrastructure, streets, vehicles and equipment).  The City uses these capital assets to provide 
services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
 
The following table presents a summary of the City’s net position at the two most recent fiscal 
year ends - June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013.  


 
Net Position at June 30, 2014 and 2013 


Governmental Business-type Total Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government


Cash and receivables 3,322,402$      (499,003)$        2,823,399$      4,065,280$      (448,117)$        3,617,163$      
Other assets 190,941           146,465           337,406           305,810           140,435           446,245           
Capital assets 6,700,613        26,814,768      33,515,381      7,012,030        27,333,706      34,345,736      


Total assets 10,213,956$    26,462,230$    36,676,186$    11,383,120$    27,026,024$    38,409,144$    


Current liabilities 940,835$         405,436$         1,346,271$      809,797$         516,583$         1,326,380$      
Non-current liabilities 4,473,267        195,379           4,668,646        4,768,426        22,566             4,790,992        


Total liabilities 5,414,102$      600,815$         6,014,917$      5,578,223$      539,149$         6,117,372$      


Net position:
Invested in capital assets


net of debt 6,700,613$      26,586,865$    33,287,478$    6,487,562$      27,333,706$    33,821,268$    
Restricted 22,873             22,873$           63,536             63,536$           
Unrestricted (1,923,632)       (725,450)          (2,649,082)       (746,185)          (846,831)          (1,593,016)       


Total net position 4,799,854$      25,861,415$    30,661,269$    5,804,913$      26,486,875$    32,291,788$    


Fiscal Year 2014 Fiscal Year 2013
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The City’s overall financial position decreased during the year as reflected in the decrease in net 
position to a total of $30.63 million.  The unrestricted net position of the combined governmental 
and business-type activities decreased by $1.0 million during the year to a deficit balance of 
$(2,649,082). This decrease is principally due to the City’s need to use cash reserves in order to 
service debt and pay for daily operations. .  In prior years, the focus of the City was to operate at 
a conservative level and build its unrestricted cash reserves. The City has relied on these cash 
reserves the past few years to sustain operations.  
 
The majority of the City’s net position is invested in capital assets.   Restrictions are legal 
obligations on how the assets may be expended.  The City has $22,873 of Anti-Racketeering 
Influenced and Corrupt Organization (RICO) funds held by Cochise County that are restricted 
for public safety use. RICO monies are seized currency and proceeds from the sale of seized 
assets forfeited in the prosecution of racketeering crimes. RICO monies are restricted for use by 
Arizona Revised Statutes.  
 
Changes in net position.  The City’s total revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, were 
$9.4 million.  The total cost of all programs and services was $10.9 million.  The following table 
presents a summary of the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, and 
June 30, 2013.   


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







City of Benson, Arizona 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 


June 30, 2014 
 


 
- 8 - 


 
Governmental and Business-type Activities 


For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 and 2013 
 


Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Activities Activities


Revenue
Program Revenue
Charges for services & misc. 148,246$         3,867,844$       178,105$        3,632,332$       
Grants and contributions 737,293           25,000              955,249          561,843            


Total Program Revenue 885,539           3,892,844         1,133,354       4,194,175         
General Revenue
Taxes 3,349,601        3,372,779       
Intergovernmental 1,235,032        1,161,765       
Interest 4,417               8,420              
Other 33,492             24,587            


Total general revenue 4,622,542        -                    4,567,551       -                   


Total revenue 5,508,081        3,892,844         5,700,905       4,194,175         
Expenses


General government 1,895,539        1,761,807       
Culture,recreation & welfare 1,195,575        1,181,535       
Public safety 2,373,541        2,368,001       
Highways and streets 575,971           566,092          
Public Works 80,964             102,894          
Interest on long-term debt 194,017           199,662          
Gas, water, sewer and garbage 3,068,349         3,247,699         
Golf Course 1,154,063         1,237,055         
Airport 334,915            315,983            


Total expenses 6,315,607        4,557,327         6,179,991       4,800,737         


Decrease in net position (807,526)         (664,483)           (479,086)         (606,562)          
Beginning net position 5,646,403        26,486,875       6,447,973       26,929,463       


Transfers (39,023)           39,023              (163,974)         163,974            


Ending net position 4,799,854$      25,861,415$     5,804,913$     26,486,875$     


Fiscal Year 2014 Fiscal Year 2013


 
  
 
Government activities.  The City’s governmental functions include general government, culture 
and recreation, welfare, highways and streets, public safety, and public works.  Each function’s 
net cost, (total cost less revenues generated by the activities) is presented below. This table 
reflects the extent to which the City’s general taxes support each of the Governmental functions. 
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Governmental Activities June 30, 2014 and 2013 


Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services of Services of Services


General Government 1,895,539$    1,785,661$      1,761,807$      1,621,301$      
Culture and recreation 978,721         786,080           940,405           887,340           
Welfare 216,854         87,424             241,130           68,746             
Highways and Streets 575,971         240,242           566,092           35,555             
Public Safety 2,373,541      2,257,508        2,368,001        2,134,204        
Public Works 80,964           79,136             102,894           99,829             
Interest on long-term debt 194,017         194,017           199,662           199,662           


Total 6,315,607$    5,430,068$      6,179,991$      5,046,637$      


Fiscal Year 2014 Fiscal Year 2013


 
 
 
Business-type activities.  The cost of providing all business-type activities for fiscal 2013-2014  
was $4.6 million, down from $4.8 million last year.  Minor decreases were experienced in utility 
costs, golf course operations, and airport operations.  
 
The City’s business-type activities include gas, water, wastewater, sanitation, golf course and 
airport. The activities’ net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities) is presented 
below. The net cost reflects the extent to which general business-type revenues support each of 
the business type programs. 
 


Business-type Activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 
 


Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services of Services of Services


Gas 869,454$       41,422$           937,118$         69,305$           
Water 782,214         90,101             777,152           54,605             
Liquid waste 831,803         (73,945)            946,421           286,233           
Solid waste 584,878         (49,852)            587,008           (20,094)            
Airport 334,915         319,011           315,983           46,795             
Golf Course 1,154,063      337,746           1,237,055        169,718           


Total 4,557,327$    664,483$         4,800,737$      606,562$         


Fiscal Year 2013Fiscal Year 2014
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets 
As of June 30, 2014 the City had invested $33.5 million in capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) as reflected in the following table. Of the total, $.65 million represents current year 
additions. 
 
The following table presents the changes in capital assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2014, and June 30, 2013. 
 


Change in Capital Assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 
 


Governmental Business Type Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total


Beginning Balance 7,012,030$         27,333,706$        34,345,736$     6,701,340$         27,637,037$        34,338,377$    
Additions 288,940              354,818               643,758 973,672              593,005               1,566,677
Deductions -                     -                       -                   -                     -                       -                  
Depreciation (600,357)            (873,756)              (1,474,113) (662,982)            (896,336)              (1,559,318)


Ending Balance 6,700,613$         26,814,768$        33,515,381$     7,012,030$         27,333,706$        34,345,736$    


Fiscal Year 2013Fiscal Year 2014


 
 


Additional information of the City of Benson’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements. 
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Debt Administration 
As of June 30, 2014, the City had $5.2 million in total debt outstanding, compared to $5.3 
million as of June 30, 2013.  


 
Outstanding Debt at June 30, 2014 and 2013 


 
2014 2013


Governmental:
Compensated absences 176,178$         169,845$         
Capital lease 67,385             132,029           
Bond Payable 4,610,000        4,825,000        
Bond discount (36,053)            (38,456)            
Notes payable 98,124             109,132           


Total governmental 4,915,634        5,197,550        
Business-type:


Compensated absences 83,364             92,571             
Lease payable 227,903           -                   


Total business-type 311,267           92,571             


Total 5,226,901$      5,290,121$       
 
Additional information on the City of Benson’s long-term debt can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements. 
  
Economic Factors 
 
The City Council and Staff have continued to operate conservatively by eliminating all but 
essential capital spending and tightening the controls over all spending categories. During the 
year, the City has been able to cut $2.1 million in budgeted expenses.  Although the City had to 
dip into its cash reserves again this fiscal year, the City has still managed to avoid taking 
draconian measures such as layoffs and furloughs in order to keep its budget balanced. 
 
The City relies heavily on state shared revenues and local sales tax revenues to support General 
Fund activities.  During the fiscal year 2013-2014, 81% of the general fund revenues were 
derived from state shared revenues and local sales tax.  Given the current and projected 
economic trends and general economic uncertainties, the City anticipates slight revenue growth 
during the 2014-2015 fiscal year.  The fiscal 2014-2015 budget anticipates an approximate 10% 
increase in state shared revenues and local sales tax collections.    
 
Financial Contact 
The City’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, investors, 
customers and creditors) with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the 
City’s accountability for the resources it receives.  If you have questions about the report or need 
additional financial information, please contact the City’s Finance Director at 120 W. Sixth St., 
Benson, AZ 85602. 
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Primary Government
Governmental Business-type


Activities Activities Total
ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 2,242,626$    -$               2,242,626$    
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 22,873           55,842           78,715           
Accounts receivable - net -                 125,974         125,974         
Taxes receivable 244,242         -                 244,242         
Due from other governments 131,842         -                 131,842         
Prepaid expenses 190,941         139,802         330,743         
Inventory -                 6,663             6,663             
Due from (to) other funds 680,819         (680,819)        -                 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 705,308         7,744,582      8,449,890      
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,995,305      19,070,186    25,065,491    


Total assets 10,213,956    26,462,230    36,676,186    


LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 93,605           228,819         322,424         
Accrued expenses 163,219         -                 163,219         
Deferred revenue -                 4,887             4,887             
Settlement liability 150,000         -                 150,000         
Interest payable 91,644           -                 91,644           
Refundable deposits -                 55,842           55,842           
Noncurrent liabilities


Due within 1 year 442,367         115,888         558,255         
Due in more than 1 year 4,473,267      195,379         4,668,646      


Total liabilities 5,414,102      600,815         6,014,917      


NET POSITION


Net investment in capital assets 6,700,613      26,586,865    33,287,478    
Restricted for:


Public safety 22,873           -                 22,873           
Unrestricted (deficit) (1,923,632)     (725,450)        (2,649,082)     


Total net position 4,799,854$    25,861,415$  30,661,269$  
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Charges Operating
for Grants and


Expenses Services Contributions


Primary government:
Governmental activities


General government 1,895,539$   92,413$         17,465$          
Public safety 2,373,541     26,136           75,618            
Highways and streets 575,971        -                 335,729          
Public works 80,964          1,714             114                 
Culture and recreation 978,721        21,343           6,098              
Welfare 216,854        6,640             122,790          
Interest on long-term debt 194,017        -                 -                  


Total governmental activities 6,315,607     148,246         557,814          


Business-type activities
Gas 869,454        828,032         -                  
Water 782,214        692,113         -                  
Liquid waste 831,803        905,748         -                  
Solid waste 584,878        634,730         -                  
Golf course 1,154,063     791,317         25,000            
Municipal Airport 334,915        15,904           -                  


Total business-type activities 4,557,327     3,867,844      25,000            


Total primary government 10,872,934$ 4,016,090$    582,814$        


General revenue:
Taxes:


Sales Tax
Construction sales tax
Property tax
Franchise tax
Bed tax


State sales tax revenue sharing
Auto lieu tax revenue sharing
State revenue sharing
Interest income
Miscellaneous


Transfers
Total general revenue and transfers


Change in net position


Net position, July 1, 2013, as restated


Net position, June 30, 2014


Functions / Programs


Program Revenue 
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Capital
Grants and Governmental Business-type


Contributions Activities Activities Total


-$               (1,785,661)$   -$               (1,785,661)$   
14,279           (2,257,508)     -                 (2,257,508)     


-                 (240,242)        -                 (240,242)        
-                 (79,136)          -                 (79,136)          


165,200         (786,080)        -                 (786,080)        
-                 (87,424)          -                 (87,424)          
-                 (194,017)        -                 (194,017)        


179,479         (5,430,068)     -                 (5,430,068)     


-                 -                 (41,422)          (41,422)          
-                 -                 (90,101)          (90,101)          
-                 -                 73,945           73,945           
-                 -                 49,852           49,852           
-                 -                 (337,746)        (337,746)        
-                 -                 (319,011)        (319,011)        
-                 -                 (664,483)        (664,483)        


179,479$       (5,430,068)     (664,483)        (6,094,551)     


2,722,940 -                 2,722,940      
178,656 -                 178,656         
209,633 -                 209,633         
160,636 -                 160,636         


77,736 -                 77,736           
444,353 -                 444,353         
221,662 -                 221,662         
569,017 -                 569,017         


4,417 -                 4,417             
33,492 -                 33,492           


(39,023)          39,023           -                 
4,583,519      39,023           4,622,542      


(846,549)        (625,460)        (1,472,009)     


5,646,403      26,486,875    32,133,278    


4,799,854$    25,861,415$  30,661,269$  


Primary Government
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
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Capital Other Total
General HURF/LTAF Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds


ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 2,242,626$       -$                  -$                  -$                  2,242,626$       
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted 22,873 -                    -                    -                    22,873              
Taxes receivable 244,242 -                    -                    -                    244,242            
Due from other governments 78,235 31,804 -                    21,803              131,842            
Prepaid expenses 121,038 69,903 -                    -                    190,941            
Due from other funds 1,811,517         -                    -                    -                    1,811,517         


Total assets 4,520,531$       101,707$          -$                  21,803$            4,644,041$       


LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 59,005$            14,882$            19,562$            156$                 93,605$            
Accrued expenses 163,219 -                    -                    -                    163,219            
Settlement liability 150,000 -                    -                    -                    150,000            
Due to other funds -                    653,481 288,691 188,526 1,130,698         


Total liabilities 372,224            668,363            308,253            188,682            1,537,522         


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES


Unavailable revenue 29,306 -                    -                    -                    29,306              


FUND BALANCES


Nonspendable 1,932,555         69,903              -                    -                    2,002,458         
Restricted for:


Public safety 22,873              -                    -                    -                    22,873              
Unassigned 2,163,573         (636,559)           (308,253)           (166,879)           1,051,882         


Total fund balances 4,119,001         (566,656)           (308,253)           (166,879)           3,077,213         


Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances 4,520,531$       101,707$          -$                  21,803$            4,644,041$       
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Fund balances--total governmental funds 3,077,213$  


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
Statement of Net Assets are different because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore, are
not reported in the funds. 6,700,613    


Governmental funds report the effect of bond 
issuance costs when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities 148,603      


Some receivables are not available to pay for 
current-period expenditures and therefore, 
are deferred in the funds. 29,306        


Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are
not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the funds (5,007,278)   


Net position of governmental activities 4,948,457$  
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Capital Other Total
General HURF/LTAF Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund


Revenue
Taxes 3,176,200$       -$                  178,656$          -$                  3,354,856$       
Intergovernmental 1,309,134         335,729            -                    298,272            1,943,135         
Other revenue 67,833              -                    -                    -                    67,833              
Charges for services 53,211              -                    -                    6,640                59,851              
Licenses and permits 54,848              -                    -                    -                    54,848              
Fines and forfeitures 27,746              -                    -                    -                    27,746              
Interest 4,417                -                    -                    -                    4,417                
Impact fees -                    -                    650                   -                    650                   


Total revenue 4,693,389         335,729            179,306            304,912            5,513,336         
 


Expenditures  
Current  


Public safety 2,229,771         -                    -                    600                   2,230,371         
General government 1,564,047         -                    250,000            2,979                1,817,026         
Culture and recreation 836,426            -                    -                    -                    836,426            
Highways and streets -                    360,782            20,561              -                    381,343            
Transit -                    -                    -                    174,199            174,199            
Public works 75,535              -                    -                    -                    75,535              


Debt service
Principal 290,652            -                    -                    -                    290,652            
Interest 193,764            -                    -                    -                    193,764            


Capital outlay 50,681              -                    5,627                232,632            288,940            
Total expenditures 5,240,876         360,782            276,188            410,410            6,288,256         


 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue  


over expenditures (547,487)           (25,053)             (96,882)             (105,498)           (774,920)           
 


Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (out) (121,612)           -                    (39,023)             121,612            (39,023)             


Net change in fund balance (669,099)           (25,053)             (135,905)           16,114              (813,943)           


Fund balance, July 1, 2013 4,788,100         (541,603)           (172,348)           (182,993)           3,891,156         


Fund balance, June 30, 2014 4,119,001$       (566,656)$         (308,253)$         (166,879)$         3,077,213$       







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 


and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 
Governmental Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2014 
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Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds (813,943)$   


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities are different because:


Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of 
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense.


Capital outlay 288,940      
Depreciation expense (600,357)     


(311,417)     


Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide 
current financial resources are not reported as revenues 
in the funds. (5,255)         


Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term 
liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. 
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.


Principal repaid 290,652      
290,652      


Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities
do not require the use of current financial resources
and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. (16,493)       


Change in net position of governmental activities (856,456)$   
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


ASSETS
Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 40,258$        15,584$        -$              
Accounts receivable - net 10,092          34,495          28,349          
Prepaid expenses -                83,883 55,919
Inventory -                -                -                
Due from other funds 1,462,351     -                -                


Total current assets 1,512,701     133,962        84,268          


Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net of accumulated 


depreciation, where applicable:
Land -                55,771          354,792        
Utilit ies systems, net 522,825        2,418,688     734,822        
Buildings, net -                -                5,427,019     
Equipment, net -                8,745            58,836          
Capital assets, net 522,825        2,483,204     6,575,469     


Total noncurrent assets 522,825        2,483,204     6,575,469     


Total assets 2,035,526     2,617,166     6,659,737     


LIABILITIES
Current liabilities


Accounts payable 40,394          16,355          12,462          
Deferred revenue -                -                -                
Refundable deposits 40,258          15,584          -                
Due to other funds -                533,957        572,138        
Compensated absences, current 9,888            18,886          30,110          
Notes payable, current -                -                -                


Total current liabilities 90,540          584,782        614,710        


Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences 2,474            4,721            7,527            
Lease payable -                -                -                


Total noncurrent liabilities 2,474            4,721            7,527            


Total liabilities 93,014          589,503        622,237        


Net position
Net investment in capital assets 522,825        2,483,204     6,575,469     
Unrestricted (deficit) 1,419,687     (455,541)       (537,969)       


Total net position 1,942,512$   2,027,663$   6,037,500$   


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


-$              -$              -$              55,842          
22,275          30,763          -                125,974        


-                -                -                139,802        
-                6,663 -                6,663            


210,747        -                -                1,673,098     
233,022        37,426          -                2,001,379     


82,500          7,091,915     159,604        7,744,582     
-                369,601        8,355,670     12,401,606   
-                808,073        -                6,235,092     
-                365,907        -                433,488        


82,500          8,635,496     8,515,274     26,814,768   


82,500          8,635,496     8,515,274     26,814,768   


315,522        8,672,922     8,515,274     28,816,147   


44,447          114,193        968               228,819        
-                4,887            -                4,887            
-                -                -                55,842          
-                405,963        841,859        2,353,917     
-                7,806            -                66,690          
-                49,198          -                49,198          


44,447          582,047        842,827        2,759,353     


-                1,952            -                16,674          
-                178,705        -                178,705        


-                180,657        -                195,379        


44,447          762,704        842,827        2,954,732     


82,500          8,407,593     8,515,274     26,586,865   
188,575        (497,375)       (842,827)       (725,450)       


271,075$      7,910,218$   7,672,447$   25,861,415   


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


O perating revenue
Charges for services, net of bad debt 828,032$      692,113$      905,748$      
Sales -                -                -                


Total operating revenue 828,032        692,113        905,748        


O perating expenses
Personnel 317,776        373,683        306,498        
Insurance 41,018          8,204            24,611          
Professional services 9,757            6,071            21,900          
Utilit ies 4,664            130,528        84,311          
Repairs and maintenance 11,775          18,840          44,858          
Materials and supplies 24,685          58,188          45,994          
Cost of sales 407,314        -                -                
Other 13,755          18,661          39,307          
Depreciation 38,710          168,039        264,324        


Total operating expenses 869,454        782,214        831,803        


O perating income (loss) (41,422)         (90,101)         73,945          


Nonoperating revenue (expenses)
Operating contribution -                -                -                
Interest expense -                -                -                


Total nonoperating 
revenue (expenses) -                -                -                


Income (loss) before capital
grants and transfers (41,422)         (90,101)         73,945          


T ransfers -                39,023 -                


Increase (decrease) 
in net position (41,422)         (51,078)         73,945          


Total net position, July 1, 2013 1,983,934     2,078,741     5,963,555     


Total net position, June 30, 2014 1,942,512$   2,027,663$   6,037,500$   


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


634,730$      469,131$      15,904$        3,545,658$   
-                322,186 -                322,186        


634,730        791,317        15,904          3,867,844     


22,332          500,415        -                1,520,704     
-                6,563            18,219          98,615          


558,882        29,030          20,971          646,611        
-                84,245          13,832          317,580        
-                61,278          23,044          159,795        
-                122,466        26                 251,359        
-                153,668        -                560,982        


3,664            45,878          -                121,265        
-                143,860        258,823        873,756        


584,878        1,147,403     334,915        4,550,667     


49,852          (356,086)       (319,011)       (682,823)       


-                25,000          -                25,000          
-                (6,660)           -                (6,660)           


-                18,340          -                18,340          


49,852          (337,746)       (319,011)       (664,483)       


-                -                -                39,023          


49,852          (337,746)       (319,011)       (625,460)       


221,223        8,247,964     7,991,458     26,486,875   


271,075$      7,910,218$   7,672,447$   25,861,415$ 


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers 836,498$      714,908$      910,397$      
Payments to suppliers and providers


of goods and services (609,668)       (392,464)       (363,849)       
Payments to employees (233,936)       (276,770)       (228,833)       


Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities (7,106)           45,674          317,715        


Cash flows from noncapital
financing activities:


Received from other funds 57,928          -                -                
Paid to other funds -                (36,305)         (317,715)       
T ransfers -                39,023          -                
Operating contribution received -                -                -                


Net cash provided (used) by 
noncapital financing activities 57,928          2,718            (317,715)       


Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:


Principal paid on long-term debt -                -                -                
Purchase of capital assets (47,487)         (44,018)         -                
Interest paid -                -                -                


Net cash provided (used) by 
capital and related financing
activities (47,487)         (44,018)         -                


Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents 3,335            4,374            -                


Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2013 36,923          11,210          -                


Cash and cash equivalents,
June 30, 2014 40,258$        15,584$        -$              


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


638,791$      788,800$      15,904$        3,905,298$   


(566,642)       (707,927)       (76,125)         (2,716,675)    
(16,313)         (385,275)       -                (1,141,127)    


55,836          (304,402)       (60,221)         47,496          


-                321,472        60,221          439,621        
(55,836)         -                -                (409,856)       


-                -                -                39,023          
-                25,000          -                25,000          


(55,836)         346,472        60,221          93,788          


-                (31,739)         -                (31,739)         
-                (3,671)           -                (95,176)         
-                (6,660)           -                (6,660)           


-                (42,070)         -                (133,575)       


-                -                -                7,709            


-                -                -                48,133          


-$              -$              -$              55,842$        


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


Reconciliation of operating income 
(loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:


Operating income (loss) (41,422)$       (90,101)$       73,945$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating


income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:


Depreciation 38,710          168,039        264,324        
(Increase) decrease in:


Accounts receivable 5,131            18,421          4,649            
Prepaid expenses -                (3,618)           (2,412)           


Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (6,642)           (51,018)         (24,706)         
Deferred revenue -                -                -                
Refundable deposits 3,335            4,374            -                
Compensated absences payable (6,218)           (423)              1,915            


Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities (7,106)$         45,674$        317,715$      


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds


 
 


NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL FINANCING, AND NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The Golf Course Fund acquired $259,642 of equipment under the terms of a capital lease agreement for the year ending June 30, 2014.
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


49,852$        (356,086)$     (319,011)$     (682,823)$     


-                143,860        258,823        873,756        


4,061            (3,432)           -                28,830          
-                -                -                (6,030)           


1,923            (85,078)         (33)                (165,554)       
-                915               -                915               
-                -                -                7,709            
-                (4,581)           -                (9,307)           


55,836$        (304,402)$     (60,221)$       47,496$        


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Trust
Fund


ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 592,600$    
Accounts receivable 517


Total assets 593,117      


NET POSITION


Held in trust for investment trust participants 593,117$    
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Trust
Fund


Additions:
Contributions 9,900$       
Other income 7,139         
Interest and dividends 4,773


Total additions 21,812       


Deductions:
Pension payments 26,400


Total deductions 26,400       


Change in net position (4,588)        


Net position, July 1, 2013 597,705


Net position, June 30, 2014 593,117$    
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accompanying financial statements of the City of Benson, Arizona (City) have been prepared in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental units 
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). A summary of the City’s more 
significant accounting policies follows. 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
The City is a general purpose local government that is governed by a separately elected City 
Council. The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City (the primary 
government) and its component units. 
 
Component units are legally separate entities for which the City is considered to be financially 
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of 
the City’s operations. Therefore, data from these units is combined with data of the primary 
government. Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported in a separate 
column in the combined financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the City. 
The discretely presented component unit discussed below has a June 30 year-end. 
 


The City of Benson Municipal Property Corporation is a nonprofit corporation 
incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona. The principal objective of the 
Corporation is to assist the City of Benson, Arizona, in acquiring, constructing, financing, 
operating, improving or modifying public facilities for the benefit of all City of Benson, 
Arizona, residents. The Corporation’s board of directors consists of seven members.  For the 
year ending June 30, 2014, there was no activity. 


 
B. Basis of Presentation 
 
The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial 
statements. The government-wide statements focus on the City as a whole, while the fund financial 
statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be 
analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the usefulness of the 
information. 
 
Government-wide statements—provide information about the primary government (the City) and its 
component unit. The statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities. 
These statements report the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary 
activities. They also distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City 
and between the City and its discretely presented component units. Governmental activities 
generally are financed through taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2014 
 


- 30 - 


NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
A statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
each function of the City’s governmental activities and segment of its business-type activities. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, 
are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The City does not allocate indirect expenses to 
programs or functions. Program revenues include: 
 


• charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 
• operating grants and contributions, and 
• capital grants and contributions. 


 
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated resources and 
all taxes, are reported as general revenues. 
 
Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements to minimize the double counting of internal activities. However, charges for interfund 
services provided and used are not eliminated if the prices approximate their external exchange 
values. 
 
Fund financial statements—provide information about the City’s funds. Separate statements are 
presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund categories. The emphasis of fund 
financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate 
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor 
funds. Fiduciary funds are aggregated and reported by fund type. 
 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from transactions 
associated with the fund’s principal activity in which each party receives and gives up essentially 
equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from 
transactions in which the parties do not exchange equal values. Revenues generated by ancillary 
activities are also reported as nonoperating revenues. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The HURF/LTAF Fund accounts for specific revenue received from the State of Arizona Highway 
User Revenue Fund and from State of Arizona Local Transportation Assistance Fund which are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
The Capital Projects Fund accounts for resources to be used for acquiring or constructing major 
capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. 
 
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 
The Gas, Water, Liquid Waste, Solid Waste, Golf Course, and Municipal Airport account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, in 
which the intent of the City Council is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing 
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges; or for which the City Council has decided that periodic determination of 
revenue earned, expenses incurred, or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public 
policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 
 
The City reports the following fund types: 
 
The Trust Fund accounts for pension funds for various police officers and firefighters.  The City 
acts as trustee for such funds and does not have title to the assets or liabilities accounted for in this 
fund. 
 
C. Basis of Accounting 
 
The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented using 
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of 
when the related cash flows take place. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for 
which they are levied. Grants and donations are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements the provider imposed have been met. 
 
Governmental funds in the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in 
the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 60 days after year-end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and 
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, compensated absences, and landfill 
closure and post closure care costs, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they are due 
and payable. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 
Issuances of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital lease agreements are reported as 
other financing sources. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
D. Cash and Investments 
 
For purposes of its statement of cash flows, the City considers only those highly liquid investments 
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
 
Nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts are stated at cost.  Money market 
investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts with a remaining maturity of 
one year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at 
fair value.  
 
E. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 


 
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable in the proprietary funds are estimated by the City. 
 
F. Property Tax Calendar 
 
Property taxes are levied on or before the third Monday in August and are payable in two equal 
installments. The first installment is due on the first day of October and becomes delinquent after 
the first business day of November. The second installment is due on the first day of March of the 
next year and becomes delinquent after the first business day of May. 
 
A lien assessed against real property assessed attaches on the first day of January preceding 
assessment and levy thereof. 
 
Property taxes levied on residential property for current operations and maintenance expenses are 
limited to a percentage of the primary full cash value of such property. In addition, taxes levied for 
current operations and maintenance expenses on all types of property are limited to a maximum 
percentage increase over the prior year’s levy adjusted for new construction and annexations. 
Property taxes levied to pay principle and interest on bonded indebtedness are unlimited. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
G.  Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are reported at actual cost. Donated assets are reported at estimated fair value at the 
time received.  
 
Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital 
asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the 
government-wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows: 
 


Capitalization Depreciation Estimated
Threshold Method Useful Life


Land 5,000$         N/A N/A
Construction in progress 5,000           N/A N/A
Buildings 5,000           Straight-line 30
Infrastructure 5,000           Straight-line 25-40
Equipment 5,000           Straight-line 3-20  


 
H. Investment Income 
 
Investment income is composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of 
applicable investments. 
 
I. Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated absences consist of vacation leave earned by employees based on services already 
rendered. 
 
Employees may accumulate vacation hours equal to 1.5 times their annual vacation hours earned.  
Accordingly, vacation benefits are accrued as a liability in the financial statements. 
 
Unused sick leave hours in excess of 960 accumulated at May 1 each year are paid to each eligible 
employee at 25% of the employee’s normal hourly rate of pay. 
 
J.  Fund Balance Reporting 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54 requires fund balances 
to be properly reported within one of the fund balance categories listed below: 
 


1. Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 
not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact such as 
fund balance associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and notes receivable 
(unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned), 


2. Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes 
stipulated by constitution provisions or enabling legislation, or external resource providers, 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 


3. Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes 
determined by a formal action of the City’s city council, 


4. Assigned fund balances are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not 
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, and 


5. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the City’s governmental funds and 
includes all spendable amounts not contained in other classifications. 


 
The City’s policy for committed fund balances is through formal City resolutions passed through 
the elected city council.  The process of rescinding a committed fund balance requires the same 
process. 
 
The City’s policy for assigned fund balances is through motions passed by the elected city council.  
Assigned fund balances do not require a formal resolution. 
 
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, 
assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available, the City’s policy is to apply the expenditure first to 
restricted, and then to unrestricted in the following order of committed, assigned, and then 
unassigned.  
 
J. Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles 
 
In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.  
GASB 65 establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred 
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported 
as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain 
items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.  This statement is effective for periods 
beginning after December 15, 2012. 
 
In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  The primary objective of this Statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions.  It also improves 
information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for 
pensions that is provided by other entities.  This Statement results from a comprehensive review of 
the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with 
regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and 
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.  The provisions of this Statement are 
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2014.  Upon implementation, 
it is anticipated that this Statement will cause a restatement of beginning net position of the 
Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities, and the proprietary funds. 
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NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the City to invest public monies in the State 
Treasurer’s investment pool; U.S. Treasury obligations; specified state and local government bonds; 
and interest-earning investments such as savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and repurchase 
agreements in eligible depositories. The statutes require collateral for demand deposits, certificates 
of deposit, and repurchase agreements at 101 percent of all deposits not covered by federal 
depository insurance. 
 
Deposits – At June 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the City’s total nonpooled cash in bank was 
$2,111,678 and the bank balance was $2,160,533. Of the bank balance, $1,875,358, was covered by 
federal depository insurance and $285,175 backed by the U.S. government. 
 
Investments – At June 30, 2014, the investments consisted of the following: 
 


Reported Fair
Rating Amount Value


Investment in State Treasurer's investment pool
Primary Government Unrated 113,065$ 113,065$ 


Investment in State Treasurer's investment pool
Fiduciary Funds Unrated 67,217$   67,217$   


 
 
The State Board of Investment provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s pools, and the Local 
Government Investment Pool Advisory Committee provides consultation and advice to the 
Treasurer. The fair value of a participant’s position in the pool approximates the value of that 
participant’s pool shares. Those shares are not identified with specific investments and are not 
subject to custodial credit risk. All other investments were insured or registered in the City’s name, 
or were held by the City or its agent in the City’s name. 
 
Restricted cash –$55,842 is restricted for refundable customer deposits in the proprietary funds and 
$22,873 of RICO funds is restricted for public safety. 
 
NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 
 
The following table summarizes that City’s receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible, for the 
proprietary funds as of June 30, 2014: 
 


Gas Water Liquid Solid Golf
Fund Fund Waste Fund Waste Fund Course Fund Total


Accounts recievable 20,888$        40,467$        30,416$        26,410$        30,763$        148,944$      
Less Allowance (10,796)         (5,972)           (2,067)           (4,135)           -                (22,970)         


Accounts recivable - ne 10,092$        34,495$        28,349$        22,275$        30,763$        125,974$       
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NOTE 4 – DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 
 
Amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2014, included $9,089 in county-shared revenue 
from auto lieu taxes, $37,728 in state-shared revenue from sales taxes, $31,804 in state-shared 
revenue from highway user revenue fund (HURF) taxes, $15,635 in federal-shared revenue from 
Homeland Security, $19,668 in revenue from various governmental agencies, and $17,918 in state-
shared revenue from Arizona Department of Transportation. 
 
 
NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows: 
 


Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014


Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land 705,308$      -                -               705,308$       
Total capital assets not
   being depreciated 705,308        -                -               705,308         


Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 3,196,991     -                -               3,196,991      
Equipment/Recreation 4,877,880     288,940        -               5,166,820      
Infrastructure 4,769,064     -                -               4,769,064      


Total 12,843,935   288,940        -               13,132,875    


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (1,817,802)    (73,135)         -               (1,890,937)     
Equipment/Recreation (2,719,615)    (335,913)       -               (3,055,528)     
Infrastructure (1,999,796)    (191,309)       -               (2,191,105)     


Total (6,537,213)    (600,357)       -               (7,137,570)     


Total capital assets being depreciated, net 6,306,722     (311,417)       -               5,995,305      


Governmental activities capital assets, net 7,012,030$   (311,417)$     -$             6,700,613$    
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS – Continued  
 


Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014


Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land 7,744,582$   -$              -$             7,744,582$    
Total capital assets not
   being depreciated 7,744,582     -                -               7,744,582      


Capital assets being depreciated:
Utility systems 18,066,826   91,506          -               18,158,332    
Buildings 9,894,642     -                -               9,894,642      
Equipment 1,048,841     263,312        (45,794)        1,266,359      


Total 29,010,309   354,818        (45,794)        29,319,333    


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Utility systems (5,220,385)    (536,342)       -               (5,756,727)     
Buildings (3,405,672)    (253,878)       -               (3,659,550)     
Equipment (795,128)       (83,536)         45,794          (832,870)        


Total (9,421,185)    (873,756)       45,794          (10,249,147)   


Total capital assets being depreciated, net 19,589,124   (518,938)       -               19,070,186    


Business-type activities capital assets, net 27,333,706$ (518,938)$     -$             26,814,768$  
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS – Continued  
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 
 


Governmental activities:
General government 76,545$     
Public safety 140,537     
Highways and streets 194,178     
Transit 42,449       
Culture and recreation 141,308     
Public works 5,340        


Total governmental activities depreciation expense 600,357$   


Business-type activities:
Gas 38,710$     
Water 168,039     
Liquid waste 264,324     
Golf Course 143,860     
Airport 258,823     


Total business-type activities depreciation expense 873,756$   
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The following schedule details the City’s long-term liability and obligation activity for the year 
ended June 30, 2014. 
 


Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014 1 year


Governmental activities:
Compensated absences 169,845$     57,068$       50,735$       176,178$     140,942$     
Capital leases payable 132,029       -               64,644         67,385         67,385         
Bond payable-refunding 2,325,000    -               105,000       2,220,000    105,000       
Bond payable 2,500,000    -               110,000       2,390,000    115,000       
Bond discount (38,456)        2,403           -               (36,053)        (2,403)          
Notes payable 109,132       -               11,008         98,124         15,889         
Governmental activities


long-term liabilities 5,197,550$  59,471$       341,387$     4,915,634$  441,813$     


Business-type activities:
Compensated absences 92,571$       25,836$       35,043$       83,364$       66,691$       
Lease payable -               259,642       31,739         227,903       49,198         
Business-type activities


long-term liabilities 92,571$       285,478$     66,782$       311,267$     115,889$     


 
The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the City’s bonds and notes 
payable at June 30, 2014. 
 


Year
Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest


2015 15,889$       4,419$         220,000$     177,788$       235,889$     182,207$           
2016 12,235         3,134           225,000       172,163         237,235       175,297             
2017 10,000         2,700           230,000       165,263         240,000       167,963             
2018 10,000         2,300           235,000       157,625         245,000       159,925             
2019 10,000         1,900           245,000       147,825         255,000       149,725             


2020-24 40,000         3,600           1,380,000    579,313         1,420,000    582,913             
2025-29 -               -               1,690,000    244,213         1,690,000    244,213             
2030-31 -               -               385,000       -                 385,000       -                    


Total 98,124$       18,053$       4,610,000$  1,644,188$    4,708,124$  1,662,241$        


Governmental Activities


Notes Payable Bonds Payable Total
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued  
 


Bonds Payable – The City’s bonded debt consists of a 2010 Excise Tax Revenue Bond issuance of 
$5,240,000. The Excise Tax Revenue Bond requires repayments of interest only due semi-annually 
starting January 1, 2011, with annual principal payments starting on July 1, 2011. Bonds 
outstanding at June 30, 2014, were as follows: 
 


Original Maturity Interest Outstanding
Amount Ranges Rates Principal


Excise tax revenue bond 2,525,000$  2030 3.70% 2,390,000$  
Excise tax revenue refunding bond 2,715,000    2030 3.70% 2,220,000    


Total excise tax revenue bonds 5,240,000$  4,610,000    


Amortized bond discount (36,053)        


Revenue bonds, net 4,573,947$  


Description


Governmental Activities


 
Notes Payable – Notes payable consisted of the following: 
 


Original Maturity Interest Outstanding
Amount Ranges Rates Principal


Note payable -  Company 100,000$     2023 4.00% 90,000$       
Note payable -  Individual 60,000         2016 7.00% 8,124           


Total notes payable 160,000$     98,124$       


Governmental Activities


Description


 
 
Capital Leases Payable – The City has acquired equipment under the provisions of a long-term 
lease agreements classified as capital leases for accounting purposes because they provides for a 
bargain purchase option or a transfer of ownership by the end of the lease term. 
 
The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the City’s capital leases 
payable at June 30, 2014. 


Year Total Total
Ending Minimum Minimum
June 30 Principal Interest Lease Pmts Principal Interest Lease Pmts


2015 67,385$  2,856$    70,241$ 49,198$   8,101$    57,299$      
2016 -         -         -         51,172     6,126      57,299        
2017 -         -         -         53,226     4,072      57,299        
2018 -         -         -         55,363     1,936      57,299        
2019 -         -         -         18,944     156         19,100        


Total 67,385$  2,856$    70,241$ 227,903$ 20,392$  248,295$    


Governmental Activities
Leases Payable


Business-type Activities
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued  
 
The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 
 


Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total


Equipment 516,602$          259,642$         776,244$         
Less: accumulated depreciation (449,656)           (12,364)           (462,020)         


Carrying value 66,946$            247,278$         314,224$         


 
NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City carries 
commercial insurance for all such risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and employees’ 
health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
 
NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
Plan Descriptions – The City contributes to the two plans described below.  Benefits are established 
by state statute and generally provide retirement, death, long-term disability, survivor, and health 
insurance premium benefits.  The retirement benefits are generally paid at a percentage, based on 
years of service, of the retirees’ average compensation.  Long-term disability benefits vary by 
circumstance, but generally pay a percentage of the employee’s monthly compensation.  Health 
insurance premium benefits are generally paid as a flat dollar amount per month towards the 
retiree’s health care insurance premiums, in amounts based on whether the benefit is for the retiree 
or for the retiree and dependents 
 
The Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) administers cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension, health insurance premium, and long-term disability plans that cover employees of 
the State of Arizona and participating political subdivisions and school districts.  The ASRS is 
governed by the Arizona State Retirement System Board according to the provisions of A.R.S.  
Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2.  The system issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information.  This report may be obtained by 
writing to the Arizona State Retirement System, 3300 N.  Central Ave., P.O.  Box 33910, Phoenix, 
Arizona, 85067-3910 or by calling (602) 240-2000 or 1 (800) 621-3778. 
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NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLANS – Continued 
 
The Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) administers agent multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension and health insurance premium plans that cover public safety personnel who 
are regularly assigned hazardous duty as employees of the State of Arizona or one of its political 
subdivisions.  The PSPRS, acting as a common investment and administrative agent, is governed by 
a five-member board, known as The Fund Manager, and the participating local boards according to 
the provisions of A.R.S.  Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4.  The PSPRS issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  This 
report may be obtained by writing to the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System, 3010 East 
Camelback Road, Suite 200, Phoenix, Arizona 85016-4416, or by calling (602) 255-5575. 
 
Funding Policy – The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan members’ 
and the City’s contribution rates for both ASRS and PSPRS. 
 
Cost-sharing plans – For the year ended June 30, 2014, active ASRS members and the City were 
each required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 11.54 percent (11.30 
percent for retirement and 0.24 percent for long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered 
payroll.  The City’s contributions to ASRS for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012, were 
$262,066, $264,828, and $254,213, respectively, which were equal to the required contributions for 
the year. 
 
Agent plans – For the year ended June 30, 2014, active PSPRS members were required by statute to 
contribute 10.35 percent of the members’ annual covered payroll.  For the police department, the 
City was required to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 22.80 percent, of which 1.12 
percent was the health insurance premium portion.  For the fire department, the City was required to 
contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 21.63 percent, of which 1.71 percent was the health 
insurance premium portion.   
 
The contribution requirements for the year ended June 30, 2014, were established by the June 30, 
2012 actuarial valuations, and those actuarial valuations were based on the following actuarial 
methods and assumptions. 


Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events in the future.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plans 
and the annual required contributions are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made.  The required schedule of funding status 
presented below provides multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of the 
plans’ assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits.   
 
Projections of benefits are based on 1) the plans as understood by the City of Benson, Arizona and 
plan members and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date, and 2) the pattern of 
sharing benefit costs between the City and plan members to that point.  Actuarial calculations 
reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce 
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.  The significant







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2014 
 


- 43 - 


NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLANS – Continued 
 
actuarial methods and assumptions used to establish the fiscal year 2014 contribution requirements 
are as follows: 
 


Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period


Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:


Investment rate of return 8.00%
Projected salary increases 5.00% - 9.00%
Payroll growth 5.00%


7-year smoothed market 


June 30, 2012
Entry Age Normal
Level percent-of-pay closed
24 years for underfunded actuarial liability, 20 
years for overfunded


 
Trend Information – Annual pension cost information for the current and two preceding years 
follows for each of the agent plans. 
 


Year Annual Net
Ended Pension Pension


Plan June 30 Cost (APC) Obligation


Pension - Police 2014 211,149     100 % -             
2013 175,377     100 -             
2012 160,607     100 -             


Pension - Fire 2014 22,501       100 % -             
2013 19,707       100 -             
2012 7,603         100 -             


Health Insurance - Police 2014 9,134         100 % -             
2013 9,842         100 -             
2012 9,738         100 -             


Health Insurance - Fire 2014 1,303         100 % -             
2013 1,342         100 -             
2012 1,563         100 -             


Contributed
of APC


Percentage


 
Schedules of Funded Status – Following are the schedules of funded status of the plans as of the 
most recent valuation date, June 30, 2014, and the previous two fiscal years.  The fiscal year 2014 
actuarial methods and assumptions used for the schedules are not significantly different than the 
fiscal year 2012 actuarial methods and assumptions as described above. 
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NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLANS – Continued  
 


Pension-Police
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2014 2,010,735$ 3,895,269$  1,884,534$ 51.6      % 784,311$ 240.3          %
6/30/2013 2,080,926   3,443,201    1,362,275   60.4      785,494   173.4          
6/30/2012 1,978,329   3,334,699    1,356,370   59.3      739,731   183.4          


Pension-Fire
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2014 421,688$    500,384$     78,696$      84.3      % 68,532$   114.8          %
6/30/2013 400,117      463,920       63,803        86.2      68,531     93.1            
6/30/2012 369,108      435,891       66,783        84.7      69,095     96.7            


Health Insurance-Police
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2014 140,167$    118,884$     (21,283)$    117.9    % 784,311$ -              %
6/30/2013 -             114,719       114,719      -       785,494   14.6            
6/30/2012 -             95,227         95,227        -       739,731   12.9            


Health Insurance-Fire
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2014 8,188$        18,787$       10,599$      43.6      % 68,532$   15.5            %
6/30/2013 -             18,901         18,901        -       68,531     27.6            
6/30/2012 -             17,527         17,527        -       69,095     25.4            


Funded
Ratio
(a/b)


Funded
Ratio
(a/b)


(a/b)


Funded
Ratio


Funded
Ratio
(a/b)
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NOTE 9 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY 
 
Interfund receivables and payables—Interfund balances at June 30, 2014, were as follows: 
 


Solid Waste 
Payable from General Fund Gas Fund Fund Total


HURF/LTAF Fund 653,481$         -$                -$                653,481$         
Capital Projects Fund 288,691           -                  -                  288,691           
Transit Fund (nonmajor) 188,526           -                  -                  188,526           
Water Fund -                  533,957           -                  533,957           
Liquid Waste Fund -                  572,138           -                  572,138           
Golf Course Fund -                  356,256           49,707             405,963           
Municipal Airport Fund 680,819           -                  161,040           841,859           


1,811,517$      1,462,351$      210,747$         3,484,615$      


Payable to


 
Interfund transfers—Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, were as follows: 
 


Capital
Transfer to General Fund Projects Fund Total


Water Fund -$                39,023$           39,023$           
Grants Fund 121,612           -                  121,612           


121,612$         39,023$           160,635$         


Transfer from


 
The purpose of the interfund transfers shown above were to pay for capital expenditures and to fund 
current operations. 
 
 
NOTE 10 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
At June 30, 2014, the following funds reported a deficit fund balances, HURF/LTAF $566,656, 
Capital Project $308,253, and Transit $166,879. 
 
 
NOTE 9 – RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING NET POSITION 
 
The City had to restate net position of the Governmental Activities to adjust for deferred costs 
which are no longer considered assets under GASB 65 (see Note 1).  The effects of the restatement 
are a reduction of beginning net position of the Governmental Activities in the amount of $158,510 
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Actual Variance with


Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue


Taxes 3,055,000$       3,055,000$       3,176,200$       121,200$          
Intergovernmental 1,460,391         1,460,391         1,309,134         (151,257)           
Other revenue 126,800            126,800            67,833              (58,967)             
Charges for services 58,600              58,600              53,211              (5,389)               
Licenses and permits 90,350              90,350              54,848              (35,502)             
Fines and forfeitures 69,000              69,000              27,746              (41,254)             
Interest 5,000                5,000                4,417                (583)                  


Total revenue 4,865,141         4,865,141         4,693,389         (171,752)           


Expenditures
Current


Public safety 2,625,291         2,625,291         2,229,771         395,520            
General government 1,905,220         1,905,220         1,564,047         341,173            
Culture and recreation 884,350            884,350            836,426            47,924              
Public works 109,398            109,398            75,535              33,863              


Debt service
Principal 300,438            300,438            290,652            9,786                
Interest 206,225            206,225            193,764            12,461              


Capital outlay 250,000            250,000            50,681              199,319            
Total expenditures 6,280,922         6,280,922         5,240,876         1,040,046         


Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (1,415,781)        (1,415,781)        (547,487)           868,294            


Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (out) (284,219)           (284,219)           (121,612)           162,607            


Total other financing
sources (uses) (284,219)           (284,219)           (121,612)           162,607            


Net changes in fund balance (1,700,000)        (1,700,000)        (669,099)           1,030,901         


Fund balance, July 1, 2013 1,700,000         1,700,000         4,788,100         3,088,100         


Fund balance, June 30, 2014 -                    -$                  4,119,001$       4,119,001$       


Budgeted Amounts







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Required Supplementary Information 


Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
HURF/LTAF Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2014 
 
 


See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule. 
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Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget


Revenue
Intergovernmental 361,147$          361,147$          335,729$          (25,418)$           


Total revenue 361,147            361,147            335,729            (25,418)             


Expenditures
Current


Highways and streets 361,147            361,147            360,782            365                   
Total expenditures 361,147            361,147            360,782            365                   


Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures -                    -                    (25,053)             (25,053)             


Net changes in fund balance -                    -                    (25,053)             (25,053)             


Fund balance, July 1, 2013 -                    -                    (541,603)           (541,603)           


Fund balance, June 30, 2014 -                    -$                  (566,656)$         (566,656)$         


Budgeted Amounts







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Required Supplementary Information 


Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
Capital Projects Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2014 
 
 


See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule. 
- 49 – 


Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget


Revenue
Taxes 400,000$          400,000$          178,656$          (221,344)$         
Intergovernmental 855,000            855,000            -                    (855,000)           
Interest -                    -                    650                   650                   
Impact fees 50,000              50,000              -                    (50,000)             


Total revenue 1,305,000         1,305,000         179,306            (1,125,694)        


Expenditures
Current


General government 280,000            280,000            250,000            30,000              
Highways and streets 300,000            300,000            20,561              279,439            


Capital outlay 1,475,000         1,475,000         5,627                1,469,373         
Total expenditures 2,055,000         2,055,000         276,188            1,778,812         


Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (750,000)           (750,000)           (96,882)             653,118            


Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (out) 750,000            750,000            (39,023)             (789,023)           


Total other financing
sources (uses) 750,000            750,000            (39,023)             (789,023)           


Net changes in fund balance -                    -                    (135,905)           (135,905)           


Fund balance, July 1, 2013 -                    -                    (172,348)           (172,348)           


Fund balance, June 30, 2014 -                    -$                  (308,253)$         (308,253)$         


Budgeted Amounts







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Required Supplementary Information 


Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
June 30, 2014 
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NOTE 1 – BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL 
 
Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) require the City to prepare and adopt a balanced budget 
annually for each governmental fund. The City Council must approve such operating budgets on 
or before the third Monday in July to allow sufficient time for the legal announcements and 
hearings required for the adoption of the property tax levy on the third Monday in August. 
A.R.S. prohibit expenditures or liabilities in excess of the amounts budgeted. 
 
Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department level. In certain instances, 
transfers of appropriations between departments or from the contingency account to a department 
may be made upon the City Councils’ approval. 
 
NOTE 2 – BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The City’s budget is prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 
 
 
 
 







 


- 51 - 


 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 


- 52 - 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


OTHER REPORTING SECTION 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 


COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 


ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
To the City Council  
City of Benson, Arizona 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the 
City of Benson, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Benson, Arizona’s basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 13, 2015. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of 
Benson, Arizona’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Benson, Arizona’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 


 
February 13, 2015 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE 


TO THE USES OF HIGHWAY USER REVENUE FUND MONIES 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARS TITLE 28, CHAPTER 18, ARTICLE 2 


 
 
To the City Council  
City of Benson, Arizona 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, 
each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Benson as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2014, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated February 13, 2015. 


In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City 
failed to use highway user revenue fund monies received by the City pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statutes Title 28, Chapter 18, Article 2 and any other dedicated state transportation 
revenues received by the City solely for the authorized transportation purposes. However, our 
audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. 


This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the members of the 
Arizona State Legislature and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is 
not limited. 
 


 
February 13, 2015 
 







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
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June 30, 2014 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 


The Auditor General of the State of Arizona 
 
The Honorable Mayor and Council of the 
City of Benson, Arizona 
 
We have examined the accompanying Annual Expenditure Limitation Report of the City of 
Benson, Arizona, for the year ended June 30, 2014. This report is the responsibility of the City’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this report based on our examination. 
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the report and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our 
examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the Annual Expenditure Limitation Report of the City of Benson, Arizona 
referred to above presents, in all material respects, the information prescribed by the uniform 
expenditure reporting system as described in Note 1. 
 


 
February 13, 2015 







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
 


Annual Expenditure Limitation Report - Part I 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
  


See accompanying notes. 
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1.  Economic Estimates Commission expenditure limitation -$                   


2.  Voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation
(Approved May 19, 2009) 19,961,356        


3.  Enter applicable amount from Line 1 or Line 2 19,961,356$      


4.  Amount subject to the expenditure limitation (total
amount from Part II, Line C) 10,125,142        


5.  Board-authorized expenditures necessitated by a
disaster declared by the Governor
(Article IX, Sec. 20[2][a], Arizona Constitution) -                     


6.  Board-authorized expenditures necessitated by a 
disaster not declared by the Governor 
(Article IX, Sec. 20[2][b], Arizona Constitution) -                     


7.  Prior-year voter-approved expenditures to exceed
the expenditure limitation for the reporting fiscal year
(Article IX, Sec. 20[2][c], Arizona Constitution) -                     


8.  Subtotal 10,125,142        


9.  Board-authorized excess expenditures for the 
previous fiscal year not declared by the Governor
and not approved by the voters
(Article IX, Sec. 20[2][b], Arizona Constitution) -                     


10.  Total adjusted amount subject to the expenditure
limitation 10,125,142        


11.  Amount under (in excess of) the expenditure limitation
(if excess expenditures are reported, provide an explanation.) 9,836,214$        


 
I hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that the information contained in this 
report is accurate and in accordance with the requirements of the uniform expenditure reporting 
system. 
 
Signature of Chief Fiscal Officer:   
 
Name and Title:   
 
Telephone No.: (520) 586-2245        Date:_____________________________ 







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
 


Annual Expenditure Limitation Report - Part II 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
  


See accompanying notes. 
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Governmental Enterprise Fiduciary
Description Funds Funds Funds Total


A.  Amounts reported on
the reconciliation, Line D 6,288,256$    3,810,486$    26,400$         10,125,142$   


B. Less exclusions claimed
(Note 1) -                 -                 -                 -                  


C. Amounts subject to the
expenditure limitation 6,288,256$    3,810,486$    26,400$         10,125,142$   


 







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
 


Annual Expenditure Limitation Report - Reconciliation 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 


  


See accompanying notes. 
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Governmental Enterprise Fiduciary
Description Funds Funds Funds Total


A. Total expenditures/expenses and
applicable other financing uses
reported within the general purpose
financial statements 6,288,256$    4,557,327$    26,400$         10,871,983$    


B. Subtractions:
1. Items not requiring the


use of working capital:
Depreciation -                 (873,756)        -                 (873,756)          
Loss on disposal of capital
  assets -                 -                 -                 -                   
Bad debt expense -                 -                 -                 -                   
Claims incurred but not reported -                 -                 -                 -                   
Landfill closure and
  postclosure care costs -                 -                 -                 -                   


2. Expenditures of separate legal
entities established under
Arizona Revised Statutes -                 -                 -                 -                   


3. Present value of net minimum
capital lease and installment
purchase contract payments
recorded as expenditures
at inception of the agreements -                 -                 -                 -                   


4. Involuntary court judgments -                 -                 -                 -                   
5. Total Subtractions -                 (873,756)        -                 (873,756)          


C. Additions:
1. Principal payments on


long-term debt -                 31,739           -                 31,739             
2. Acquisition of capital assets -                 95,176           -                 95,176             
3. Claims paid in the current year but


reported as expenses incurred but
not reported in previous years -                 -                 -                 -                   


4. Landfill closure and postclosure
care costs recorded as expended
in previous years -                 -                 -                 -                   


5. Total Additions -                 126,915         -                 126,915           


D. Amounts reported on
Part II, Line A 6,288,256$    3,810,486$    26,400$         10,125,142$    







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
 


Notes to Annual Expenditure Limitation Report  
Year Ended June 30, 2014 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 
The Annual Expenditure Limitation Report (AELR) is presented as prescribed by the Uniform 
Expenditure Reporting System (UERS), as required by Arizona Revised Statutes §41-1279.07, 
and in accordance with the voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation adopted March 19, 
2009, as authorized by the Arizona Constitution, Article IX, §20(9). 
 
In accordance with the UERS requirements, a note to the AELR is presented below for any 
exclusion claimed on Part II and each subtraction or addition in the Reconciliation that cannot 
be traced directly to an amount reported in the fund financial statements.  All references to 
financial statement amounts in the following notes refer to the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the Governmental Funds; Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position for the Proprietary Funds; Statement of 
Cash Flows for the Proprietary Funds; and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
for the Fiduciary Funds. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – LONG-TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS 
 
The addition for principal payments on long-term debt in the enterprise funds consists of the 
following debt payments: 
 


Lease payable - Golf Course 31,739$     


 
 
NOTE 3 – CAPTIAL ASSET ACQUISTION 
 


Gas-Utility system 47,487$     
Water-Utility system 44,018       
Golf Course - Equipment 3,671        


95,176$     


 
 





		NB 3 - Exhibit 1 - Audit Report Final 2013-2014 170315.pdf

		OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

		GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

		Capital Assets



		Economic Factors

		Financial Contact












                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
The City Prosecutor’s contract is set to expire June 30, 2015. This contract is being brought before you at this 
time to better fit with the budget process. Ms. Roberts has indicated she is willing and able to continue 
providing prosecutorial services to the City of Benson under the same terms. 
 
The contract before you is the same except with the date changes. The contract amount remains the same as 
approved in the 2013 to 2015 budget cycle. This contract supersedes the April 8, 2013 contract and will be 
effective July 1, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval of the contract for Prosecutorial Services between Ann P. Roberts and the City of Benson 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 4   
                                               
From: William D. Stephens, City Manager  
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding a contract for Prosecutorial Services between Ann P. Roberts and the 
City of Benson 
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting              April 13, 2015 
 







CONTRACT FOR PROSECUTORIAL SERVICES 
 


City of Benson, Arizona  
 
 This Contract is entered into this 138th day of April, 20153, and becomes effective on the 
1st day of July, 20153, under the following terms and conditions, by and between THE CITY 
OF BENSON, an Arizona body politic, hereinafter referred to as “CITY” and ANN P. 
ROBERTS, an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Arizona, hereinafter referred to 
as “ROBERTS”. 
 


WHEREAS, the CITY has entered into an agreement with COCHISE COUNTY to 
consolidate the City Magistrate Court and the Justice of the Peace Court for Precinct No. III, 
located at 126 W. 5th Street, Suite 1, Benson, Arizona; 


 
WHEREAS, the terms of the Court Consolidation Agreement executed between the City 


of Benson and Cochise County effective July 1, 2004, require the CITY to provide all 
prosecutorial services for the Justice of the Peace for Precinct No. III; 
 
 WHEREAS, CITY requires certain prosecutorial services on a continuing basis and 
ROBERTS is willing and licensed by the State of Arizona to provide the necessary prosecuting 
services. 
 
 THEREFORE, FOR THE CONSIDERATION SET FORTH HEREIN, IT IS 
HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1.  The terms of this Contract establish the agreement under which ROBERTS will be 


available to the CITY for up to twenty (20) hours a week to provide prosecutorial legal 
services to the CITY in accordance with the mutually agreed upon Scope of Services as 
shown on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. 


 
2. ROBERTS shall be reappointed to the position of City Prosecutor as of the effective date 


of this Contract and shall be available to CITY to handle those legal matters required of 
the City Prosecutor within the scope of work as described on Exhibit “A”, in accordance 
with the terms of the Court Consolidation Agreement executed between the City of 
Benson and Cochise County. 


 
3. ROBERTS shall be compensated at an annual rate of FIFTY-FIVE THOUSAND SIX 


HUNDRED TWENTY ($55,620.00) DOLLARS  and said payment shall commence 
July 1, 20153 , and ROBERTS shall be compensated at the minimum weekly rate of 
ONE THOUSAND SIXTY NINE DOLLARS AND SIXTY-ONE ($1069.61) . 


 
4. During the term of this Contract, ROBERTS’ employment classification shall continue 


as a part time employee of the City of Benson and CITY shall pay the then appropriate 
matching contribution to ROBERTS’ account with the Arizona State Retirement System 
and all related payroll taxes, including but not limited to Social Security, Medicare, 
Federal and State withholding, State unemployment and worker’s compensation.  
 


5.    The term of this Contract shall begin on July 1, 20153, and shall continue through June 
30, 20175, and shall supersede the existing contract. 


 







6.   In the event that this Contract is renewed on or before June 30, 20175, the annual rates 
set forth hereinabove for ROBERTS shall be reviewed prior to such renewal and may be 
subject to annual increase as negotiated between ROBERTS and the City Council.  In 
the event there is no salary increase negotiated in the annual rate, ROBERTS’ annual 
salary shall automatically be amended to reflect any cost of living salary adjustments 
granted to other employees.  
 


7.  Either party may terminate this Agreement by sixty (60) days written notice to the other 
delivered in person or by mail addressed to their usual business address. 


 
8.   This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona. 
 
9.   This Contract is an integrated agreement; adopted by the parties as a complete and 


exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement, to be a final expression of the  parties 
agreement, and a full integration of the bargained for terms.  Any modification, or 
extension of the Contract shall be by formal written amendment executed by the parties 
hereto and must be approved by the Mayor and City Council, before any amended legal 
services commence. 


 
10.   Either party may pursue any remedies provided by law for the breach of this Contract.  


No right or remedy is intended to be exclusive or any other right or remedy and each 
shall be cumulative and in addition to any other right or remedy existing in law or equity 
by virtue of this Contract. 


 
11. Each provision of this Contract stands alone, and if any provision of this Contract  is held, 


in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of the provision 
and of the entire Contract will be severable and will remain in effect.  


 
12.   Any notice required to be given under this Contract shall be in writing and shall be 


delivered served by personal delivery or by certified mail upon the other party at the 
following address: 


 
  CITY:      ROBERTS: 
  City Manager     Ann P. Roberts 
  120 W. 6th Street    P.O. Box 2315 
  Benson, Arizona  85602   Benson, Arizona  85602 
 
APPROVED and ACCEPTED:    APPROVED: 
ANN P. ROBERTS      CITY OF BENSON 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
ANN P. ROBERTS      TONEY D. KING, SR., Mayor 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
DATE        DATE 
 
        ATTEST: 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
             City of Benson 







 
 


EXHIBIT “A” - Scope of Work 
 


 
ROBERTS shall provide the following services to the CITY: 
 
 


1. Shall serve and perform all functions of the City Prosecutor for the City of 
Benson in accordance with the terms of the Court Consolidation Agreement 
executed between the City of Benson and Cochise County.   


 
2. Work time shall include but is not limited to travel, research, trials, casework and 


interviews.  Training and associated travel are not included, except upon prior 
pre-approval by the City Manager. 


 
3. Shall supervise and direct the work, using her best skills and attention. 
 
4. Shall be free to establish and control her time of performance of the work,  so long 


as all work matters are handled to the satisfaction of the CITY Magistrate and 
Chief of Police. 


 
5.   Shall not be required to serve as General Counsel for the City of Benson.  
 
6.   Shall not be required to attend City Council meetings. 
 
7.   Shall not be required to perform legal research or legal memoranda or legal briefs, 


except as to Criminal Prosecution. 
 
8.   Shall not be required to represent the City before administrative boards and local 


and appellate courts in civil actions, but shall prosecute criminal cases in 
municipal courts and their appeals. 


 
9.   Shall not be required to provide legal advice or representation to the CITY on any 


matter other than criminal. 
 
10. Shall not be required to provide services as Special Counsel as may be required 


by the City in areas such as planning, zoning and land use; human  resources and 
equal opportunity laws; elections, insurance and liability, litigation, 
environmental law; finance, and municipal risk pool. 


 
11.   City shall provide all necessary research materials, clerical assistance, printing 


and copying as may be required to comply with this scope of work.  City 
personnel, specifically the Legal Assistant, will be available to provide necessary 
research assistance to legal counsel as may be required to allow ROBERTS to 
perform services for the City.   


  
12. ROBERTS is not required to perform work exclusively for the CITY during the 


term of this Contract. 
 







CONTRACT FOR PROSECUTORIAL SERVICES 
 


City of Benson, Arizona  
 
 This Contract is entered into this 13th day of April, 2015, and becomes effective on the 
1st day of July, 2015, under the following terms and conditions, by and between THE CITY OF 
BENSON, an Arizona body politic, hereinafter referred to as “CITY” and ANN P. ROBERTS, 
an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Arizona, hereinafter referred to as 
“ROBERTS”. 
 


WHEREAS, the CITY has entered into an agreement with COCHISE COUNTY to 
consolidate the City Magistrate Court and the Justice of the Peace Court for Precinct No. III, 
located at 126 W. 5th Street, Suite 1, Benson, Arizona; 


 
WHEREAS, the terms of the Court Consolidation Agreement executed between the City 


of Benson and Cochise County effective July 1, 2004, require the CITY to provide all 
prosecutorial services for the Justice of the Peace for Precinct No. III; 
 
 WHEREAS, CITY requires certain prosecutorial services on a continuing basis and 
ROBERTS is willing and licensed by the State of Arizona to provide the necessary prosecuting 
services. 
 
 THEREFORE, FOR THE CONSIDERATION SET FORTH HEREIN, IT IS 
HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1.  The terms of this Contract establish the agreement under which ROBERTS will be 


available to the CITY for up to twenty (20) hours a week to provide prosecutorial legal 
services to the CITY in accordance with the mutually agreed upon Scope of Services as 
shown on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. 


 
2. ROBERTS shall be reappointed to the position of City Prosecutor as of the effective date 


of this Contract and shall be available to CITY to handle those legal matters required of 
the City Prosecutor within the scope of work as described on Exhibit “A”, in accordance 
with the terms of the Court Consolidation Agreement executed between the City of 
Benson and Cochise County. 


 
3. ROBERTS shall be compensated at an annual rate of FIFTY-FIVE THOUSAND SIX 


HUNDRED TWENTY ($55,620.00) DOLLARS  and said payment shall commence 
July 1, 2015 , and ROBERTS shall be compensated at the minimum weekly rate of ONE 
THOUSAND SIXTY NINE DOLLARS AND SIXTY-ONE ($1069.61) . 


 
4. During the term of this Contract, ROBERTS’ employment classification shall continue 


as a part time employee of the City of Benson and CITY shall pay the then appropriate 
matching contribution to ROBERTS’ account with the Arizona State Retirement System 
and all related payroll taxes, including but not limited to Social Security, Medicare, 
Federal and State withholding, State unemployment and worker’s compensation.  
 


5.    The term of this Contract shall begin on July 1, 2015, and shall continue through June 30, 
2017, and shall supersede the existing contract. 


 







6.   In the event that this Contract is renewed on or before June 30, 2017, the annual rates set 
forth hereinabove for ROBERTS shall be reviewed prior to such renewal and may be 
subject to annual increase as negotiated between ROBERTS and the City Council.  In 
the event there is no salary increase negotiated in the annual rate, ROBERTS’ annual 
salary shall automatically be amended to reflect any cost of living salary adjustments 
granted to other employees.  
 


7.  Either party may terminate this Agreement by sixty (60) days written notice to the other 
delivered in person or by mail addressed to their usual business address. 


 
8.   This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona. 
 
9.   This Contract is an integrated agreement; adopted by the parties as a complete and 


exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement, to be a final expression of the  parties 
agreement, and a full integration of the bargained for terms.  Any modification, or 
extension of the Contract shall be by formal written amendment executed by the parties 
hereto and must be approved by the Mayor and City Council, before any amended legal 
services commence. 


 
10.   Either party may pursue any remedies provided by law for the breach of this Contract.  


No right or remedy is intended to be exclusive or any other right or remedy and each 
shall be cumulative and in addition to any other right or remedy existing in law or equity 
by virtue of this Contract. 


 
11. Each provision of this Contract stands alone, and if any provision of this Contract  is held, 


in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of the provision 
and of the entire Contract will be severable and will remain in effect.  


 
12.   Any notice required to be given under this Contract shall be in writing and shall be 


delivered served by personal delivery or by certified mail upon the other party at the 
following address: 


 
  CITY:      ROBERTS: 
  City Manager     Ann P. Roberts 
  120 W. 6th Street    P.O. Box 2315 
  Benson, Arizona  85602   Benson, Arizona  85602 
 
APPROVED and ACCEPTED:    APPROVED: 
ANN P. ROBERTS      CITY OF BENSON 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
ANN P. ROBERTS      TONEY D. KING, SR., Mayor 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
DATE        DATE 
 
        ATTEST: 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
             City of Benson 







 
 


EXHIBIT “A” - Scope of Work 
 


 
ROBERTS shall provide the following services to the CITY: 
 
 


1. Shall serve and perform all functions of the City Prosecutor for the City of 
Benson in accordance with the terms of the Court Consolidation Agreement 
executed between the City of Benson and Cochise County.   


 
2. Work time shall include but is not limited to travel, research, trials, casework and 


interviews.  Training and associated travel are not included, except upon prior 
pre-approval by the City Manager. 


 
3. Shall supervise and direct the work, using her best skills and attention. 
 
4. Shall be free to establish and control her time of performance of the work,  so long 


as all work matters are handled to the satisfaction of the CITY Magistrate and 
Chief of Police. 


 
5.   Shall not be required to serve as General Counsel for the City of Benson.  
 
6.   Shall not be required to attend City Council meetings. 
 
7.   Shall not be required to perform legal research or legal memoranda or legal briefs, 


except as to Criminal Prosecution. 
 
8.   Shall not be required to represent the City before administrative boards and local 


and appellate courts in civil actions, but shall prosecute criminal cases in 
municipal courts and their appeals. 


 
9.   Shall not be required to provide legal advice or representation to the CITY on any 


matter other than criminal. 
 
10. Shall not be required to provide services as Special Counsel as may be required 


by the City in areas such as planning, zoning and land use; human  resources and 
equal opportunity laws; elections, insurance and liability, litigation, 
environmental law; finance, and municipal risk pool. 


 
11.   City shall provide all necessary research materials, clerical assistance, printing 


and copying as may be required to comply with this scope of work.  City 
personnel, specifically the Legal Assistant, will be available to provide necessary 
research assistance to legal counsel as may be required to allow ROBERTS to 
perform services for the City.   


  
12. ROBERTS is not required to perform work exclusively for the CITY during the 


term of this Contract. 
 








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
City of Benson Staff is seeking approval and authorization from the City Council to apply for the Arizona 
Department of Transportation Grant for rural transit (i.e. BAT).  There was a Public Hearing held for the Grant 
on March 23, 2015 at the Regular Council meeting.  There were no comments made for or against the seeking 
of financial assistance from the Arizona Department of Transportation. 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval of Resolution 12-2015 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                        Agenda Item # 5 
                                               
From: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 12-2015 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 
Arizona, authorizing the City Manager to apply for Arizona Department of Transportation Section 5311 Funds to 
operate a Rural Public Transit System 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                 April 13, 2015 







RESOLUTION 12-2015 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BENSON, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPLY FOR ARIZONA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION SECTION 5311 FUNDS TO OPERATE A 
RURAL PUBLIC TRANSIT SYSTEM 
 
 WHEREAS, the Arizona Department of Transportation provides funding to rural 
communities with a population of less than 50,000 through its Section 5311 programs to fund 
rural public transit systems that provide rides for elderly and disabled persons on an as-requested 
basis as well as Fixed Routes open to the general public on a fare basis; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the local elderly/disabled transportation and deviated fixed route programs 
are currently operated by the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City plans to operate the local elderly/ disabled transportation and 
deviated fixed route programs, provided that funding sources are available. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Benson,  Arizona, that the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to apply to the 
Arizona Department of Transportation for Section 5311 funding to operate a local public transit 
system as of October 1, 2015, and is further directed to prepare funding and budget proposals 
and projections for inclusion in the City’s FY 2016 budget that set forth the means for acquiring 
the assets and personnel needed to operate a local transportation service, both a Dial-a-Ride 
service for the benefit of the region’s elderly and disabled persons and for a Deviated Fixed 
Route System for the fare-paying general public. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, Arizona, 
this 13th day of April, 2015.  
 
 
                                ___________________________  
                                TONEY D. KING, SR., Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
VICKI L. VIVIAN, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
MESCH, CLARK AND ROTHSCHILD, P.C. 
By Gary J. Cohen 
 


Page 1 of 1 








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Discussion and approval of an updated contract with Catholic Community Services and Southern Arizona, Inc. 
(CCS) to provide nutritional services in Benson and the surrounding areas. This contract was negotiated to 
replace the existing contract so that it is consistent with the day-to-day operations and to be in compliance with 
the Gifting Clause.  
 
Some of the changes to the contract include the service area, adjustments for a site manager to remain on 
premises for administrative purposes, an adjustment to insurance limits and inclusion of an endorsement.   
 
 
Note: Blue strike through removal of language in the agreement; blue underline additions to the agreement.  
      
Attachment:  
Contract that reflects the changes as agreed by CCS 
Contract signed by CCS 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 6 
                                               
From: Laura Parkin, Recreation Coordinator 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding the Occupancy and Services Agreement between Catholic 
Community Services and the City of Benson to assist with meal services to eligible persons residing in and 
around Benson by providing space at the Benson Community Center, 705 W. Union Street, Benson, Arizona 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting               April 13, 2015 
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OCCUPANCY AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 


THIS OCCUPANCY AND SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of 
this ______ day of ________, 2015, by and between THE CITY OF BENSON, and Arizona 
municipal corporation, whose address is 120 West Sixth Street, Benson, Arizona 85602 (the 
“City”), and Catholic Community Services of Southern Arizona, Inc., doing business as Catholic 
Community Services of Cochise County, hereinafter “Contractor”.  


 WHEREAS, Contractor desires to provide certain meal services to eligible persons 
residing in and around Benson: and 


 WHEREAS, Contractor requests the City provide it space at the Benson Community 
Center, 705 W. Union, Benson, Arizona, to assist in performing such services, and  


WHEREAS, the City is amenable to providing Contractor with the requested space subject to 
the following terms and conditions.  


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:  


I. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 


As set forth more fully in Paragraph II below, the Contractor will provide its normal and 
customary Nutritional Services to City residents and residents living in the near proximity 
of the City.  


The Contractor agrees to perform all contractual duties and responsibilities as approved 
by the City. Said services will be performed in the Benson Community Center, 705 W. 
Union building, which will be occupied by Contractor on a non-exclusive basis.  


II. CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS: 


A. The Contractor will provide and serve noon meals at the Benson Community Center, 
705 W. Union as well as providing home deliveries to the homebound on a daily basis, 
excluding holidays, Saturdays, and Saturdays, to Senior Citizens age 60 and over. The 
above services shall be provided in the following areas: Benson, Bowie, Dragoon, J-6, 
Kansas Settlement, Mescal, North Ocotillo, Pomerene, San Simon, Skyline, St. David, 
Sunizona, and Sunsites.  


B. The City will make available to the Contractor the dining room and kitchen areas of 
the Benson Community Center for the serving of meals; in addition, the Contractor shall 
be granted the use of office space next to the kitchen for the purpose of fulfilling its 
operations described in this Agreement.  


C. The Contractor will be responsible for collecting donations for the meals provided at 
the established prices.  


D. The Contractor agrees to provide certain equipment it deems necessary to fulfill the 
terms and conditions of this contract. This equipment is described in Exhibit A. Any 
additional equipment to be stored or used in the Community Center shall require prior 
consent of the City.  
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E. Participation in the Nutrition Program will be made available to Senior Citizens, age 
60 and over, living in Benson and surrounding areas identified in Paragraph II (A) above, 
who are in need of the program.  


F. The Contractor shall have use of the Benson Community Center, 705 W. Union facility 
from 9:00 A.M. to 12:301:00 P.M., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays, for 
serving of Senior meals. All kitchen staff and volunteers will vacate the premises at 
12:301:00 P.M.  


G. Contractor program Site Manager may occupy the facility from 7:30 A.M. to 4:00 
P.M., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays, to perform necessary administrative 
duties as they apply to the operations of Contractor. Program Site Manager may occupy 
the facility one day a week from 6:30 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. to receive deliveries. Activities of 
the Program Site Manager may not interfere with building rentals after 1:00 P.M., 
Monday through Friday.  


H.G. The Contractor will be responsible for keeping the kitchen, dining room, toilet 
facilities and offices in a clean and orderly fashion. The Contractor shall keep all kitchen 
appliances in condition to comply with the Cochise County Health Department code.  


I.H. Restroom paper supplies will be supplied by the City.  


J.I. The Contractor shall pay no rent for services provided to locations described in 
paragraph II (A) above..  


K. The Contractor shall not pay for utilities for services provided to locations described in 
paragraph II (A) above. 


LJ. The City will be responsible for the outside grounds.  


MK. The Contractor will be responsible for 100% of telephone lines for all Contractor 
business. The Contractor will not cover the cost of any long distance calls made before 
7:00 A.M. and after 5:00 P.M. 


III. INSURANCE PROVISIONS: 


CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain at its own expense, during the entire term of 
this Contract the following type(s) and amounts of insurance.  


a) Commercial General Liability Insurance at least as broad as ISO’s Standard CG 
00 01 Form, and including Products/Completed Operations, in an amount not 
less than $1,000,000.00$500,000.00 combined single limit Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage. Said insurance shall name City as additional insured, and 
Contractor shall provide City with a Certificate of Insurance and Endorsement.  


b) Commercial or Business Automobile Liability Insurance at least as broad as 
ISO’s Standard CA 00 01 Form, for owned non-owned and hired vehicles used in 
the performance of this Contract with limits not less than 
$1,000,000.00$500,000.00 combined single limit, or $1,000,000.00$500,000.00 
bodily injury and $1,000,000.00$500,000.00 property damage. Contractor shall 
provide City with a Certificate of Insurance and Endorsement; and 
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c) Statutory Workers’ Compensation including not less than 
$1,000,000.00$500,000.00 Employers Liability Coverage.  


CONTRACTOR shall provide CITY with current certificates of insurance annually. All 
certificates must provide for guaranteed 30 days written notice of material change, non-
renewal or cancellation.  


IV. MICELLANEOUS PROVISIONS: 


A. Non-discrimination: Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate in any manner, 
because of age, race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, and to abide by all 
Federal and State laws regarding non-discrimination.  


B. Indemnification: Contractor hereby agrees, during the performance of this 
Agreement, to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its Mayor, the City 
Council, appointed boards and commissions and employees individually and 
collectively from all fines, suits, claims, demands, actions, costs, obligations, 
attorney’s fees, or liability of any kind, arising out of or related to this Agreement, 
excluding only those acts or omissions caused by the sole negligence of the City, 
and does hereby agree to and assumes at risk in the performance of this 
Agreement.  


C. Conflict of Interest: Both parties understand and agree that the Contractor is not 
and has not been an agent or employee of the City of Benson, but the Contractor 
has been, and will be an independent contractor, and is solely responsible for all 
employees, debts, and programs needed to provide such services, and that no 
member of the City Council, official of either City or Contractor, or employee of 
the City or Contractor has a conflict of interest or benefit incurring, other than 
those that would incur to the public at large. For breach or violation of the terms 
of this Contract, the City has the Right to terminate this Contract without liability.  


V. TERMS: 


This contract shall commence on _________, and shall renew automatically for a term of 
three years with automatic renewal at the end of the first and second years unless either 
side gives written notice of intent to terminate at least 30 days before the renewal date. 
The renewal date of this contract shall be determined by the commencement date of this 
contract. each year unless either party elects to terminate this Agreement. Thirty 
daysOne Hundred Twenty (30120) days written notice shall be given by either party prior 
to the termination of this Contract for any reason.  


VI. LEGAL WORKER REQUIREMENTS: 


As mandated by A.R.S. § 41-4401, the City is prohibited from awarding a contract to any 
contractor or subcontractor that fails to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). The City must 
also insure that every contractor and subcontractor complies with federal immigration 
laws and regulations that relate to their employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A). Therefore, in 
signing and performing any contract, including this Agreement, for the City, Contractor 
fully understands that: 
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a) It warrants that it and its subcontractors it may use comply with all federal 
immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and their 
compliance with A.R.S. § 23-214(A); 


b) A breach of the warranty set forth in subsection (A) shall be deemed a material 
breach of the Contract that is subject to penalties up to and including termination 
of the Contract; and  


c) The City or its designee retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
contractor or subcontractor employee who works on the Contract to ensure that 
the contractor or subcontractor is complying with the warranty under subsection 
(A).  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF THE PARTIES HERETO SIGN THEIR NAMES IN AGREEMENT.  


 
 
____________________________ 
Printed Name of Authorized  
Representative 
 
 
____________________________   _________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative   Date 
Catholic Community Services of  
Southern Arizona, DBA Catholic  
Community Services of Cochise Arizona.  
 
 
 
 
____________________________       _________________________ 
City of Benson       Date 
Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
___________________________   _________________________ 
City Clerk       Mesch, Clark & Rothschild, PC 
        City Attorney 
         By Gary J. Cohen 
 







OCCUPANCY AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 


THIS OCCUPANCY AND SERVICES AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is entered into as of 
this;20  	day of Mo-t-A-aim  2015, by and between THE CITY OF BENSON, and Arizona 
municipal corporation, whose address is 120 West Sixth Street, Benson, Arizona 85602 (the 
"City"), and Catholic Community Services of Southern Arizona, Inc., doing business as Catholic 
Community Services of Cochise County, hereinafter "Contractor". 


WHEREAS, Contractor desires to provide certain meal services to eligible persons 
residing in and around Benson: and 


WHEREAS, Contractor requests the City provide it space at the Benson Community 
Center, 705 W. Union, Benson, Arizona, to assist in performing such services, and 


WHEREAS, the City is amenable to providing Contractor with the requested space subject to 
the following terms and conditions. 


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 


SCOPE OF SERVICES: 


As set forth more fully in Paragraph ll below, the Contractor will provide its normal and 
customary Nutritional Services to City residents and residents living in the near proximity 
of the City. 


The Contractor agrees to perform all contractual duties and responsibilities as approved 
by the City. Said services will be performed in the Benson Community Center, 705 W. 
Union building, which will be occupied by Contractor on a non-exclusive basis. 


CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS: 


A. The Contractor will provide and serve noon meals at the Benson Community Center, 
705 W. Union as well as providing home deliveries to the homebound on a daily basis, 
excluding holidays, Saturdays, and Sundays, to Senior Citizens age 60 and over. The 
above services shall be provided in the following areas: Benson, J-6, Mescal, North 
Ocotillo, Pomerene, Skyline, St. David, and, 


B. The City will make available to the Contractor the dining room and kitchen areas of 
the Benson Community Center for the serving of meals; in addition, the Contractor shall 
be granted the use of office space next to the kitchen for the purpose of fulfilling its 
operations described in this Agreement. 


C. The Contractor will be responsible for collecting donations for the meals provided at 
the established prices. 


D. The Contractor agrees to provide certain equipment it deems necessary to fulfill the 
terms and conditions of this contract. This equipment is described in Exhibit A. Any 
additional equipment to be stored or used in the Community Center shall require prior 
consent of the City. 







E. Participation in the Nutrition Program will be made available to Senior Citizens, age 


60 and over, living in Benson and surrounding areas identified in Paragraph 11(A) above, 
who are in need of the program. 


F. The Contractor shall have use of the Benson Community Center, 705W. Union facility 
from 9:00 A.M. to 12:30 P.M., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays, for serving of 
Senior meals. All kitchen staff and volunteers will vacate the premises at 12:30 P.M. 


G. Contractor program Site Manager may occupy the facility from 7:30 A.M. to 4:00 
P.M., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays, to perform necessary administrative 
duties as they apply to the operations of Contractor. Program Site Manager may occupy 
the facility one day a week from 6:30 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. to receive deliveries. Activities of 
the Program Site Manager may not interfere with building rentals after 1:00 P.M., 


Monday through Friday. 


H. The Contractor will be responsible for keeping the kitchen, dining room, toilet facilities 


and offices in a clean and orderly fashion. The Contractor shall keep all kitchen 
appliances in condition to comply with the Cochise County Health Department code. 


I. Restroom paper supplies will be supplied by the City. 


J. The Contractor shall pay no rent for services provided to locations described in 


paragraph 11(A) above. 


K. The Contractor shall not pay for utilities for services provided to locations described in 


paragraph 11(A) above. 


L. The City will be responsible for the outside grounds. 


M. The Contractor will be responsible for 100% of telephone lines for all Contractor 
business. 


Ill. 	INSURANCE PROVISIONS: 


CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain at its own expense, during the entire term of 
this Contract the following type(s) and amounts of insurance. 


a) Commercial General Liability Insurance at least as broad as ISO's Standard CG 


00 01 Form, and including Products/Completed Operations, in an amount not 


less than $1,000,000.00 combined single limit Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage. Said insurance shall name City as additional insured, and Contractor 


shall provide City with a Certificate of Insurance and Endorsement 


b) Commercial or Business Automobile Liability Insurance at least as broad as 
ISO's Standard CA 00 01 Form, for owned non-owned and hired vehicles used in 
the performance of this Contract with limits not less than $1,000,000.00 
combined single limit, or $1,000,000.00 bodily injury and $1,000,000.00 property 
damage. Contractor shall provide City with a Certificate of Insurance and 
Endorsement; and 







C) Statutory Workers' Compensation including not less than $1,000,000-00 


Employers Liability Coverage. 


CONTRACTOR shall provide CITY with current certificates of insurance annually. All 
certificates must provide for guaranteed 30 days written notice of material change, non-
renewal or cancellation. 


IV. MICELLANEOUS PROVISIONS: 


A. Non-discrimination: Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate in any manner, 


because of age, race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, and to abide by all 


Federal and State laws regarding non-discrimination. 


B. Indemnification: Contractor hereby agrees, during the performance of this 
Agreement, to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its Mayor, the City 


Council, appointed boards and commissions and employees individually and 
collectively from all fines, suits, claims, demands, actions, costs, obligations, 


attorney's fees, or liability of any kind, arising out of or related to this Agreement, 


excluding only those acts or omissions caused by the sole negligence of the City, 


and does hereby agree to and assumes at risk in the performance of this 
Agreement. 


C. Conflict of Interest: Both parties understand and agree that the Contractor is not 


and has not been an agent or employee of the City of Benson, but the Contractor 


has been, and will be an independent contractor, and is solely responsible for all 
employees, debts, and programs needed to provide such services, and that no 


member of the City Council, official of either City or Contractor, or employee of 


the City or Contractor has a conflict of interest or benefit incurring, other than 
those that would incur to the public at large. For breach or violation of the terms 
of this Contract, the City has the Right to terminate this Contract without liability. 


V. TERMS: 


This contract shall commence on <3/)/O(Snd shall renew automatically for a term of 


three years with automatic renewal at the end of the first and second years unless either 
side gives written notice of intent to terminate at least 30 days before the renewal date. 
The renewal date of this contract shall be determined by the commencement date of this 


contract. Thirty days (30) days written notice shall be given by either party prior to the 
termination of this Contract for any reason. 


VI. LEGAL WORKER REQUIREMENTS: 


As mandated by A.R.S. § 41-4401, the City is prohibited from awarding a contract to any 


contractor or subcontractor that fails to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). The City must 
also insure that every contractor and subcontractor complies with federal immigration 
laws and regulations that relate to their employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A). Therefore, in 
signing and performing any contract, including this Agreement, for the City, Contractor 
fully understands that 







a) It warrants that it and its subcontractors it may use comply with all federal 
immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and their 
compliance with A.R.S. § 23-214(A); 


b) A breach of the warranty set forth in subsection (A) shall be deemed a material 
breach of the Contract that is subject to penalties up to and including termination 
of the Contract; and 


c) The City or its designee retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
contractor or subcontractor employee who works on the Contract to ensure that 
the contractor or subcontractor is complying with the warranty under subsection 
(A). 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF THE PARTIES HERETO SIGN THEIR NAMES IN AGREEMENT. 


(& 
Printed Name of Authorized 
Representative 


Signature of A'uthorized Representative 
Catholic Community Services of 
Southern Arizona, DBA Catholic 
Community Services of Cochise Arizona. 


Date  


City of Benson 
	


Date 
Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 


ATTEST: 
	


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


City Clerk 
	


Mesch, Clark & Rothschild, PC 
City Attorney 
By Gary J. Cohen 








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
This item is on the agenda at the request of Councilmember Boyle and Councilmember Konrad.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Information only 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 8  
                                               
From: William D. Stephens, City Manager  
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Presentation/Report by Director of Golf Operations Joe DelVecchio about the Benson San Pedro Valley Golf 
Course 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting              April 13, 2015 
 








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
This item is on the agenda at the request of Councilmember Boyle and Councilmember Konrad.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 9  
                                               
From: William D. Stephens, City Manager  
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Discussion and possible direction to Staff about creating a budget advisory committee 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting              April 13, 2015 
 








PROCLAMATION 


WHEREAS, The Civil Rights Act of 1968 (The Fair Housing Act) and 
the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 ensure full and fair access to 
housing opportunity; and 


WHEREAS, April 2015 marks the 47th Anniversary of the signing of 
the Fair Housing Act; and 


WHEREAS, shelter is a basic human need and when shelter is 
denied, the quality of human life is greatly diminished; and 


WHEREAS, people must not be denied equal access to and 
enjoyment of housing because of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, 
disability or familial status; and 


WHEREAS, The City of Benson recognizes and values the efforts of 
those who seek to reduce barriers to full and fair housing opportunity; and 


WHEREAS, April is designated nationally as Fair Housing Month; 


NOW, THEREFORE, I, Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor of the City of 
Benson, Arizona, do hereby proclaim the month of April as 


FAIR HOUSING MONTH 


in the City of Benson and encourage all citizens to work for equal housing 
opportunity in our own community. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be 
affixed the official seal of the City of Benson, Arizona on this 10th day of 
November, 2014. 


	


. 	 . 	
- 


- 


. 	 --, 


.  - ",,  ' 	• .'  * 	 _ 


..... 	_. 
TONEY D. KIN, 	 .,---....- 


ATTEST: 
-  . 


•  -  .- _. 	 „ 	 -. ., 	 .2 	-  	
• 	 ( ..  


. 	 N., 	 . 
... 	 . 	


. 


VICKI L. VIVIAN, CMC, City Clerk 








 


LEGAL NOTICE  


CITY OF BENSON 
CITY COUNCIL 


PUBLIC HEARING 
APRIL 13, 2015 – 7:00 P.M. 


 
 
THE BENSON CITY COUNCIL WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING EL 
DORADO HOLDINGS’ PRELIMINARY COMMUNITY MASTER PLAN FOR THE 
AREA KNOWN AS VIGNETO (FORMERLY KNOWN AS WHETSTONE RANCH).  
THE PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD ON APRIL 13, 2015 AT 7:00 P.M. AT 
BENSON CITY HALL, 120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA.   
 
 
        _______________________________ 
           Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
The City of Benson’s City Council will hold a Public Hearing regarding El Dorado Holdings’ 
proposed Preliminary Community Master Plan for Vigneto, the area formerly known as 
Whetstone Ranch.  A public hearing is an opportunity for citizens to address questions, concerns 
or support for the proposed Preliminary Community Master Plan directly to the Benson City 
Council.  For questions, please contact Michelle Johnson at 520-720-6328.    
 
All facilities are handicap accessible.  If you have a special accessibility need, please contact Ms. 
Vicki Vivian, City Clerk, at 520-586-2245 or TDD 586-3624 no later than eight (8) hours before 
the scheduled meeting time. 
 
 
 
                                                                           
  
 
 


 


VIGNETO 
 


Formerly Whetstone Ranch 
 


POSTED           March 25, 2015 
PUBLISHED    March 25, 2015 
                          April 1, 2015 








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
El Dorado Holdings purchased Whetstone Ranch in mid-2014 under the name El Dorado Benson LLC, a subsidiary owned 
by 10 members.  Since late 2014, El Dorado Benson representatives, specifically Mike Reinbold and Dennis Krahn, have 
been working to create a theme and plan as the basis of their master-planned community.  They eventually settled on an 
Italian theme, selecting the name Vigneto, which means vineyard in Italian, as the name of the property.   
 
El Dorado Benson LLC has also been working on-site to map the physical features of the property, such as: 
topography,  
existing infrastructure (El Paso gas line, RR, electric easements),  
washes (especially those recognized by the existing Army Corps of Engineer 404 Permit), and 
access points from Highway 90 in conjunction with ADOT. 
 
In early 2015, El Dorado Benson began creating a master plan document, incorporating the Italian theme with the 
necessary and aesthetic elements desired within a community.  In accordance with Section 3A of the City of Benson 
Zoning Regulations, El Dorado Benson LLC has submitted a preliminary community master plan (CMP) document that 
addresses the general layout, design and function of the property, including land use plans, major roadways, open space 
and recreation, and proposed public facilities.  Additional and more detailed information will be presented in the Final CMP 
document, but the preliminary CMP document establishes the baseline expectations and framework, in accordance with 
the General Development Plan, that will guide the Final CMP as well as the specific future developments (subdivision 
plats, commercial plats, facility siting, etc.).   
 
On March 31, 2015 a Citizen Review Session was held, during which El Dorado Benson representatives Mike Reinbold 
and Dennis Krahn did a presentation explaining the community master plan process and how the steps align with their 
plan and intentions. A summary of the Citizen Review Session is attached.   
 
In addition to the required Citizen Review Session, El Dorado Benson took it upon themselves to hold three additional 
open houses where representatives were available to answer questions.  All three open houses were held at the Benson 
Community Center from 7-9pm on March 19, March 25 and April 6, 2015.  
 
On April 7, 2015 the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed preliminary community 
master plan. A copy of the draft minutes are attached.  On April 7, 2015 the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 
unanimously to recommend approval of the preliminary CMP, as presented, to City Council. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Resolution 13-2015 
Villages at Vigneto Preliminary Community Master Plan document 
Section 3A of the City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Community Master Plan Approval” 
Citizen Review Session sign in and notes 
Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing sign in and draft minutes 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 7 
                                               
From: Bradley J. Hamilton, P.E. Director of Public Works/City Engineer           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 13-2015 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 
Arizona, approving the Preliminary Community Master Plan entitled “The Villages at Vigneto”, dated March, 
2015 
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting               April 13, 2015 
 







RESOLUTION 13-2015 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BENSON, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY COMMUNITY MASTER PLAN 
ENTITLED “THE VILLAGES AT VIGNETO”, DATED MARCH 2015 
 
 WHEREAS, El Dorado Benson LLC, acting in its capacity as the applicant and owner, 
has submitted to the City of Benson, Arizona a Preliminary Community Master Plan entitled 
“The Villages at Vigneto” dated March 2015, and the City and applicant have completed all 
steps necessary for the City’s formal consideration of this preliminary plan; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 7, 2015, the Benson Planning and Zoning Commission considered 
the merits of the Villages at Vigneto Preliminary Community Master Plan, including comments 
provided during a public hearing held on the same date, and the Commission recommended 
approval of the plan; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 13th of April, 2015, the Benson City Council held a public hearing to 
receive comments from the Public on the submitted Preliminary Community Master Plan; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the submitted Preliminary Community Master Plan is intended to establish 
the basic framework of the proposed development to insure that the development will meet or 
exceed the goals of the City’s General Development Plan; and,  
 


WHEREAS, approval of the Preliminary Community Master Plan will control the basic 
land uses, maximum lot counts and overall density for the community and the overall circulation 
system of “The Villages at Vigneto”; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Benson, Arizona, as follows: 
 
 1. The Mayor and Council find that the proposed Villages at Vigneto Preliminary 
Community Master Plan is in general conformance with the adopted goals of the City of Benson 
General Development Plan; and 
 
 2. The Mayor and Council hereby approve the Preliminary Community Master Plan 
entitled “The Villages at Vigneto” dated March 2015.  
 
 Adoption of this Resolution shall in no way effectuate or guarantee Council approval of 
the Final Community Master Plan which will provide for the engineering and infrastructure 
details for the development, and the Mayor and Council’s approval of the Preliminary 
Community Master Plan shall not be construed as amending the property’s underlying zoning. 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, Arizona, 
this 13th day of April, 2015.  
 


Page 1 of 2 







 
      ___________________________  
      TONEY D. KING, SR., Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
VICKI L. VIVIAN, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________ 
GARY J. COHEN 
MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD, P.C. 
City Attorney 
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


The Villages at Vigneto


1 - INTRODUCTION


El Dorado is proud to introduce its newest community, inspired by the hill country of Northern Italy, “The Vil-
lages at Vigneto.”  Residents of The Villages at Vigneto will delight in living in a quality master planned commu-
nity that is inspired by its unique location, impressive array of cultural, social and recreational amenities, and 
natural landscape. The Villages at Vigneto will offer an environmentally sensitive community designed around 
this unique location.


The Villages at Vigneto will facilitate a lifestyle that promotes human interaction as its objective.  The com-
munity will establish a heartbeat and pulse by creating a sense of daily activity and lifestyle that stimulates a 
desire for participation. Without this energy, the best developments in the world are disconnected and life-
less.   Our goal is to design and build The Villages at Vigneto in such a manner that everyone a feels they are an 
integral component of the community, 


The Villages at Vigneto developmental direction places equal emphasis on lifestyle activities, , and community 
participation goals as it does on the physical characteristics of the land and the development itself.  The objec-
tive is to establish a sense of place, purpose and the engagement for all residents.  


The City of Benson serves as the gateway and central hub to the high desert country of southeastern Arizona. 
This region of Arizona offers a landscape, climate, and life-style distinctly different from the rest of Arizona. 
Braided washes, high forested mountains and open grasslands offer the ability to live, work and enjoy an envi-
ronment that recalls memories of home town living, with an active and social lifestyle.  At approximately 4,500 
feet in elevation, the climate offers moderation from the summer heat with 4 distinct seasons..


Nestled between the Whetstone Mountains and the San Pedro River Valley, The Villages at Vigneto develop-
ment is situated on a gentle slope descending eastward from the Whetstone Mountains, with views of the San 
Pedro River Valley and the Dragoon Mountains.  The Villages at Vigneto offers a generous amount of natural 
open space through the community boundaries, including native corridors that encourage habitats for indig-
enous vegetation and wildlife. 
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


The Villages at Vigneto will include a mix of 28,000 age-targeted-lifestyle and traditional family dwelling units 
on approximately 12,324 acres.  The project will develop over a nearly twenty-year time frame that will likely 
include several economic cycles. The heart of The Villages at Vigneto will include a range of homebuyer demo-
graphics; a range of amenities including: golf courses, parks, small community lakes and streams (intended to 
manage the effluent generated from the project), open space, entertainment (gathering places for the pub-
lic); and business activities including small neighborhood commercial enterprises, agribusiness and mixed use 
development.  The Villages at Vigneto will provide a variety of housing opportunities, abundant parks, multiple 
recreation and open space amenities, all planned and developed with sensitivity to the environment (both 
natural and social) to meet the goals of the City’s General Plan.


The Villages at Vigneto will include a diverse package of amenities to enhance the City of Benson .  A golf 
course, a core Town Center, and social gathering facilities are proposed with future opportunities for commer-
cial office, retail, resort/hotel and mixed-use spaces.  The plan also includes recreational parks with regional 
based sports fields, neighborhood and local parks, modern schools, an extensive trail system and many passive 
and active recreational opportunities. 


The Villages at Vigneto is planned to meet and exceed the standards set forth in the City’s General Plan, with 
amenities for all residents.  As a result of this extensive work and planning effort, El Dorado is pleased to sub-
mit this application, the Preliminary Community Master Plan for The Villages at Vigneto, to the City of Benson 
for its review.
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


2 - GOALS AND OBJECTIVES


THE CMP PROCESS


Per Section 3A of the City of Benson’s Zoning Ordinance, a Community Master Plan (CMP) is intended to ac-
commodate, encourage, and promote large developments with innovative, mixed-use design involving residen-
tial and nonresidential land uses, which together form an attractive, harmonious unit within the community.  
Approval of CMPs is divided into two distinct phases (Preliminary and Final) in order to allow the City to accu-
rately review a large, detailed and complex proposal in a logical manner.


The intent of this Preliminary CMP is to establish and receive approval of the basic framework (land uses, over-
all community goals, circulation system, and basic infrastructure) of the proposed development and provide 
assurance that the proposed development will meet or exceed the goals of the City’s General Plan. Approval 
of this Preliminary CMP will grant approval of basic land uses, , while creating flexibility to dynamically modify 
the details over time as circumstances warrant. Master Planning The Villages at Vigneto will not only allow El 
Dorado to maintain consistency of various elements of the project over the expected 20 year duration of the 
project (including but not limited to: Water, Sewer, Drainage, Traffic Circulation, Open Space Planning, Land 
preservation) but also preserves the ability to realistically  plan how the project will create a lifestyle that en-
courages community integration and resident participation.  The long-term guidance provided by the Master 
Planning process and the Final Master Plan document ensures consistency from start up to  complete build-out 
of the project.


Upon approval of the Preliminary CMP, El Dorado will begin the preparation of a Final CMP document that 
builds upon the approvals granted in this document, provides detailed engineering studies outlining necessary 
infrastructure improvements, and delivers specific details on the development of the overall project that will 
be used to guide the development from start to finish.


The combination of the Preliminary CMP (which approves the overall concept, and land uses)and the Final 
CMP (which provides the engineering and infrastructure details of the development) allow the City to review 
and approve a development of this size and complexity in a logical manner, while making sure the overall goals 
of the City’s General Plan (and other development codes) are met or exceeded.
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


COMMUNITY GOALS AND OBJECTIVES


To create a quality community and meet the goals of the City’s General Plan, careful consideration must be giv-
en to the overall goals of the development. The goals, under which The Villages at Vigneto has been planned 
and designed, are as follows:


	Provide housing opportunities in the City of Benson and Southern Arizona through a carefully designed 
master planned community that will serve the needs of those who currently live in the area and those 
wishing to relocate to a regional hub destination.


	Provide housing and business opportunities to the City of Benson and Southern Arizona where such op-
portunities are currently under-supplied.


	Create a locational destination in the Southwestern United States that is unparalleled to any other ma-
jor master plan of this size in the Western United States.


	Create a distinctive, lifestyle community that enhances and defines the character of the region.


	Design features which reflect the unique geography and recreational opportunities of its location.


	Plant vegetation that will be consistent with the natural environment, utilizing a broad palette of mate-
rials compatible with the intention of the City General Plan.


	Preserve mountain and valley views, and existing natural desert corridors.


	Maintain sensitivity to water usage within the design emphasizing:


o	 The ability to utilize reuse water and irrigation holding ponds within the entry design and other 
landscape design elements to serve infrastructure needs with aesthetic appeal;


o	 Using non-potable (quality treated effluent) water for landscaping and water features;


o	 Designing water features to appear as natural washes and springs; and


o	 Focusing on water efficient hardware in homes and commercial structures.


	Design lighting to preserve dark skies at night and buffer recreational lighting.


	Work with local organizations to integrate natural elements of the high desert and wash corridors to 
support local and regional natural wildlife.


Page 6
The Villages at Vigneto
March, 2015







El Dorado
Benson LLC


PR
EL


IM
NARY 


COM
M


UNIT
Y 


M
AST


ER
 PL


AN


PR
EL


IM
NARY 


COM
M


UNIT
Y 


M
AST


ER
 PL


AN


City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


3 - REGIONAL SETTINGS


The Villages at Vigneto encompasses approximately 12,324 acres and is located three (3) miles south of Inter-
state-10, on both sides of State Route 90. The Coronado National Forest, Kartchner Caverns and the Whetstone 
Mountains are located just west and south of the proposed development. The San Pedro River is approximate-
ly four (4) miles east of the property with the Dragoon Mountain Range, further east, acting as a backdrop (See 
Regional Context Exhibit).


 The Villages at Vigneto’s convenient proximity to Kartchner Caverns, Tombstone National Historic Landmark, 
Bisbee, Tucson, Mission San Xavier del Bac, the Amerind Foundation Museum, Tubac, and the Coronado 
National Memorial make it a natural geographic, cultural and recreational hub for Southern Central Arizona Na-
ture’s diversity and abundance can be appreciated within Ramsey Canyon,  the San Pedro River National Con-
servation Area, Mt. Graham, Patagonia/Sonoita, Madera Canyon, Canelo Hills, Cienega Reserve, Holy Trinity 
Monastery and Bird Sanctuary, and Coronado National Memorial. Aviation and military history can be explored 
at Sierra Vista/Ft. Huachuca and the Pima Air Museum.


Benson’s central business district is located four (4) miles north and east of the CMP property. State Trust 
Lands dot the region to the north, south, east and west. Further south of the CMP property are the communi-
ties of Huachuca City and Sierra Vista. Downtown Tucson is located approximately half an hour west, by car, 
from The Villages at Vigneto. 


Much of the property that surrounds The Villages at Vigneto has been evaluated and included in The Villages 
at Vigneto planning area.  While the immediate surrounding area is characterized as rural in nature, urban 
and suburban development is occurring in close proximity to the property (See Adjacent Property Ownership 
Exhibit).
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


4 - PHYSICAL SETTINGS


In the shadow the Whetstone Mountains, with views across the San Pedro River Valley toward the Dragoon 
Mountains, The Villages at Vigneto lies in the heart of southeastern Arizona. A geographical region defined by 
multiple landforms including mountains rising up to the sky from the desert floor, Southeastern Arizona offers 
a diverse treasure of scenery, wildlife and history. Here, mountain ranges meet river valleys, grasslands, ripar-
ian areas, and desert.  A geologic phenomenon, Kartchner Caverns, reveals the majestic forces of nature at 
work beneath the ground. Rivers run from south to north, flowing with waters from the mountains of Mexico 
through desert valleys toward the Gila River.


The property on which The Villages at Vigneto sits generally slopes eastward at about 3% from the Whetstone 
Mountains toward the San Pedro River Valley, and is crossed with numerous natural preserved washes (under 
the jurisdiction of the Army Corp of Engineers.) These washes will continue to be utilized to transport flowing 
water from the Whetstone Mountains to the San Pedro River and to will also serve as potential locations for 
trails, open space, and natural habitat.


The dominant plant-life consists of rugged mesquite trees and yuccas, mixed with the wild grasses that have 
provided attractive range for cattle over the last centuries. Scattered on the site are  natural washes supporting 
trees and plants (such as the oak, cottonwood, sedge, and other woody wetland plants.) 


Several man-made utility infrastructure features exist on the site. A Kinder Morgan Gas Line easement runs 
through the site from east to west. An existing water/wastewater treatment plant resides in the northeastern 
corner of the site.  The eastern border of the site is home to an abandoned railway corridor, which may be 
reused as a future transmission line and/or multi-use trail corridor.
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


5 - CONFORMANCE WITH THE BENSON GENERAL PLAN 


The City of Benson’s General Plan represents the goals, objectives, and aspirations of the community. It is, 
therefore, inherently the responsibility of any developer to carefully consider the General Plan and the desires 
of the community, in order to help ensure the compatibility of their proposed development with the communi-
ty’s interests. The development of this area, as a high-quality master planned community, is a key component 
of the City’s General Plan.


El Dorado has considered the City of Benson’s General Plan in developing the overall concept for The Villages 
at Vigneto.  As such, the proposed development is in agreement with the City’s Future Land Use Maps and the 
City’s General Plan, Goals, and Objectives.


LAND USE


The City of Benson General Plan Land Use Plan designates the vast majority of this site as MXU, (Mixed Use). A 
portion of the mid-section on the eastern boundary is designated as OS (Open Space).  This CMP shall meet all 
applicable City of Benson General Plan land uses. If any City standards and policies are modified as part of the 
submitted CMP, no separate variances to City Zoning standards or policies will be necessary for those changes 
requested and approved as part of this CMP process. 


HOUSING


Section Ill, Housing Goals and Objectives, Goal 1, Objective 1.1 of the City of Benson General Development 
Plan states “Ensure that new housing development provide additional residential quality features including 
open space, recreational amenities, and attractive landscaping.” This objective forms the backbone for The 
Villages at Vigneto, which includes golf, natural wash preservation, trails, numerous parks, and a blend of rec-
reational, and nature opportunities. This mix will result in a community with generous open space, recreational 
amenities, and both man-made and natural landscaping.


The Villages at Vigneto intends to blend development with existing natural features and landscaping and 
thereby meets Goal 1, Objective 1 .4, “Promote site-sensitive designs for new residential developments that 
work with the existing features of the landscape.”
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which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


GROWTH AREAS


The Villages at Vigneto is a major part or the City’s General Plan. In Section I under “Growth Areas”, the Plan 
states, “Vision for growth is in place. Master Planning is well underway at The Villages at Vigneto. Suitability 
for development has been demonstrated.”


The Village at Vignetos’ adjacency to State Route 90 meets Objective 3.2 of “Growth Areas” which states, “En-
courage and promote the development of Master Planned areas along the State Route 90 corridor.”


Furthermore, the area encompassing the proposed Villages at Vigneto development is specifically identified 
within the General Development Plan, “Growth Areas”, Section Ill, as a location to accommodate a substantial 
portion of City’s expected development.


OPEN SPACE


The Villages at Vigneto will incorporate community parks, neighborhood parks, numerous trails and golf. These 
amenities meet Goal 1, Objective 1.1, “Identify sites suitable for new open-space, park, and recreational 
development,” as well as Goal 2, Objective 2.2, “Develop multi-use, pedestrian, cycling and equestrian trail 
networks that effectively links parks, recreation areas and open spaces.”


The design of The Villages at Vigneto will promote wildlife migration and preservation of natural corridors. This 
design will allow users to enjoy hiking, bird watching, and other outdoor activities while meeting Objective 3.2, 
“Plan and promote appropriate outdoor recreations activities, such as hiking, bird watching, with sensitivity 
to the environment.”


Along with meeting the open space goals and objectives of the Benson General Plan, The Villages at Vigneto 
will also exceed the 15% open space CMP requirement.  At full build-out, the Villages at Vigneto will have ap-
proximately 2500 acres of natural and manicured open space exceeding the required 1,849 acres.


ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING


The Villages at Vigneto provides more than a dozen opportunities for natural migration of wildlife and preser-
vation of natural corridors that cross the project from its east boundary to the west boundary.  State Route 90 
was designed and built to accommodate wildlife crossings at specific locations, and these crossing points will 
be preserved. Thus meeting Goal 2, Objective 2.1 of the General Development Plan, which states, “Encourage 
the creation of open-space areas that emphasize the natural amenities of the San Pedro riparian corridor 
and protect its wildlife.”
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Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


6 - OVERALL CONCEPT


Designed around the natural environment and incorporating classical design elements of Central Italy’s Tuscany 
Region, including vineyards and orchards, The Villages at Vigneto will provide a mix of residential, commercial, 
office, hospitality, medical care, mixed-use, agribusiness, recreation, and educational opportunities for resi-
dents. With a maximum of 28,000 residential units spread out over 12,324 acres (approximately 2.3 dwelling 
units/acre), The Villages at Vigneto will blend into the environment with densities well below those tradition-
ally found in master planned communities.


The project will include an age targeted lifestyle community with at least one golf course, multiple recreation 
centers, and commercial development. The remaining portion of the site will include traditional housing, a 
recreation center, commercial office development, and numerous neighborhood parks.


The community will be developed around a “Town Center” which will be located on a series of community 
lakes and contain a mix of commercial and office uses. , A a community park will be located adjacent to the 
Town Center. Additional commercial/office opportunities will exist within the master plan along State Route 90. 


The main entry to the community is located and crafted to take advantage of all the natural attributes of the 
surrounding San Pedro River Valley including the rolling hillsides and the panoramic vistas of the Dragoon 
Mountains.  Residents and visitors will be greeted with a grandiose Tuscan style architectural vernacular com-
plete with iconic towers that will act as beacons throughout the valley and will signal the decompression from 
the busy highway.  The entry driving experience will continue with a classic bridge arched over calming waters.   
The main entry route will then meander its way down the hillside through adjacent orchards and vineyards, 
escorting community members and visitors to the town center and community lakes.  


In keeping with the goal of maintaining natural watercourses, most washes that cross the property will be 
maintained in their natural condition, further adding to the careful blending of natural and built environments.
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Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
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7 - LAND USE PLAN


RESIDENTIAL


A diverse choice of residential housing opportunities will be provided within The Villages at Vigneto. As shown 
on the Land Use Plan, an approximate 20 year build-out is projected due to the uncertainty of the final eco-
nomics of a large project such as this. Therefore, the final configuration and mix of age targeted residents 
versus traditional buyers will be determined by market conditions as the project moves toward build-out. 


While the CMP permits the developer to construct age targeted and traditional communities, either scattered 
or consolidated throughout the community, without amending the CMP, in no case will the total number of 
28,000 units or the overall gross density of the project 2.3 du/ac be exceeded.


In order to achieve a diversity of housing opportunities, as well as provide the necessary amenities and social 
opportunities required to develop a truly sustainable community, the permitted uses will be in conformance 
with the City of Benson General Plan as follows. 


Allowable (permitted) uses within all residential areas will include:


	single-family residential units
	public/private schools
	public/private day care/preschool
	public/private golf courses and related facilities:


o	 Clubhouses/restaurants
o	 locker rooms 
o	 pro shops 
o	 cart storage facilities
o	 driving ranges
o	 tennis courts
o	 health clubs/spas


	recreational complexes/community centers, not associated with a golf course
	churches and other houses of worship
	other uses as reviewed and approved by the City of Benson Planning Commission and City Council at a 


future time


Additionally, in order to provide a variety of housing options for residents, on a limited number of lots, the 
minimum lot size may be reduced to 2,240 sf as long as the total number of lots in the development does not 
exceed 28,000 du, the gross density does not exceed 2.3 du/ac, and the acreage saved by reducing the mini-
mum lot size is incorporated into larger recreational areas/open space. 
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


COMMERCIAL/MIXED USE


The Villages at Vigneto proposes both commercial and mixed-use land uses internal to the project. This layout 
creates a more complete, sustainable community by providing opportunities for residents to live/work/play/
shop within their neighborhood, and keeps a majority of the traffic generated by the development internal to 
the project, thereby minimizing the development’s impact on the surrounding region. The following are pos-
sible uses within The Villages at Vigneto Master Plan.


Allowed (permitted) uses in The Villages at Vigneto commercial areas include:
	retail sales
	bars and restaurants
	resort/hotel
	banks and financial institutions
	day care facilities
	business or professional office
	pharmacy with drive-through
	grocery stores
	barber or beauty salon
	dry cleaner
	furniture and appliance repair
	health club
	entertainment establishments including electronic game centers, arcades, ice rink, pool halls, perform-


ing art centers and theaters
	automobile service stations
	convenience stores
	car wash (hand or automatic)
	mini-storage facilities
	other uses as reviewed and approved by the City of Benson Planning Commission and City Council at a 


future time


Maximum building height in the commercial areas shall not exceed 80 feet without City approval.  This maxi-
mum height parameter would not apply to feature architectural elements and community icons that are 
intended to stand much taller.


Allowed (permitted) uses in The Villages at Vigneto mixed-use areas include:
	retail sales
	bars and restaurants
	resort/hotel
	banks and financial institutions
	day care facilities
	business or professional office
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which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


	medical centers/hospitals
	residential when on the second floor or higher
	pharmacy with drive-through
	grocery stores
	barber or beauty salon
	dry cleaner
	furniture and appliance repair
	health club
	entertainment establishments including electronic game centers, arcades, ice rink, pool halls, perform-


ing art centers, and theaters
	automobile service stations
	convenience stores
	car wash (hand or automatic)
	mini-storage facilities
	other uses as reviewed and approved by the City of Benson Planning Commission and City Council at a 


future time


Maximum building height in the mixed-use areas shall not exceed 80 feet without City approval.  This maxi-
mum height parameter would not apply to feature architectural elements and community icons that are 
intended to stand much taller.


RECREATION/OPEN SPACES


The Villages at Vigneto is designed around numerous parks, golf course(s), trails, recreation centers, vineyards, 
orchards and open spaces.  These community areas are situated to provide easy access for its residents.  Due 
to the important nature of these land use elements, they are described in detail in Section 8 RECREATION/
OPEN SPACE.


SCHOOLS


Schools form an important part of any community. El Dorado is working with the St. David School District and 
the Benson School District on future planning.  Any elementary school site constructed on the property will be 
between 10 to 17 acres and if needed, middle school sites will be constructed between 25 to 30 acres.  Addi-
tional information on schools is included in the Section 10 PROPOSED PUBLIC FACILITIES.
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


8 - RECREATION/ OPEN SPACE


Recreation and open space form a key element in the overall amenity package of The Villages at Vigneto. Ap-
proximately 20% of the total project site will be dedicated to parks, trails, open space, orchards, vineyards, and 
the golf course. See the exhibit in this section, Parks, Trails and Open Space.


TRAIL SYSTEM


The Villages at Vigneto is a lifestyle community, offering a myriad of recreational opportunities. The com-
munity-wide trail system is the “recreational spine.”  Multi-purpose trails as wide as 14 to 18 feet are being 
proposed along portions of the Kinder Morgan Gas Line and adjacent to many arterial roadways.  These wide 
multipurpose trails  create ease of access for modes of transportation other than traditional automobiles.  This 
multi-purpose trail system will encourage residents to get out of their cars as they travel from their homes to 
the various recreational destinations within the property. 


The multi-purpose trail system will encourage allow for multiple “traveling” recreational activities .  For ex-
ample, the multi-purpose trail system along the Kinder Morgan Gas Line includes a minimum 14 foot wide hard 
surface area plus adjacent soft trails for activities such as equestrian, mountain biking and jogging.


The trail system will connect all areas of The Villages at Vigneto. Pedestrian trails in neighborhoods are con-
nected to the community system through natural wash corridors. Residents will enjoy trail connections to 
parks, ramadas, picnic areas, overlooks, as well as all retail and residential areas. Trails will be designed for use 
by: golf carts, walkers, hikers, cyclists, and equestrians.


The community trail system and parks will also serve the engineering function of regulating surface drainage 
water flow within and through the subject property. The hard surface trails with engineered culverts will divert 
flows to retention basins designed in the parks and golf courses.  Engineers will strive to minimize flows and 
quickly disperse the water from the trail system into the basins.  
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


COMMUNITY PARKS


At least one central community park will be located within The Villages at Vigneto development. Serving the 
entire community, this park will feature active recreational spaces for people of all ages. Some of the proposed 
active recreation components include a splash pad, multi-use fields, basketball and tennis courts, softball 
fields, tot lots, ramadas, pickle ball, lawn bowling and many other court games, and picnic areas along with 
passive recreational activities.  The community park(s) will be readily accessible via the extensive trail system 
proposed for the community. 


NEIGHBORHOOD PARKS


Dispersed throughout the community will be a series of neighborhood parks. Smaller in size than a community 
park, neighborhood parks will offer many of the same amenities. The parks will be designed with great care to 
ensure each park is in close proximity to the various neighborhoods and are interconnected through the safety 
and convenience of the community trail system.
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Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
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POCKET PARKS


Within each neighborhood, there will also be open space that will lend itself to small, intimate pocket park 
opportunities. These recreational spaces will be comprised primarily of small turf pockets and trees to provide 
shade and scenic beauty. The neighborhood pocket parks will be places “just down-the-street” for residents to 
bring their families and socialize with their neighbors. There will be small shade structures with BBQ amenities 
and picnic tables along with open play areas. In certain locations, pocket parks may be combined with adjacent 
trail corridors. The Villages at Vigneto HOA will provide maintenance of the parks, trails, and open space.


GOLF COURSE


There will be at least one 18-hole golf course located within The Villages at Vigneto development. The golf 
course landscape and water features will provide important habitat for birds and wildlife in the area.


The presence of natural washes throughout the course will allow The Villages at Vigneto to complement other 
regional riparian areas.  As non-potable water is generated within the community, it will be used to irrigate the 
golf course and surrounding facilities.
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9 - ACCESS/CIRCULATION


The lifestyle of the residents within The Villages at Vigneto development depends largely on the degree of mo-
bility and access that the roadways, multi-purpose trails, and sidewalks provide. Transportation infrastructure 
within this master-planned community will provide connectivity to regional roadways, address traffic control 
needs, and create well-coordinated circulation throughout the development. This section outlines the pro-
posed transportation network and illustrates the backbone circulation and connectivity within the community.


EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE


Existing roadway features within the development are limited.  State Route 90 (SR-90), which is adjacent to 
the project, is the only paved roadway in the vicinity of the development. SR-90 is currently a four-lane divided 
roadway with a wide landscaped median and provides north-south access between Interstate-10, Fort Hua-
chuca and the City of Sierra Vista.


PROPOSED ACCESS


Access to and from The Villages at Vigneto will be provided by seven full access intersections along SR-90. 
These access points are located at or near the existing median breaks and are anticipated to be controlled by 
roundabouts, traffic signals or a combination of both.  The idea of using roundabouts from SR-90 to access the 
Vigneto development will be explored in great detail in the Traffic Circulation Element    which will be submit-
ted with the Final CMP.


El Dorado proposes to realign Post Road from its current location to the northern boundary of the property. 
Post Road will be improved to a 4 lane arterial from SR-90 to the eastern boundary of the development.  The 
proposed relocation will allow a viable tie into the existing Post Road location at the eastern property bound-
ary. These proposed improvements to Post Road allow for future connectivity to SR-80 and downtown Benson, 
promote integration between the downtown area along SR-80 and new developments on SR-90, and reduce 
local trip traffic on Interstate 10.


PROPOSED ON-SITE CIRCULATION


A traditional network of project arterial, collector, and local roadways will provide internal circulation within 
the development. The arterial roadways will facilitate the major movement of vehicles within the community, 
leaving collector roadways to provide direct access to parcel specific developments and move traffic from 
arterial roadways to local streets.  The local streets within the development will provide access to residences 
within the community.  For planning purposes, a macroscopic transportation model will be developed for Vi-
gneto, incorporating proposed land uses, to generate and forecast traffic volumes on the arterial and collector 
roadways which will assist in developing roadway cross-sections that adequately address the expected needs 
within the community.
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and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


This development embraces a unique vision and concept in terms of traffic and mobility.   A network of multi-
use paths will be developed from the onset and incorporated into the traditional network.  These multi-use 
paths will be constructed to link residences to trip generators such as the parks, golf course, the Town Cen-
ter and recreation areas.  The multi-use paths will support short duration trips through the use of golf carts, 
electric auxiliary vehicles, cyclists and pedestrians.  By its design and nature, the proposed multi-use path is 
expected reduce automobile trips within the community.  


Similar to traditional automobile transportation networks, the multi-use paths within the community will be 
designed and grouped into classes according to the character of mobility that they are intended to provide.  
Along the arterial roadways, the multi-use paths would be separated by a landscape buffer and designed at a 
minimum 8 foot width.  For collector roadways, the multi-use path would be adjacent to the roadway yet sepa-
rated with a roadway white stripe similar to a bike lane.  


The concept is that most arterial/arterial and arterial/collector intersections internal to the Vigneto develop-
ment will be designed as roundabouts.  The roundabouts will be designed to accommodate the multi-use path 
network and the individual multi-use paths will cross arterial roadways prior to roundabout entry points.  The 
Traffic Circulation Element will include concise exhibits on the integration of the multi-use paths with the tradi-
tional roadway network.  


The conceptual circulation exhibit illustrates the proposed roadway network within the Vigneto development 
coupled with the relationship to SR-90.  The system design is balanced and organized to accommodate the pro-
posed land uses, giving residents and visitors the ability to move freely around the community without delay.  
By placing emphasis on the multi-use path rather than the automobile, the community will encourage greater 
neighborhood interaction and a more attractive environment.  


The proposed roadway cross sections are shown as an exhibit in this section.  Arterial roadways within the 
development are shown as divided two lane arterials with limited full access points and predetermined, calcu-
lated locations.  When necessary, multi-use paths along arterial corridors will be separated by a 25 foot land-
scaped buffer.  Collector roadways within the development will consist of two 16 foot travel lanes and a 7 foot 
multi-use path adjacent to the roadway.  Local roadways will be designed as 22 foot sections with landscaping 
and a sidewalk.
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10 - PROPOSED PUBLIC FACILITIES


SCHOOLS


Currently two school districts service The Villages at Vigneto.  St. David Unified School covers approximately 
95% of the property and Benson Unified School District covers the remainder.  Schools are places where stu-
dents (and their parents) can come together to learn, play, and enjoy various recreational opportunities. With-
in The Villages at Vigneto, school locations will be carefully considered to help form these gathering points.


El Dorado is working with the St. David Unified School District and Benson Unified School District to ensure 
that the educational needs of the residents will be met. The plan currently proposes an elementary school(s) 
and/or combination elementary/middle school. Proposed school siting allows for any school to be located 
in areas of mixed-use designation and residential designation.  All school sites will be located to afford safe 
and efficient vehicular access as well as pedestrian accessibility through sidewalks and trails. Where possible, 
schools will be located adjacent to parks to further expand the opportunities for learning and recreation, and 
to allow the schools to help become the center of neighborhood gathering areas.  Open enrollment laws in 
Arizona allow for private schools to be located anywhere in Arizona.  In keeping with the laws of the state, if 
there is a demand and interest for a private school to be constructed within the boundary of the CMP, it would 
be welcomed.  
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


DRAINAGE PLAN


The offsite watershed for The Villages at Vigneto originates in the Whetstone Mountains, which rise above the 
western boundary of the project.  Runoff from this offsite watershed is concentrated into a series of natural 
washes or drainage ways that move easterly.  This runoff is conveyed beneath SR-90 through a system of cul-
vert crossings. East of SR-90, these drainage ways pass through The Villages at Vigneto toward the regional out-
fall of the San Pedro River.  Most of these washes are considered jurisdictional Waters of the United States by 
the Corps of Engineers and are thus protected under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. The intended devel-
opment approach will leave most of these washes intact and continue allowing off-site runoff to pass through 
the site. 


An analysis of the locations and effects of offsite storm water impacts will be performed at a later date. This 
analysis will use a combination of hydrologic and hydraulic modeling to determine design discharges and water 
surface elevations in the drainage ways. These analyses will not only yield a characterization of the existing 
drainage patterns, but will also provide a foundation upon which safe horizontal and vertical development 
limits shall be determined. 


In addition, appropriate storm water controls will be determined to manage runoff through and within the site.  
This system will complement the existing drainage patterns and natural drainage ways. Storm water storage 
facilities will be designed and constructed to maintain post development discharges at pre-development levels 
along the downstream limits of the project.  The attached Conceptual Drainage Plan shows the extent of the 
offsite watershed, which affects The Villages at Vigneto as well as the drainage patterns in the project’s vicinity.  
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


POTABLE WATER PLAN


The Villages at Vigneto is located within the City of Benson municipal water service area. The proposed water 
service facilities will be operated by agreement between the developer and the City of Benson.


The goal of the Master Plan is to develop the overall system layout using floating storage wherever possible. The 
highest zone may be an exception, as an appropriate reservoir location may not be available. The water surface 
of the reservoir is set at the high water elevation for the zone, which is generally about 100 feet above the high-
est home in the zone. This allows the homes within the zone boundary to be served directly from the reservoir 
by gravity and have the system pressure regulated by the reservoir water surface elevation. This method pro-
vides a highly reliable system with low pressure fluctuations. The system will continue to operate during power 
outages using the remaining water in the reservoir system. Electrical power backup would be needed at wells 
and booster stations that directly serve areas without floating storage.  Five 150-foot water system pressure 
zones have been developed to provide service to the Villages at Vigneto. Four are served by floating reservoirs 
and the highest zone is served by pressure.


This Master Plan provides a distribution system layout that consists of the mains required to serve each zone 
and provide transport between wells, booster stations, and reservoirs. The water mains are only shown along 
major arterials and collectors and where needed to provide looping in the system. The water pipe sizing is not 
discussed in this report since the land use plan is conceptual and subject to modifications. 
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


WASTEWATER PLAN


The Villages at Vigneto will be served by an existing wastewater treatment plant located northeast of the overall 
project. The overall site area topography allows for gravity flow in a northeasterly direction. The master plan call 
for gravity sewer for a large portion of the project, with wastewater going directly to the wastewater treatment 
plant. Due to topography in the eastern portion of the Villages at Vigneto development, lift stations may be re-
quired, to pump wastewater flows uphill to a proposed gravity sewer spine main. (See Concept Sewer Master 
Plan Exhibit)


The existing wastewater treatment plant is currently capable of treating 250,000 gallons per day. The treatment 
plant capacity will be expanded in phases as The Villages at Vigneto is built-out. Wastewater treatment facilities 
are required to be designed to treat the Average Dry Weather Flow (ADWF). At build-out, the estimated ADWF 
is approximately 5.0 million gallons per day (MGD).


The treatment facility is a modern enclosed Sequencing Batch Reactor (SBR) system with a compact footprint. 
The wastewater treatment plant will treat to A+ effluent quality, allowing the effluent to be used for reclaimed 
water purposes. Both the wastewater treatment plant and lift station facilities will be equipped with odor and 
noise controls. 
	
Preliminary sewer mains have been located based on the general slope of the existing topography. A preliminary 
profile of the north-south sewer line located on the east end of the property was evaluated to verify gravity 
flow and an acceptable depth of the sewer line. The desired maximum depth of the sewer line is 25-30 feet. The 
profile showed that the general location of the sewer will work for gravity service at an acceptable depth. The 
remaining sewer profiles will need to be evaluated as planning progresses to verify acceptable slopes and depths 
for gravity sewer service. 
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City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


RECLAIMED WATER PLAN


The Villages at Vigneto plans to use the effluent generated by the wastewater treatment plant for on-site irriga-
tion needs. The Villages at Vigneto has planned at least one golf course and various turf facilities such as parks 
and schools. Reclaimed water is contemplated for use on the vineyards within the development. 


Reclaimed water infrastructure will consist of pipelines, storage facilities, booster stations, and recharge facili-
ties. The preliminary reclaimed water system consists of two water pressure zones. Fewer zones are required for 
the reclaimed system than the potable system because reclaimed systems can operate at much higher pressures 
than potable systems. 


A storage reservoir and booster station will be located at the wastewater treatment plant as the source of re-
claimed water to the system. The storage reservoir will provide a consistent supply to the booster station by 
balancing out the daily fluctuations of effluent generation. The total daily estimated effluent generation from the 
plant is 90% of the treated Average Dry Weather Flow. 


Reclaimed water will be pumped from the wastewater treatment plant to reclaimed water storage facilities in-
cluding golf course lakes and a reclaimed reservoir site.  Reclaimed water storage facilities will fill during the day 
when wastewater generation and treatment occur and drain at night when irrigation cycles take place. The lakes 
will be used to irrigate the golf courses. 


During the winter months when reclaimed water usage is low, excess reclaimed water will need to be disposed 
of through recharge basins. The general location of the recharge basins will be in the lower/lowest zone(s) and 
geographic center of the project. The specific location, size, and number of recharge basins will be determined 
in a later study. 


Reclaimed water transmission mains will be sized to transport reclaimed water from the treatment plant to the 
storage facilities and to supply reclaimed water to the various turf facilities and/or recharge basins.


Page 35
The Villages at Vigneto
March, 2015











El Dorado
Benson LLC


PR
EL


IM
NARY 


COM
M


UNIT
Y 


M
AST


ER
 PL


AN


City of Benson Zoning Regulations “Section Three A” Revised 8/28/06 - Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and nonresidential land uses, 
which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to other districts in the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. A CMP approval shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general arrangement, density, open space, 
and quality of the project, which may be approved upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.


11 SUMMARY


The Villages at Vigneto is a Community Master Plan that targets active lifestyle buyers from all segments of the 
population.  All demographics will enjoy a lifestyle that establishes a strong sense of place, purpose, and iden-
tity while delivering connectivity with a heavy emphasis on reducing both automobile reliance and electronic 
communications.  The Villages at Vigneto encourages its residents to get out, interact, participate, be enter-
tained, , and enjoy the year round climate and culture of the City of Benson. 


El Dorado has worked diligently to create a community that will blend with the natural features of the region 
and gently weave the timeless architectural and landscape design elements of the rolling hills of the Tuscany 
region in Central Italy.   In creating this community, El Dorado relied on both its history of successes throughout 
the country in creating well respected, livable communities, as well as delving into the history and environ-
ment in which The Villages at Vigneto will be built. This project will provide the opportunity to demonstrate 
how a great livable community can be integrated into the region and establish an identity and destination hub 
for the Benson area.    


The Villages at Vigneto presents an opportunity to create a relatively lower-density, mid-level scale residential 
community that will reflect the character and vision of the City, integrate itself into and celebrate the natural 
environment of the area and demonstrate compliance with the General Plan as approved by the City Council. 


Throughout the planning and design process, El Dorado has met or exceeded the requirements laid out in the 
City of Benson General Plan for a high-quality master planned community El Dorado has also carefully followed 
the City’s guidelines for the creation of a Preliminary CMP application. As a result of this extensive work, El 
Dorado is pleased to submit this application for Preliminary CMP approval to the City of Benson for its review 
and approval.
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SECTION THREE A - COMMUNITY MASTER PLAN APPROVAL  
(APPROVED BY Ordinance No. 490 on May 16, 2005) 
  
Intent 
 
Community Master Plans (CMP) are intended to accommodate, encourage and promote 
large developments with innovative mixed-use design involving residential and 
nonresidential land uses, which together form an attractive, harmonious unit in the 
community.  The planned development, if so specified at the time of CMP approval, may 
include standards, regulations, or criteria that differ from those regulations pertaining to 
other districts in the City’s Zoning Ordinance. 
  
The CMP is further established to provide both the developer and the City with 
reasonable assurances that specific, proposed uses, intensities and phasing are not 
inconsistent with the adopted General Development Plan. 
  
COMMUNITY MASTER PLAN APPLICABILITY 
 
The provisions of this Section shall apply to all CMP documents, and any additional or 
supplemental information that is deemed necessary by the Zoning Administrator, or their 
designee, to meet the following objectives:   
  


 a.  To accommodate variations in building design, lot arrangements and land uses for 
a maximum choice in the types of environment for residential and commercial 
facilities;  
  
b.  To provide for a coordinated and compatibly arranged variety of land uses,    
with efficient and safe traffic circulation, including the separation of pedestrian 
from vehicular traffic, through innovative site planning;  
  
c.  To maintain quality of living excellence with the provision of usable open 
space standards to minimize adverse environmental impact on surrounding areas; 
and,  
  
d.  To assist in fulfilling the goals, objectives and policies of the City of Benson 
General Development Plan and amendments thereto.  In the event that the 
submitted CMP does not conform with the current General Development Plan, the 
applicant shall be required to apply for a modification of the General 
Development Plan.  
  


MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBMISSION OF A CMP 
  
A CMP will only be allowed under the following conditions: 
  


a.  The project for which the CMP is developed must be at least 640 acres in size; 
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b.  The property in question is already annexed into the City of Benson; 
  
c.  The property must have an existing Development Agreement with the City of 
Benson or the developer must be in the process of finalizing a Development 
Agreement at the time of submission of the preliminary CMP application; and, 
  
d. The property has underlying zoning at least equal to the R-2 district under the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance. 


 
Permitted Uses 
 
All uses permitted within the CMP are to be determined by the underlying zoning district, 
or by an approved development plan for the site.  Residential neighborhoods shall include 
a range of housing types, lot styles and designs.  In the development of a balanced 
community, a variety of housing within one project shall be deemed most in keeping with 
the objectives of this Section.  All other uses shall be determined by the compatibility of 
such uses with each other as well as with surrounding land uses and shall conform to 
policies  as established in the City of Benson General Development Plan. 
  
General Development Plan Conformance 
 
Densities and intensities permitted in the CMP shall conform with the City of Benson’s 
General Development Plan.  Modification of General Development Plan land uses within 
the CMP boundaries are permitted without a General Plan amendment if the overall 
acreage of the more intense category remains unchanged or decreases and said 
modification provides for a balanced mixture of land uses.  Increases in the more intense 
General Development Plan classifications require a General Development Plan 
amendment.  Upon adoption of the Preliminary CMP, the City will process a minor 
General Development Plan amendment to show the changes resulting from the 
Preliminary CMP approval on the City’s General Plan and all costs for said amendment 
shall be borne by the applicant. 
  
COMMUNITY MASTER PLAN DEVELOPMENT PROCEDURES 
 
A CMP approval shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator in the form of a 
preliminary CMP application consisting of a graphic layout with accompanying narrative 
and sufficient description and documentation to identify the nature, mix and general 
arrangement, density, open space, and quality of the project, which may be approved 
upon review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. 
  
A pre-application meeting shall be held between the owner or owner’s representative(s) 
and the City.  A formal application shall then be submitted for public hearing, before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.  Within two (2) years of Preliminary 
CMP approval, the applicant shall submit the Final CMP to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. In the event the Final CMP is not submitted for approval to the Planning 
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and Zoning Commission within two (2) years of Preliminary CMP approval, all 
development rights will lapse.   The Commission’s recommendations on the Final CMP 
shall be referred to the City Council for review and action. 
 
A. PRELIMINARY CMP APPLICATION: 
  
A preliminary development plan (showing general land use concepts, but not requiring 
lotting plans at this stage) shall be submitted to and accepted by the Zoning Administrator 
or designee, for consistency with Benson codes, policies and plans, and shall indicate the 
following: 


  
1.      Locational information including an area map showing adjacent property 
ownership and existing uses within three hundred feet (300’) of the parcel, 
and a legal description of the metes and bounds of the parcel. 
  
2.      Physical constraints to the site’s development; existing topographical 
features, including any portions of the site that are subject to flooding 
(indicating the extent and frequency, retention areas, calculations and 
maintenance responsibility); proposed roadway or major utility line extensions 
which may impact development; and such other impediments to the property’s 
use and improvement as may be present or planned for the future. 
  
3.      A Preliminary Development Plan addressing: 
  


a.  The location and nature of the various uses and their areas 
in acres (summarizing land use areas), maximum number of 
dwelling units and approximate percentage allocation by dwelling 
type, calculation of the residential density in dwelling units per gross 
acre; 
  
b.  The proposed arterial and collector circulation system, 
including any improvements (public or private) needed to 
accommodate additional traffic; 
  
c.   The open space system (including a general statement 
regarding ownership and maintenance) with indication of 
responsiveness to General Development Plan recreation, open space 
and perimeter treatments; 
  
d. Surrounding land uses and zoning; and, 
  
e.  Shall submit evidence of consistency with the goals of the 
General Development Plan of the proposed land use compatibility 
and projected community requirements. 
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4.      Project narrative, including a descriptive summary of the overall project 
and any proposed deviations from the existing development standards in the 
City subdivision and zoning regulations. 


  
B.                 PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW: 


  
The Zoning Administrator, or their designee, in writing, may waive any of the 
above required information which is not applicable; or require additional 
information when necessary to clarify any aspect of the project or its potential 
impacts on the community. 
  
1.      The preliminary development plan shall be reviewed by the City of 
Benson Community Development Department and any other agencies deemed 
appropriate by the department. The department shall compile and return 
written comments within forty-five (45) days. 
  
2.      Thereafter, the Planning and Zoning Commission shall conduct a public 
hearing on the preliminary development plan and transmit their 
recommendations to the City Council for Council action. 
  
3.      The City Council may adopt the recommendations of Planning and 
Zoning Commission without holding a second public hearing if there is no 
objection, request for an additional public hearing, or protest at the Planning 
and Zoning Commission’s public hearing.  The Council shall be required to 
hold an additional public hearing if requested by the applicant, if any person 
appears in opposition at the Commission hearing, if any person has filed a 
written protest regarding the Commission hearing, or if requested by any 
member of the City Council. 
  


a.  The City Council may approve a Preliminary CMP, only 
upon finding that that the proposal is in general conformance with 
the goals of the City of Benson General Development Plan. 
  
b.                  The Council may, as necessary, attach conditions to 
CMP approval, which may include but are not limited to the 
following considerations:  intensities and densities; use limitations; 
landscaping; screen planting; setback and height of building; paving, 
location of drives and parking areas; storm drainage and storm water 
retention; public and/or private open space; shape and size of lots; 
fences and walls; adequacy of vehicle and pedestrian circulation and 
access; timing and phasing; elevations and architectural theme; or 
any other reasonable considerations the Council finds germane to 
maintain community character and neighborhood quality. 


  
C.                 FINAL COMMUNITY MASTER PLAN APPROVAL: 
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The Final CMP review and approval is intended to be a review of the 
technical issues necessary to demonstrate that the approved land uses and 
densities approved in the Preliminary CMP approval can be adequately 
serviced, and to set design specifications to be utilized in the development and 
platting of the project.  Unless the technical review shows that the approved 
land uses and/or densities cannot be adequately serviced, or unless the 
applicant requests changes in the approved land uses and/or densities, 
approvals granted in the Preliminary CMP approval may not be modified as 
part of this review and approval.  Final CMP review and approval (either for 
the entire property covered by the Preliminary CMP approval or for a portion 
of the property) may be processed simultaneously with subdivision review.  
The plans required under this section may be submitted in a form which 
satisfies the requirements of the subdivision regulations for final plat approval 
if submitted at the same time.  Portions of the CMP which are intended for 
development at later stages, one year or more from the date of sought 
approval, shall not be required to show precise lot or siting dimensions but 
shall be individually processed prior to the issuance of development permits.  
The applicant shall submit twenty-five (25) copies of the final development 
plan, 11” X 17” in dimension, to the Community Development Department 
containing the following information, unless specifically provided otherwise: 
  
1.      All information required on the preliminary development plans revised 
in response to preliminary plan approval, with plans showing location and 
type of all improvements including schematic grading plans with proposed 
treatment of sloped retention areas and the following explanatory, supporting 
details: 
  


a.  A statement of intended design philosophy and 
environmental quality (text, graphics, or photographic examples);  
  
b.          Specific design standards to be utilized throughout the 
project, including but not limited to, sidewalks, roadways, trails, 
signage, walls, fencing and other urban design elements; 
  
c.  Traffic analysis, including interior roadways, typical 
development envelopes for residential uses and building 
arrangements for recreational, employment, commercial or 
institutional uses; 
  
d.            Standards including demand and capacity analyses for 
municipal systems such as transportation, water supply sewage 
disposal, and other community facilities, such as schools, public 
safety, cultural and social services such as libraries or multi-
generational activity centers; and, 
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e.   If the development is to be phased, a general indication, 
with chronology of the intended total project’s staging; and, if 
applicable, a list of development standards from which departure is 
requested stating justifications for each in terms of increased 
environmental quality. 
  


2. Plans and elevations indicating a variety of building types, materials, 
colors, and the number of dwelling units by type to be constructed 
pursuant to this review; and, for subsequent phases, the timing of 
development in numerical order, if applicable; 


  
3. The CMP shall meet all applicable City Building Codes and City Zoning 


standards.  If any City standards and policies are modified as part of the 
submitted CMP, no separate variances to City Building and Zoning 
standards or policies will be necessary for those changes requested and 
approved as part of the CMP process. The developer shall submit and the 
Zoning Administrator shall make a part of the case file record all 
statements regarding any and all approved deviations from the provisions 
of the Zoning Ordinance. 


  
4. All portions of the CMP, whether under development or reserved for 


future phases shall be maintained free and clear of debris with posted signs 
prohibiting dumping of waste, scrap of fill material of any type. 


  
5. Upon City Council approval, the CMP status of the site shall be, by 


Ordinance, reflected on the City zoning map. 
  
6. The City Engineer’s approval of conceptual water, sewer, and drainage 


master plans shall be obtained as a condition of development. 
  
Development Standards  
 
The development plan shall respond to the following requirements: 
  


A.                 FLEXIBLE DEVELOPMENT: 
  


Quality land improvement is required of developers in exchange for the 
applicant’s alternative proposals for meeting or exceeding the standards of the 
underlying zoning district or comparable district; as such, alternative 
development methods may be expressly stipulated in the final development 
plan. 
  
1.      Density/Intensity.  Specific dwelling unit yields may be proposed for 
individual parcels and development units, notwithstanding otherwise 
applicable standards, so long as they are consistent with the principles of the 
General Plan. 
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2.      Minimum Lot Area.  Single-family residential developments may 
propose lotting arrangements with a portion of the site in parcels with less 
than the otherwise applicable minimum lot area in consideration of the 
following criteria as well as other justifications which the applicant may 
provide: 


 
a.  Mixed housing types including multi-family units with 


attention to affordability; 
  


b.        Additional useable open space being provided; 
 


c.  Compact residential lots that are proximate to employment 
or a major transportation corridor interchange or create a 
desirable housing market, such as attracting active retirees; 


 
d.       Lots with areas less than applicable minimum lot areas are 


internal to the development or are adjacent to non single-
family residential uses; and/or 


 
e.  Proposed neighborhood streets where garages are not 


dominating, porches are provided, or the like. 
 


3.    Property Improvement Specifications.  Unless otherwise 
requested, approved and specified on the final development plan, 
improvements to individual lots or sites shall conform with the standards 
set forth in the Zoning District tables for the district most nearly 
approximating proposed uses and intensities of use. 


  
a.  Parking.  Joint use parking facilities, including 


appropriately-buffered and screened recreational vehicle, 
automotive maintenance and washing areas, may be 
proposed. 


  
1.      Parking spaces shall be designated for parks and 
recreation areas. 


  
2.      Separate, designated spaces shall be provided for 
temporary model home sales or rental offices. 


 
b.                Signage.  Comprehensive signage packages shall be 


proposed to identify and provide entry monumentation, 
street signs and common area information; including, 
monument signs for free-standing non-residential uses and 
directory signage for retail, office or industrial park centers. 
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c.  Other improvements.  Off-site installation of municipal 
system extensions, including streets, sidewalks, pathways, 
drainage facilities, water, sewer and private-provider utility 
trenching and sub-station facilities necessary to serve the 
development may be masterplanned in compliance with 
City engineering specifications or with attenuation methods 
and materials approved by the Public Works Director, or 
his designee. 


 
B.                 OPEN SPACE: 


  
Allotments of improved and preserved usable open space shall be required to 
be maintained and shall be specified in the final development plan for 
residential portions of CMP applications.  Usable open space is defined as a 
locale where the average slope of all areas intended for designation as open 
space is not more than five percent (5%) and can be used for passive or active 
recreation. Open space for residential areas shall be required, based on the 
following: 
  
1.   A subdivision with an average lot size of less than ten thousand (10,000) 


square feet shall require a minimum of fifteen percent (15%) usable open 
space;  


  
2.  A subdivision with an average lot size of more than ten thousand (10,000) 


square feet shall require a minimum of ten percent (10%) usable open 
space;  


  
3.   The average lot size shall be determined by dividing the sum total of the 


total lot area by the number of units for the entire CMP. (Average lot size 
= Total lot area/units for entire CMP.); and, 


  
4.    Open Space percentages shall be distributed throughout CMP residential 


or open space parcels. 
  
Each open space proposal will be evaluated individually, with consideration given 
to the specific use of the open space and the number of dwellings in the 
subdivision being served by the open space.  Natural desert preserves, natural 
washes, storm water retention areas, golf courses, parks, and lineal pathway/trail 
corridors may be accepted as open space if determined to be appropriate to the 
development.  All open space shall be within the subdivision it is intended to 
serve.  


  
Amenity Expectations 
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Development plans shall specifically address and provide positive response in terms of 
land improvement enrichments for the benefit of residents, or business users, their 
visitors and the entire Benson community, including, but not limited to, the following: 
  


A.            RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOODS: 
  


Safety, spaciousness, attractive appearance, streetscape, recreation, outdoor enjoyment, 
residential privacy and compatibility among land uses and housing types are among 
considerations to which development plans shall respond. 
  


1.  Design.  Planned neighborhoods’ visual appearance shall be 
enhanced by a creative, masterplanned Design Standards. 


  
2.        Facilities.  Housing areas are expected to provide and maintain 


amenities to enhance neighborhood livability and sustainability for 
residents of all ages. 


  
a.      Recreational facilities.  Each dwelling should be located within three 
thousand (3000) feet of the nearest common open space or within five 
hundred (500) feet of a pathway linkage (sidewalk/bikepath) to such facilities. 
  
b.      Drainage structures.  Open, flow-conducting swales, retention or 
detention basins, which may be coordinated with areas credited toward open 
space requirements, should be engineered to prevent safety hazard or creation 
of attractive nuisance. 
  


3.        Community Integration.  Neighborhood design contributes to City-wide 
enhancements as well as features which provide residential diversity and 
linkages among neighborhoods. 


  
a.      Pathways.  Bicycle and pedestrian connections to schools, parks, 
shopping and other neighborhood activity centers should be conveniently 
accessible from all dwellings. 
  
b.      Neighborhood identity.  Entry monumentation, banners, public art, 
variations in lighting fixtures or street furniture help to distinguish 
neighborhood units. 
  
c.      Residential safety.  Pedestrian and security lighting, non-access 
landscaping varieties, traffic visibility, elimination of lurking areas and public 
safety/emergency accessibility should be addressed. 


  
B.  COMMERCIAL, EMPLOYMENT OR INSTITUTIONAL AMENITY LAND USES: 
  
Among the considerations to which development plans shall respond, to include but not 
limited to, safety, reduction of traffic congestion, architectural excellence, compatible 
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signage, landscaping/street furniture treatments in peripheral tracts and parking lots, and 
the integration of impacts on other properties in the vicinity.  


  
1.      Design.  Planned neighborhoods’ visual appearance shall be enhanced 
by creative, masterplanned themes. 
  
2.      Facilities.  Community-benefiting spaces, fixtures and conveniences 
should be installed and maintained in accessible, secure locations. 
  


a.       Activity centers.  Gathering places, including 
performance sites, outdoor dining, recreation or relaxation 
areas, may be provided for customers, business invitees, 
employees and residential neighbors’ use at appropriate times. 
  
b.      Joint use facilities.  Parking, playing fields, restrooms, 
drinking fountains, plazas, walkways and other facilities shall 
be installed and maintained for community use. 
  
c.       Transportation amenities.  Bicycle and pedestrian 
convenience is stressed with consideration of bus stop 
improvements, park-and-ride lots, employee shuttle services or 
comparable transportation amenities. 
  


3.      Community integration.  Non-residential development should seek to 
relate, both visually and functionally, with its surrounding neighborhood. 
  


a.       Open space connection.  Recreation space and multi-
purpose pathways are employed as means to allow employees 
or customers from the adjacent neighborhood to access 
shopping or jobs and interact with business people. 
  
b.      Transitional buffering.  Separation distance, landscaping, 
walls or joint-use areas are provided to protect residential 
privacy and soften the impacts and edges between non-
residential and housing areas. 
  
a. Impact mitigation.  Noise, glare, dust, and industrial 


emissions should be abated to acceptable residential levels 
at residential property lines.  Exposure to hazardous 
materials of any type is prohibited outside of enclosed, 
controlled-environment structures. 


 
AMENDMENT PROCEDURES FOR A CMP 
 
A. An amendment to a CMP may be initiated by the property owner or the owner’s 
agent upon submittal of a written application. 
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B. Amendment Application: 
1. The application shall be accompanied by a statement documenting the 


need for the amendment; 
 
2. The Community Development Director shall determine if the amendment 


would result in a substantial change to the CMP.   
 


     A substantial change is one which: 
  
  a.   Increases the number of total dwelling units; 
  


b.   Provides arterial street intersections at locations 
other than presented in the CMP; 


  
c.   Changes permitted land uses;  
  
d.   Provides densities and intensities not included in the 


originally proposed land use concept and 
configuration; 


  
e.   Changes designated open space, buffers or 


perimeter landscaping which was required in the 
preliminary application to mitigate development 
impacts on the site and surrounding areas; 


  
f.   As a consequence of more than one (1) non-


substantial change submitted concurrently, the 
cumulative results significantly change the 
objectives or goals of the CMP; or, 


  
g.   Results in a significant change in pedestrian or 


traffic circulation within the CMP or surrounding 
area. 


  
C.   If the request is determined to be a substantial change, the 


Community Development Director shall refer the request 
to the Planning and Zoning Commission for public hearing 
and recommendation to the Mayor and Council for review 
and action. 
  


D.   The Community Development Director may 
administratively approve non-substantial changes.  A non-
substantial change is one which:   


  
1.  Transfers of density or lots from one development unit 
to another; or 
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2.  Changes development standards, so long as said 
changes(s) does not alter the impacted development 
standard or development unit by  


       greater than 15%; 
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Citizen Review for The Villages at Vigneto 


March 31, 2015 7pm 


El Dorado Benson, LLC President Mike Reinbold introduced himself, explaining that they have been 
moving through the planning process and recently submitted the Preliminary Community Master Plan 
document.   He noted that the land now called Vigneto was the area formerly known as Whetstone 
Ranch, approximately 3 miles south on SR 90, covering both sides of SR 90.  Vigneto covers 
approximately 20 sq. miles, which is just over 12,000 acres.  He stated that the company purchased the 
land in June 2014, after 1 year of due diligence research.  


Mr. Reinbold explained the community master plan process, noting that the entire process is composed 
of two parts, the preliminary and the final stages, each of which goes through staff, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council as well as has public input and comment periods.  He explained that 
this preliminary phase sets the general concepts for macro scale land planning, design, utilities, 
drainage, open space, circulation and General Plan compliance while the final community master plan 
document will provide specific details on roads, engineering, design standards and facility siting.   


Mr. Reinbold stated that a development will have a Tuscan vineyard theme and the preliminary 
document establishes general land uses and general criteria that will carry through the entire project, 
even though the final design has not yet been created.  Further, Mr. Reinbold acknowledged that 
additional regulatory processes will take place after the Final Community Master Plan has been 
approved, some of which are public and some of which are internal processes.  He noted block plats, 
subdivision plats, engineering reports, site plans, infrastructure, and drainage plans all have additional 
layers of activity.  


Mr. Reinbold briefly touched on multiple land planning aspects that El Dorado Benson LLC is 
acknowledging in the Preliminary Community Master Plan document, specifically: 
 


• The attempt to maintain an open feel by limiting the number and placement of walls within the 
community 


• The many international influences on “Tuscan” architecture, such as Greek and Spanish 
• The desire to encourage modes of transportation other than cars, with specific attention to golf 


carts and cycling, in hopes of getting individuals in the community to interact 
• The proposed density of 2.3 dwelling units per acre, well below the allowable density limit, 


which increases the amount of open space (have already allocated approximately 2000 acres to 
open space) 


• Limiting street lighting to major intersections to preserve dark skies 
• Developing signage standards that will be consistent through the community in regard to style, 


size, design, etc. 
• Creating standards that will be implemented across all subdivision developments within the 


property, including landscape standards 
• The legally recognized waterways that are under the control of the US Army Corps of Engineers 


under an existing 404 permit, which sets aside approximately 470 acres that will be undisturbed 
and are factored in the 2000 acre open space calculation 







• The integration of SR90 as it bisects the property from north to south 
• Acknowledging and considering the existing neighbors and attempting to integrate them into 


the community such as through utility extensions 
• Considering and planning for traffic within the property, such as street widths, as well as how 


increased traffic will affect the surrounding roadways, such as SR 90 intersections 
• Creating agreements and relationships with utility companies, including city water and 


wastewater and the private utilities that provide gas, electric, trash hauling, and 
communications to determine if those existing companies can provide services or if a private 
community-based utility company may be necessary 


• Determining the criteria to determine who will be responsible for maintaining public grounds 
such as streets, parks, open space, and agriculture land, including the likelihood of establishing 
one or more Homeowners Associations 


• The legal requirements and process of using public debt for infrastructure to ensure the 
development’s residents pay for said infrastructure costs over time 
 


Regarding the Open Space component, Mr. Reinbold mentioned several design steps that will be 
implemented, including: 


• Trails throughout the property- often along wash corridors that must be preserved as part of the 
404 Permit and also under SR 90 through seven existing box culverts that also serve as wildlife 
crossings;  


• Reclaiming water to A+ status and storing it in retention “lakes” to provide irrigation with hopes 
of eventually producing more recycled water than pumping of ground water;  


• Using the gas pipeline corridor as a cross-property trail 
• Encouraging cycling across the property 


 
Mr. Reinbold specifically mentioned that his property was classified as Mixed Use in the General 
Development Plan, as adopted by the City Council in February 2015, and that the preliminary submittal 
will be in compliance with the adopted Plan.  Mr. Reinbold briefly explained the water recycling process, 
noting that Vigneto will be drawing from a 3rd level aquifer and recycling the water to an A+ standard.  
He mentioned that any water over and above irrigation needs would be recharged. 
  
Mr. Reinbold closed his presentation by stating that he wants to add pride to the community and make 
this development authentic and pleasing, both to the future residents as well to the existing community.   
 
 
Question and Answer Session 
Total Number of Homes and Expected Parcel Sizes: Mr. Reinbold responded that the overall density 
calculates to 2.3 dwelling units per acre, which is approximately 28,000 homes, ranging from 2500 sq. ft.  
to parcels over 1 acre in size. 
 
Gated Communities: Mr. Reinbold responded that communities would not be gated in the sense of walls 
and gates or gatekeeper, but would be controlled by an “arm” across the road where residents would 
swipe a passkey to raise the arm and guests would enter a code and would also likely have a photo 
taken of their license plate. This method is meant to restrict general traffic without building additional 
walls. 
 







School District Considerations:  Mr. Reinbold stated that the majority of the property is in St. David 
School District and that schools will be a priority as residential neighborhoods are built.  He stated that 
El Dorado Benson is in discussions with St. David and will be better able to determine school needs, such 
as number of school, their location and grades served, as residential plans are created.  
 
Water Usage: Mr. Reinbold confirmed that the state requires 100 year supply, which has already been 
granted, but he expects the development to use less than the amount allotted.  He also reiterated the 
expectation of water recycling with the eventual goal of water recharge.  Mr. Reinbold further stated 
that drainage flows would not change from the point of entry on the property to the point to exit off the 
property. 
 
Location and Acreage of Vineyards: Mr. Reinbold responded that 50-100 acres total would be planted, 
including the entryway.  He stated that vineyards would be planted as the property was developed and 
that orchards were also under consideration.  He explained that they would like to hold a wine festival 
with the 30 area wineries and were also considering an amphitheater. 
 
Home Owners Associations with the Property: Mr. Reinbold confirmed that there would be one 
overriding HOA for the entire property and likely subdivision-specific HOAs that would be tailored to the 
age and lifestyle the residents of that specific subdivision.  
 
Up Coming Timeline: Mr. Reinbold explained that he hopes to have the Community Master Plan process 
completed by the end of summer, stating that engineering elements are being designed concurrently 
with hopes of completing engineering by the end of 2015. He explained that construction will hopefully 
start in early 2016, including entry features, a village center, a recreation center and possibly golf course 
features.   
 
Housing Timeline and Builders: Mr. Reinbold confirmed that housing would not begin until at least 18 
months after initial infrastructure construction, placing housing construction in late 2017 or early 2018. 
He stated that it was still undecided if El Dorado would be the home builder or if another homebuilder 
would be brought in. 
  
General Development Plan Category: Mr. Reinbold stated the current category is Mixed Use.  Michelle 
Johnson explained that the land was previously categorized as Commercial, Industrial, Medium Density 
Residential, and Open Space, which still exists. 
 
Where to see El Dorado’s other developments: Mr. Reinbold suggested visiting the city of Maricopa. 
 
Marketing the development: Mr. Reinbold replied that the market will be international, both the US and 
Canada.  He agreed that some of the new residents will commute to Tucson for employment, 
acknowledging that interstate repairs/improvements often follow development, but still lag for a good 
10 years.  
 
Medical Facilities: Mr. Reinbold confirmed that El Dorado has been in contact with the Benson Hospital.  
He further stated that the hospital is in the Request for Proposal process for a consultant to design a 
campus-style hospital complex on the Vigneto property, which they hope to have operational in 5 years. 
 
 
 







Purchased Land from Whom:  Mr. Reinbold replied that the land was purchased from two owners, 
Whetstone Development and National Bank of Arizona. 
 
Interaction and Cooperation with the City: Mr. Reinbold agreed that El Dorado has received support and 
cooperation from the city and that El Dorado is also trying to help the city where needed.   
 
Housing Cost: Mr. Reinbold estimate that individual housing will range from the upper 100s to the 500s. 
He explained that he desires a high quality of work on the construction aspect.  
 
Water for 28,000 homes:  Mr. Reinbold responded that multiple hydrologic studies have been 
performed on water quantity and quality to guarantee enough water to the property. He reiterated that 
recycling water will be a priority with the goal of eventually producing enough recycled water to 
recharge.  
 
Vigneto means: Vineyard in Italian 
 
Comparison to The Villages, Florida: Mr. Reinbold confirmed that several key people had visited The 
Villages and his opinion was The Villages had done everything right to develop a community that 
attracted residents. He admitted he was hoping to turn Vigneto into the West Coast Villages, using many 
of their ideas such as a golf cart routes and multiple recreation centers.  He stated that Vigneto will only 
have 1-2 golf courses compared to The Villages, FL as well as other outdoor sports and that a resort area 
is also planned.  Mr. Reinbold gave his opinion that the west coast offers benefits over Florida such as 
lower humidity and no bugs and he hopes to create a “Sedona of the South” to promote the San Pedro 
Valley and Southern Arizona.  
 
The Citizen Review Session closed at 8:15pm.  
 















 


PLANNING AND ZONING MINUTES 
MINUTES OF THE BENSON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 


APRIL 7, 2015 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER- Chair Cliff Deane called the meeting to order at 7:03pm. 
 
2. PLEDGE- Chair Cliff Deane led the pledge.  
 
3.  ROLL CALL- Cliff Deane, Bob Baden, Randy Robichaud, Terry LaDuke, Jim 
Thelander and Debbie Braatz were present.  A quorum was present.  
 
4.  CALL TO PUBLIC-There was no answer to the call.  
 
5.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES-  
March 3, 2015 
Commissioner Randy Robichaud motioned to approve the minutes.  Commissioner Jim 
Thelander seconded.  Motion passed 6-0. 
 
6. OLD BUSINESS- There was no old business. 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING- The Villages at Vigneto Preliminary Community Master Plan 
Chairman Cliff Deane opened the Public Hearing at 7:05pm 
 
George Scott introduced himself, stating that he supports the El Dorado project.  He 
mentioned that additional homes and new businesses that will bring economic benefit to 
the entire community.  He stated that all presentations and renderings he has seen have 
been of high quality and show the amount of work El Dorado has put into the project.  He 
encouraged the Commission to recommend approval to the City Council. 
 
Peter Moran introduced himself as a resident located downslope from the proposed 
development. He stated his concerns that additional hardscape due to development would 
increase the runoff in the direction of his property.  He suggested the City hire an 
independent consultant/engineer to review drainage plans, paid for by the developer. He 
further questioned if an environmental impact study had been performed and asked for 
assurances that staff will monitor plan implementation.  Mr. Moran concluded by asking 
the Commission to delay their recommendation until issues could be studied further.  
 
Anna Lands introduced herself as a member of the Cascabel Conservation Association 
and read a letter on behalf of the chairman Norm (Mick) Meader.  The CCA is a 
stewardship organization for the Middle San Pedro Watershed.  The letter addressed the 
concerns of the Cascabel community regarding the development’s effect on downstream 
water and future water availability.  It was suggested that additional hydrological studies 
be performed.  Specific concerns included:  the rate of water table subsidence, a request 
for a water model to estimate effects along the San Pedro River including a deep water 
drawdown and aquifer connection through the clay layers, protection of the riparian areas 







 


along the river and Bureau of Reclamation status of the River and how the development 
may impact Bureau needs.   
 
Elna Otter introduced herself as a Cascabel resident with concerns about water usage and 
future water availability.  She cited several points from Hopkins et al (2014) including: 
the four types of aquifers in the Benson area and the current use of each type, the 
movement of water between aquifer types, and the age of the water in each aquifer type. 
Ms. Otter also referenced several water models of the area, one by Hopkins et al (2014) 
and a prior MODFLOW model by Goode and Maddock (2000). Ms. Otter’s conclusions 
included that water replenishment rates are slow, if ever, so withdrawal must be 
significantly regulated. 
 
Tricia Gerrodette introduced herself, stating she had read the Preliminary Community 
Master Plan document and had concerns about multiple aspects that were not addressed 
in the document.  She noted that the document does not reference Fort Huachuca and she 
questioned if Fort Huachuca had been informed of the proposal, particularly in reference 
to their test range limits.  She further questioned the water impacts on Kartcher Caverns 
and the St. David Cienga, which is part of the San Pedro River National Conservation 
Area (SPRNCA). Ms. Gerrodette then asked if and how St. David school district had 
been consulted as the vast majority of the property lies in their district.  She suggested 
that it would be courtesy of the city to contact the school district rather than impose a 
large development on them.  She questioned if Game and Fish had been involved with the 
project.  Ms. Gerrodette further questioned why a town with western and railroad history 
would approve an Italian themed development rather than building on the heritage of the 
area. Lastly, she reminded the Commission that increasing the number of homes could 
always occur in the future, incrementally as development occurs, but allowing a set 
number of homes from the get-go does not allow the city to reduce the number in the 
future.  
 
Mr. Bob Dalquist passed. 
 
Mr. Lupe Diaz introduced himself as a local pastor as well as the Chamber President.  He 
stated that he has spoken with the developers and they were able to answer questions for 
him that were similar to the questions that were raised tonight.  He stated his hopes that 
the development will bring people to the area to enjoy the lifestyle and sights that are 
offered in Benson.  He noted the decreasing population of Cochise County (per Dr. 
Carreira of Cochise College Center for Economic Research) and the need for economic 
growth to keep and attract residents to the area.  Mr. Diaz agreed that water usage and 
availability is of concern but that it is the residents’ responsibility to make sure water 
issues are being addressed in order to support the project.  Mr. Diaz suggested that the 
community try to appreciate the efforts of those who are trying to bring a new prosperity 
to Benson.  He encouraged the Commission to recommend approval to City Council, 
noting that it should not be a flash decision and that questions will continue to be 
answered as the project moves through other levels.  
 
 







 


Kathy Suagee introduced herself, noting that an informal meeting had been held at 
Denny’s on Thursday, April 2, 2015 to discuss the proposal.  She addressed several 
points that were discussed at that meeting, specifically: concern about drainage/runoff on 
the eastern side of the property and the lack of assurance for any eastern slope property 
owners; significantly increased traffic on SR 90 and I-10, potential road deterioration and 
the need to improve Post Road for an 80/90 thoroughfare; maintaining dark skies with so 
many new homes; providing amenities for children and integration with the schools; and 
lastly questioning if true economic benefits would come to “Old Benson” if the new 
development provides the goods and services needed by the new residents are all 
provided within the development. Ms. Suagee also expressed her concern that the 
document had not been made available to the public.  
 
Mr. Andrew Abernathy introduced himself as a professional urban planner who initially 
had concerns about the proposal, particularly in light of the property’s history.  He 
stressed that while the concerns he has heard are grounded and of value, the preliminary 
phase of a community master plan does not answer to the level of detail that is often 
requested. He noted that questions will continue to be answered as the proposal moves 
through the process and that as a professional, he applauds the work that El Dorado has 
performed. Mr. Abernathy encouraged the Commission to recommend approval of the 
project to City Council.  
 
Mr. Matt Walton and Brad Fulk from Arizona Game and Fish introduced themselves, 
noting they were not in attendance to impose their department’s will over the project.  
Mr. Walton acknowledged they had recently received the preliminary community master 
plan document and were in the process of reviewing it for habitat and wildlife concerns, 
especially in light of intermingled agriculture areas, and for wildlife corridors.  He stated 
that the Department would like to offer their assistance to the City to discuss potential 
issues and offer suggestions.  He offered the example of Easter Mountain Ranch (located 
in the J-6 area), stating that he has been working with both the County and the property 
owners on that project.  Mr. Walton stated that the El Dorado property could offer 
significant access to the National Forest and state land and he would like to help maintain 
or increase access as development occurs because so few access points exist now.  He 
noted that economic benefits can come from access to public lands, often in the form of 
sportsmen. Mr. Walton closed by reiterating the offer to assist and advise the City.  
 
Ms. Barbara Nunn introduced herself, stating she was the meeting referenced earlier by 
Kathy Suagee, though her participation was as a private citizen and not as a 
representative of the Economic Development Committee.  She expressed her opinion that 
the proposal is an opportunity to help the town and that Benson needs this project. She 
asked the Commission to support the project and vote to recommend the project to 
Council. 
 
Mr. Dave Thompson introduced himself as a resident and business owner who is in favor 
of the development, stating it will bring people, goods and services to the area as it 
provides a basis for Benson to grow.  He stated that additional amenities for kids will be 
provided, such as a theater.  Mr. Thompson stated that both experts and so-called experts 







 


had spoken and that many people do not have the facts.  He noted that El Dorado Benson 
held several open houses to provide information and will even take individuals on tours 
of the property if requested.  Mr. Thompson acknowledged that while he is not a 
geologist or hydrologist, El Dorado representatives had answered his questions about 
water.  He concluded by stating that may of the statements made had been incorrect.  
 
Mr. Jeff Cook introduced himself, stating that water was his initial concern when he 
heard about the proposed development so he began his own research into aquifers. He 
stated he found an AZ Department of Water Resources water availability report which 
discussed the alluvial deposits and water basins.  He stated that while Benson is on the 
same water as Kartchner Caverns, a clay layer separates that water from the water 
feeding the San Pedro River. Mr. Cook commented that Vigneto already has a water 
adequacy permit and will be using an aquifer separate from the San Pedro River as well 
as separate from Sierra Vista and Fort Huachuca.  He expressed his opinion that the 
Vigneto proposal is preferable to the prior Whetstone Ranch proposal.  He lastly 
suggested that the City and developer should avoid direct waste water injection 
 
The Public Hearing closed at 7:49 pm.  
 
8. NEW BUSINESS- The Villages at Vigneto Preliminary Community Master Plan 
Chairman Cliff Deane invited the representatives of El Dorado Benson to speak.  
 
Mr. Mike Reinbold, President of El Dorado Benson, LLC introduced himself, noting that 
he would attempt to respond to some of the issues raised during the public hearing, noting 
that such public involvement is part of the process. Regarding the sentiment that the 
development process has been rushed, he explained that that property has been within 
city limits for some 23 years and has had city zoning for those 23 yrs that would allow 
significantly more housing, upwards of 60,000 units, which is much greater than what is 
proposed.  He explained that the Community Master Plan is a process, not a zoning 
instrument, to act as a guide to implement zoning and development rights over the course 
of time.  He noted the preliminary plan establishes concepts and is in compliance with the 
recently adopted General Development Plan. He further explained that El Dorado already 
has 1.5 – 2 years involvement with the property.  
 
Mr. Reinbold noted that he wants the development to be conducive to the neighborhood 
and Benson as something that will add value.  He stated that his prior experience in small 
towns shows that development often brings up the value in the community, allowing 
money to be reinvested into the original community.  Mr. Reinbold acknowledged that he 
grew up on a town that deteriorated and he believes that the development’s economic 
impacts will only help Benson.  
 
In response to concerns about jobs, Mr. Reinbold stated that jobs come in many forms, 
from the construction jobs to the need for more professionals and non-professionals as 
the population grows.  He used the hospital as an example, stating that the hospital hopes 
to develop a campus-style health center which will reduce to need to travel to Tucson for 
services.   







 


Regarding wildlife and habitat concerns, Mr. Reinbold confirmed that the 404 permit 
issued several years ago took the same issues into consideration as preserved washes 
were being delineated.  In regard to access to National Forest and state lands, Mr. 
Reinbold stated that unimproved roads constitute a liability so the goal is to have full 
service roads leading to those locations.  
 
In response to concerns about drainage, Mr. Reinbold stated that law prevents them from 
increasing the amount of discharge- that post-development discharge to the east side 
cannot exceed the current pre-development discharge rates. He noted that there will be 
various control methods, but total discharge cannot increase.  In relation to water usage, 
Mr. Reinbold confirmed that the City is the official water provider, stating that the 
Arizona Department of Water Resources has already issued the entire City an allocation 
of approximately 13,000 acre feet, of which 9200 acre feet is allocated to the Vigneto 
property.  With 28,000 housing units, reduced from the possible 60,000, Mr. Reinbold 
stated that expected water usage is only 62% of those 9200 acre feet.  He noted that El 
Dorado Benson is reducing both density and water usage by choice and that they also 
want to implement water recharge methods, such as lakes and marshes for natural 
filtration.  Mr. Reinbold stated that waste water would be treated to A+ quality, which is 
both swim-able and drinkable if people could psychologically accept it.  He further stated 
that the lakes within the development are actually recharge holding basins whose water 
will be used for irrigation purposes, therefore functioning as both a landscape feature and 
serving a water treatment purpose. Mr. Reinbold noted his expectation that eventually the 
development will produce more effluent than is used by irrigation so the excess will be 
leached into the soil for recharge.  
 
Regarding the involvement of the school districts, Mr. Reinbold confirmed that El 
Dorado Benson has been in contact with both districts and expects the development to 
have multiple schools, commensurate with the number of families living there. He stated 
that the Benson district is in need of another school site and will use land within the 
Benson School District boundary on the Vigneto boundary.  Mr. Reinbold stated that 
discussions are continuing with St. David School District as final plans are established.  
Mr. Reinbold also acknowledged that discussions are also occurring with the Fire and 
Police Departments to determine their needs as the development proceeds.  
 
Regarding the community master plan process, Mr. Reinbold stated that it is an elective 
process that El Dorado Benson chose to undergo. He stated that the process is not 
required and El Dorado could have simply submitted multiple subdivision plats.  He 
commented that the CMP document provides continuity for both the city and the 
developers over the long term regarding infrastructure and housing so that individual 
subdivisions and areas do not become incompatible.  
 
Mr. Reinbold acknowledged that he likes the existing dark skies on the property and 
expects to keep lighting minimal, with lighting concentrated at major intersections for 
safety.  The remainder of the property will be relatively low level lighting that is 
shielded. 
 







 


In response to concerns about travel between SR 80 and SR 90, Mr. Reinbold confirmed 
that Post Road will be realigned and built, though cooperation with other agencies and 
owners will be needed for full connectivity.   
 
Acknowledging the many concerns about water, Mr. Reinbold stated that the comments 
will be taken under advisement and that he will have their hydrology experts look into the 
concerns brought forth.  
 
Mr. Reinbold stated that his goals for the development include making sure the amenities 
that make a community, such as schools, shopping, and play aread, are present because 
those are the things that make people want to live there.  He stated his desire to have 
people want to visit Southern Arizona because there is so much to do, commenting that 
Benson could be the Sedona of the South without the red rocks.  
 
Regarding the Tuscan theme, Mr. Reinbold noted that while Benson does have a Western 
and railroad heritage, the landscape is similar to Tuscany and the growing wine industry 
in the region lends itself to the Tuscan theme.  Mr. Reinbold explained the details of the 
village core, which is expected to contain an entertainment complex, restaurants, coffee 
shops and boutiques.  He stated that the development does not want a strip mall feel with 
parking lots, but rather a pleasant view of a lake.  
 
Mr. Reinbold explained that the travel within the development will include a “golf cart 
highway” for carts, bikes, walking or running as well as multiple trails along the 
permitted 404 washes.  He noted that their plan exceeds the City’s open space 
requirements with approximately 2500 total acres left open throughout the development.  
To encourage views, enjoy the open space and encourage interaction between people, Mr. 
Reinbold stated that El Dorado will minimize walls.  
 
Mr. Reinbold concluded by reiterating that the community master plan process is elective 
and creates a roadmap for the future benefit of the City and El Dorado.  He noted that the 
process could be terminated and subdivision plats submitted without a long term, overall 
plan for the entire area.  Mr. Reinbold finished by stating he desires a sustainable number 
of units to create a community.  
 
Commissioner Terry LaDuke asked how many people are expected per housing unit, 
noting his concerns about water consumption.  Mr. Reinbold responded that with a mix of 
traditional housing and active adult, the number of people per unit averages to 2.5, each 
of whom is assumed to use 80 gallons of water per day.  He stated that 325,000 gallons is 
one acre foot, the development has 9200 acre feet and they expect to use only 62% of that 
allocation. Commissioner Terry LaDuke commented that he has had personal experience 
with private well levels dropping so he remains concerned about the amount of water 
being pumped out of the aquifer.  
 
Commissioner Debbie Braatz stated that she was also concerned about water and had 
initially been planning to motion to table to the item due to the many questions and 
concerns. However, she explained that this is only a preliminary plan so some questions 







 


could not yet be answered.  She encouraged citizens to stay involved, not complaining, 
but doing their own reading, research and asking questions.  She commented that the 
developers are open to questions and that she personally expects to continue to ask them 
questions as the process continues.  
 
Commissioner Jim Thelander stated that many people did not seem to be aware of the 
entire process of a community master plan. He stated that water allocations had been 
approved by the state years ago, but the new issues are the developers and the fact that 
they expect to use a smaller proportion of their allocation. He acknowledged that he was 
unaware of the ADWR process to allocate water and that it was out of Benson’s hands 
because the developers already knew how much water they could expect to receive and 
still chose to reduce density and water usage.  
 
Chairman Cliff Deane noted that Mike Reinbold had stated he would be willing to answer 
questions, particularly about water usage, so Chairman Deane suggested that the public 
submit questions to Planner Michelle Johnson who would pass them along to El Dorado 
Benson.  
 
Commissioner Bob Baden acknowledged that he took a tour of the property because as a 
property owner off SR 80, he was also concerned about drainage issues, especially in 
light of flooding of the past summer. As the wash designations have already been 
determined and as state law prohibits increased run off, Commissioner Baden suggested 
that perhaps some research and contact with the US Army Corps of Engineers was 
warranted to help understand the process and the conclusion. He commented that the area 
does have great views and he appreciates the no-wall concept to maintain the views.  He 
further commented that he would like to see Benson grow, especially as so many 
businesses are closing.  Commissioner Baden stated his opinion that the developers have 
been honest and open, providing him a very detailed explanation of washes and drainage 
and setbacks, and that overall he believes the development would be good for Benson.  
 
Vice Chair Randy Robichaud voiced a list of comments about the project including: the 
fact that water allocations had designated years ago when a development by Pulte Homes 
was being considered; the fact that El Dorado Benson was communicating with the 
schools and hospitals and the hospital in particular needs growth to help maintain itself; 
his opinion that El Dorado would likely want to keep runoff on their own property since 
it could be used for their lakes, so they are unlikely to increase runoff toward St. David 
and state law makes it a moot point anyway; the expectation that the development will 
bring additional funds to the city through taxes, building permits and new resident 
spending; the support of professional planner Andrew Abernathy; the ability of Game and 
Fish to provide assistance for the benefit of the city and the developers;  and lastly the 
nearly equal support / opposition of the audience.  Commissioner Robichaud did request 
that the developers consider turning the old railroad bed into a trail under the Rails to 
Trails program.   
 
 







 


Chairman Cliff Deane asked if anyone had any more comments.  Commissioners Debbie 
Braatz and Terry LaDuke did not have additional comments.  Commissioner Jim 
Thelander commented that in his 50 years in Benson, he has seen many developers and 
subdivisions come and go and this proposal is the first time it’s not just a proposal for a 
bunch of lots.  Commissioner Thelander stated this is the best proposal that’s come to 
town in his 50 years. Commissioner Bob Baden noted there used to be more access to the 
Whetstone Mountain and suggested the developers provide additional access to the forest 
and state lands. Vice Chair Randy Robichaud suggested that people wanting more 
information about El Dorado view the El Dorado website to see what they have built in 
the past.  
 
Vice Chair Randy Robichaud motioned to recommend approval of the Preliminary 
Community Master Plan, as presented, to City Council.  Commissioner Jim Thelander 
seconded.  There was no further discussion and motion passed 6-0.   
 
Vice Chair Randy Robichaud motioned to table the work session. Commissioner Bob 
Baden seconded.  Motion passed 6-0. 
 
Vice Chair Randy Robichaud motioned to adjourn. Commissioner Jim Thelander 
seconded.  Motion passed 6-0 and the meeting adjourned at 8:33pm. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 





